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The information contained in this Official Statement has been furnished by UIA, DTC, and other sources that 
are believed to be reliable. No dealer, broker, salesperson or any other person has been authorized by UIA or the 
Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this Official 
Statement in connection with the offering contained herein, and, if given or made, such information or representations 
must not be relied upon as having been authorized by UIA or the Underwriter. 

This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there 
be any sale of the Series 2023 Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make 
such offer, solicitation or sale. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice, 
and neither delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made thereafter shall under any circumstances create any 
implication that there has been no change in the affairs of UIA or in any other information contained herein, since the 
date of this Official Statement. 

In connection with this offering, the Underwriter may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain or 
otherwise affect the market prices of the Series 2023 Bonds. Such transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued 
at any time. 

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the purchasers of the Series 2023 Bonds. 
Statements contained in this Official Statement which involve estimates, forecasts or matters of opinion, whether or 
not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such and are not to be construed as representations of facts. 

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement: 

The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in 
accordance with, and as a part of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal 
securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but 
the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such 
information. 

The Series 2023 Bonds have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in reliance 
upon exemptions contained in such act. Any registration or qualification of the Series 2023 Bonds in accordance with 
applicable provisions of the securities laws of the states in which the Series 2023 Bonds are required to be registered 
or qualified and the exemption from registration or qualification in other states cannot be regarded as a 
recommendation thereof. 

THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION, NOR HAS 
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION PASSED 
UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO 
THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. 

CERTAIN STATEMENTS CONTAINED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT REFLECT NOT 
HISTORICAL FACTS BUT FORECASTS AND “FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS.” NO ASSURANCE 
CAN BE GIVEN THAT THE FUTURE RESULTS DISCUSSED HEREIN WILL BE ACHIEVED, AND ACTUAL 
RESULTS MAY DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THE FORECASTS DESCRIBED HEREIN. IN THIS RESPECT, 
THE WORDS “ESTIMATE,” “PROJECT,” “ANTICIPATE,” “EXPECT,” “INTEND,” “BELIEVE,” AND 
SIMILAR PROJECTIONS, FORECASTS, ASSUMPTIONS, EXPRESSIONS OF OPINIONS, ESTIMATES AND 
OTHER FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ARE EXPRESSLY QUALIFIED IN THEIR ENTIRETY BY THE 
CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS SET FORTH IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT. READERS ARE CAUTIONED 
NOT TO PLACE UNDUE RELIANCE ON SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH SPEAK 
ONLY AS OF THE DATE HEREOF.   
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UIA Members, shown for reference only, are in green.  Partner cities, shown in red, are cities where UIA has built or 
is building an extension of the UIA Network pursuant to separate service contracts.   
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

RELATING TO 

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
 

$35,630,000 
TAX-EXEMPT TELECOMMUNICATIONS REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2023 

 
 

INTRODUCTION 

This Official Statement, including the cover page, introduction and appendices, provides information in 
connection with the issuance and sale by the Utah Infrastructure Agency (“UIA” or the “Agency”) of its $35,630,000 
Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 2023 (the “Series 2023 Bonds”). This introduction is only 
a brief description of: (i) the Series 2023 Bonds; (ii) the security and sources of payment for the Series 2023 Bonds; 
(iii) certain information regarding UIA; (iv) the uses of the proceeds of the Series 2023 Bonds; and (v) the wholesale, 
fiber optic, open-access, advanced communications network of UIA and the improvements financed thereto with 
Series 2023 Bond proceeds. The information contained herein is expressly qualified by reference to the entire Official 
Statement. Investors are urged to make a full review of the entire Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto, 
which are incorporated herein by reference, as well as of the documents summarized or described herein. Capitalized 
terms used herein and not otherwise defined are defined in “APPENDIX B—EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN 
PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE” and “APPENDIX C—THE SERVICE CONTRACT.”   

See also the following appendices attached hereto: “APPENDIX A—AUDITED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022”; 
“APPENDIX B—EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE”; “APPENDIX C—THE 
SERVICE CONTRACT”; “APPENDIX D—FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL”; “APPENDIX E—FORM 
OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING”; and “APPENDIX F—PROVISIONS REGARDING BOOK-
ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM.” 

UIA 

UIA is a political subdivision of the State of Utah (the “State”), and was created in 2010 pursuant to the Utah 
Interlocal Cooperation Act, Title 11, Chapter 13, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended (the “Interlocal Cooperation 
Act”), and the Second Amended and Restated Interlocal Cooperative Agreement of the Utah Infrastructure Agency 
originally dated as of June 7, 2010, and amended and restated as of November 1, 2010 (the “Interlocal Agreement”) 
among Brigham City, Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, Midvale City, Murray City, City of Orem, Payson 
City and West Valley City (each a “Member” and collectively, the “Members”).  Pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation 
Act and the Interlocal Agreement, the Members organized UIA to provide for the acquisition, construction and 
installation of advanced communication lines together with related improvements and facilities (the “UIA Network”) 
for the purpose of connecting properties within the Members to the UIA Network, all of which will directly or 
indirectly benefit each of the Members.  See “UIA” herein for more detailed information about UIA, including 
management and financial information. 

The UIA Network 

The UIA Network is an open-access fiber optic network enabling high speed broadband services, such as 
voice, video and data access.  The physical assets of the UIA Network include fiber optic lines, transmitters, power 
sources and backups, switches and access portals.  The UIA Network operates under an open access model which 
allows qualified service providers to provide voice, video and data services to customers within the reach of the UIA 
Network.  See “THE UIA NETWORK” herein. 

The operations of the UIA Network are dependent on its connection to, and the continued operations of, the 
fiber optic network (the “UTOPIA Network”) of the Utah Telecommunication Open Infrastructure Agency 
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(“UTOPIA”), as the UTOPIA Network provides critical infrastructure necessary for the operations of the UIA 
Network.  The UIA Network is connected to the UTOPIA Network pursuant to an Indefeasible Right of Use 
Agreement, dated May 1, 2011, as amended and supplemented (the “IRU Agreement”), which grants to the Agency 
an indefeasible right of use (the “IRU”).  The IRU provides the Agency access to certain facilities of and capacity in 
the UTOPIA Network through at least April 30, 2042.  The IRU Agreement will automatically renew in additional 
five-year increments unless either party terminates.  The Agency currently has only two employees, a Chief Executive 
Officer and a Secretary/Treasurer, both of whom are also UTOPIA employees and have their salaries paid by UTOPIA.  
The Agency has engaged UTOPIA for the management of various services for certain portions of the UIA Network, 
including planning and pre-construction management services to build the UIA Network, administration, operations 
management and service provider management related to the UIA Network, all pursuant to an Interlocal Cooperative 
Agreement for Services, dated July 29, 2010, as amended and supplemented (the “UTOPIA Service Agreement”).  
The continued operations of the Agency and the UIA Network are heavily reliant on the continued operations of 
UTOPIA and the UTOPIA Network.  See “THE UIA NETWORK” and “BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS” herein. 

Authority for the Series 2023 Bonds 

The Series 2023 Bonds are being issued pursuant to (i) the Interlocal Cooperation Act; (ii) the General 
Indenture of Trust dated as of December 1, 2017 (as previously supplemented, the “General Indenture”), between UIA 
and Zions Bancorporation, National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”); (iii) a Sixth Supplemental Indenture of 
Trust dated as of October 1, 2023 (the “Sixth Supplemental Indenture” and together with the General Indenture, the 
“Indenture”), between UIA and the Trustee; (iv) an authorizing resolution adopted on August 14, 2023 (the 
“Resolution”), by the Governing Board of UIA (the “Board”); and (v) other applicable provisions of law.  

Uses of Proceeds 

The proceeds of the Series 2023 Bonds will be used to (i) finance the acquisition, construction, and 
installation of advanced communication lines, equipment and improvements, refreshment of major electronics, and 
related improvements and facilities as part of a fiber optic, open-access, advanced communications network 
(collectively, the “Series 2023 Project”); (ii) fund capitalized interest with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds; (iii) fund 
a debt service reserve account for the Series 2023 Bonds; and (iv) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds.  
See “THE SERIES 2023 PROJECT” and “ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS” herein.  

Security for the Series 2023 Bonds 

The principal of, premium, if any and interest on the Series 2023 Bonds will be payable from and secured by 
a pledge and assignment of the revenues from the operation of the UIA Network after payment of all operation and 
maintenance expenses (as more particularly described herein, the “Revenues,” the “Operation and Maintenance 
Expenses,” and the “Net Revenues,” respectively).  The Revenues primarily consist of the amounts paid to UIA 
(i) from service providers pursuant to each respective non-exclusive network access and use agreement entered into 
between UIA and the respective service provider (each a “Service Provider Agreement” and collectively, the “Service 
Provider Agreements”), and (ii) pursuant to a take-or-pay Communications Service Contract dated as of May 1, 2011 
(the “Service Contract”), among UIA and Brigham City, Centerville City, Layton City, Midvale City, Murray City, 
Orem City and West Valley City (collectively, the “Contracting Members” and individually a “Contracting Member”). 
Payson is the only Member that is not a Contracting Member. Amounts due under the Service Contract are ultimately 
payable from revenues received from the levy of a municipal energy sales and use tax (the “Franchise Tax Revenues”) 
by each of the Contracting Members. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS—Net 
Revenues of UIA” herein.    

The Series 2023 Bonds are special limited obligations of UIA. The Series 2023 Bonds will not be a general 
obligation of UIA, any Member, the State of Utah or any agency, instrumentality or political subdivision thereof. 
Neither the faith and credit nor the ad valorem taxing power of any Member, the State of Utah or any agency, 
instrumentality or political subdivision thereof will be assigned or pledged for payment of the Series 2023 Bonds. 
The Indenture does not pledge any properties of the UIA Network. UIA will not mortgage or grant a security 
interest in the UIA Network to secure payment of the Series 2023 Bonds. UIA has no taxing power. See 
“BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS” herein. 
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Outstanding Parity Bonds; Additional Bonds 

Under the Indenture, UIA has previously issued its (i) Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2022 (the “Series 2022 Bonds”); (ii) Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (the 
“Series 2021 Bonds”); (iii) Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 2019 (the “Series 2019 Bonds”); 
(iv) Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A (the “Series 2018A Bonds”); and (v) Tax-
Exempt Telecommunications Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2017A and Taxable Telecommunications 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B (together the “Series 2017 Bonds, and collectively with the Series 2018A 
Bonds, the Series 2019 Bonds, the Series 2021 Bonds, and the Series 2022 Bonds, the “Outstanding Parity Bonds”), 
which as of the date of this Official Statement are outstanding in total aggregate principal amount of $212,730,000.  

UIA may issue additional Series of Bonds under the Indenture (the “Additional Bonds”) upon the satisfaction 
of certain conditions set forth in the Indenture. The Additional Bonds will be secured by the Indenture on a parity with 
the Series 2023 Bonds and the Outstanding Parity Bonds. The Series 2023 Bonds, the Outstanding Parity Bonds, and 
any Additional Bonds are sometimes collectively referred to herein as the “Bonds.” See “SECURITY AND 
SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS—Additional Bonds” herein.  

Other Outstanding UIA Debt 

UIA has also previously issued several series of project-specific bonds for certain municipalities in the State.  
Such bonds are payable from and secured, pursuant to separate indentures, by the revenues due and payable under a 
separate service contract with each respective municipality where the project is located. Such bonds are also secured 
by certain franchise and/or sales tax revenues or other revenues of the municipality.  For additional information 
regarding these bonds, see “UIA—Outstanding Obligations of UIA” herein.   

Furthermore, UIA plans to issue similar project specific bonds in the next several years that are payable from 
and secured by sources other than the Net Revenues.  Such bonds will be payable from and secured by project specific 
revenues.   

Debt Service Reserve for Series 2023 Bonds 

A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2023 Bonds will be deposited into a debt service reserve account for 
the Series 2023 Bonds (the “Series 2023 Debt Service Reserve Account”). The Series 2023 Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement is $2,820,118.75, which is the maximum annual debt service for the Series 2023 Bonds.   

Redemption Provisions 

The Series 2023 Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity.  See 
“THE SERIES 2023 BONDS–Redemption Provisions” below. 

Registration, Denominations, Manner of Payment 

The Series 2023 Bonds are issuable only as fully registered bonds without coupons and, when initially issued, 
will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York 
(“DTC”).  DTC will act as securities depository for the Series 2023 Bonds. Purchases of Series 2023 Bonds will be 
made in book-entry form only, in the principal amount of $5,000 and integral multiples thereof, through brokers and 
dealers who are, or who act through, DTC Participants (as hereinafter defined). Beneficial Owners (as hereinafter 
defined) of the Series 2023 Bonds will not be entitled to receive physical delivery of bond certificates so long as DTC 
or a successor securities depository acts as the securities depository with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds. 

Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2023 Bonds (interest payable April 15 and October 15 
of each year, commencing April 15, 2024 (each an “Interest Payment Date”)) are payable to the registered owners of 
the Series 2023 Bonds through Zions Bancorporation, National Association, which, in addition to acting as Trustee, 
will also act as paying agent and bond registrar with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds (respectively, the “Paying 
Agent” and the “Registrar”). So long as DTC is the registered owner, it will, in turn, remit such principal, premium, 
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if any, and interest to the DTC Participants, for subsequent disbursements to the Beneficial Owners of the Series 2023 
Bonds, as described in “APPENDIX F—PROVISIONS REGARDING BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM” herein. 

Transfer or Exchange 

In the event that the Book-Entry Only System is terminated with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds, and in all 
cases in which the privilege of exchanging or transferring the Series 2023 Bonds is exercised, UIA shall execute, and 
the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and register and deliver, the Series 2023 Bonds in accordance with the provisions 
of the Indenture. For every such exchange or transfer of the Series 2023 Bonds, the Bond Registrar may require 
payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with 
respect to such exchange or transfer of the Series 2023 Bonds, but may impose no other charge therefor. 

Tax Matters 

In the opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Bond Counsel to UIA, under existing law and assuming continued 
compliance with certain requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”), as amended, the interest on 
the Series 2023 Bonds (including any original issue discount properly allocable to an owner thereof) is excludable 
from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal 
alternative minimum tax.  Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that the interest on the Series 2023 Bonds is exempt 
from State of Utah individual income taxes.  The Series 2023 Bonds are not “qualified tax-exempt obligations” within 
the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.  Bond Counsel notes that for tax years beginning after December 31, 
2022, interest on the Series 2023 Bonds may be included in adjusted financial statement income of applicable 
corporations for purposes of determining the applicability and amount of the federal corporate alternative minimum 
tax. See “TAX MATTERS” in this Official Statement.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other tax 
consequences relating to ownership or disposition of or the accrual or receipt of interest on the Series 2023 Bonds.   

Continuing Disclosure 

UIA will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking at the time of the issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds 
for the benefit of the Owners and the beneficial owners of the Series 2023 Bonds to provide (i) certain annual financial 
information and operating data to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) and (ii) notice of certain 
material events to the MSRB all in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Rule”). See APPENDIX E attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference for a form of the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking that will be executed and delivered by UIA. 

Conditions of Delivery, Anticipated Date, Manner, and Place of Delivery 

The Series 2023 Bonds are offered, subject to prior sale, when, as, and if issued and received by KeyBanc 
Capital Markets Inc., as underwriter (the “Underwriter”), subject to the approval of legality by Gilmore & Bell, P.C., 
Salt Lake City, Utah, Bond Counsel to UIA, and certain other conditions. Certain legal matters will be passed on for 
UIA by Jeffrey Starkey, as general counsel to UIA. Certain matters relating to disclosure will be passed upon by 
Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Disclosure Counsel to UIA. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriter by 
its counsel, Chapman and Cutler LLP. LRB Public Finance Advisors, Inc., Salt Lake City, Utah, has acted as municipal 
advisor to UIA in connection with the issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds.  See “LEGAL MATTERS” below. It is 
expected that the Series 2023 Bonds in book-entry form will be available for delivery to DTC or its agent on or about 
October 10, 2023.   

Basic Documentation 

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject to change. 
Brief descriptions of UIA, UTOPIA, the UIA Network, the Series 2023 Project, the Series 2023 Bonds, the Service 
Contract, and the Indenture are included in this Official Statement. Such descriptions do not purport to be 
comprehensive or definitive. All references herein to the Indenture and the Service Contract are qualified in their 
entirety by reference to such documents, and references herein to the Series 2023 Bonds are qualified in their entirety 
by reference to the form thereof included in the Indenture and the information with respect thereto included in the 
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aforementioned documents. See “APPENDIX B—EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 
INDENTURE” and “APPENDIX C—THE SERVICE CONTRACT” below. 

Bondholders’ Risks 

The purchase of the Series 2023 Bonds involves a degree of risk. Certain of the risks associated with the 
purchase and ownership of the Series 2023 Bonds are discussed herein. For a description of certain risks associated 
with the Series 2023 Bonds, see “BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS” below. Potential purchasers of Series 2023 Bonds are 
encouraged to read the Official Statement in its entirety to gain an appreciation of the risks involved in purchasing the 
Series 2023 Bonds. 

Contact Persons 

The chief contact person for UIA concerning the Series 2023 Bonds is: 

Jason Roberts, Secretary/Treasurer 
Utah Infrastructure Agency 

5858 South 900 East 
Murray, Utah 84121 

Telephone: (801) 613-3859 
e-mail:  jroberts@utopiafiber.com 

 
Additional requests for information may be directed to UIA’s municipal advisor as follows: 

Laura D. Lewis, Principal 
LRB Public Finance Advisors, Inc. 

41 North Rio Grande, Suite 101  
Salt Lake City, Utah 84101  
Telephone: (801) 596-0700 

e-mail:  laura@lrbfinance.com 
 
Additional Information 

Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined have the meanings given them in the Indenture and 
the Service Contract. See “APPENDIX B—EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE–
Definitions” and “APPENDIX C—THE SERVICE CONTRACT.”  

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, 
are intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or 
agreement between UIA and the purchasers or owners of any of the Series 2023 Bonds.  The statements of UIA herein 
are not to be construed as statements by any member of the Board or any officer or employee of UIA. 
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THE SERIES 2023 BONDS 

General 

The Series 2023 Bonds are dated their initial date of delivery and shall bear interest from said date. Interest 
on the Series 2023 Bonds will be payable semiannually on April 15 and October 15 of each year commencing April 15, 
2024.  Interest on the Series 2023 Bonds will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day 
months. The Series 2023 Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds, initially in book-entry form, in denominations 
of $5,000 and integral multiples thereof. 

The Series 2023 Bonds shall bear interest at the rates and shall mature in each of the years and principal 
amounts as set forth on the inside front cover page to this Official Statement. 

Principal of and the interest on the Series 2023 Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States 
of America. Payment of the interest on any Bond shall be made to the person appearing on the Bond registration books 
of the Registrar as provided in the Indenture as the Registered Owner thereof by check or draft mailed on the Interest 
Payment Date to the Registered Owner at his address as it appears on such registration books or to owners of 
$1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Series 2023 Bonds (or owners of 100% of any Series then 
Outstanding) by wire transfer to a bank account designated by the Registered Owner in written instructions furnished 
to the Trustee no later than the Regular Record Date for such payment. The interest on the Series 2023 Bonds so 
payable, and punctually paid and duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will be paid to the person who is 
the Registered Owner thereof at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest immediately 
preceding such Interest Payment Date. Any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for shall forthwith 
cease to be payable to the registered owner of any Bond on such Regular Record Date, and may be paid to the person 
who is the Registered Owner thereof at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such 
defaulted interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice thereof to be given to such Registered Owner not less than ten 
days prior to such Special Record Date. The principal of and premium, if any, on Series 2023 Bonds are payable upon 
presentation and surrender thereof at the Principal Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee as Paying Agent. All such 
payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Series 2023 Bond to the extent 
of the sum or sums so paid. 

Registration, Transfer and Exchange 

UIA shall cause books for the registration or transfer of the Bonds to be kept at the principal corporate trust 
office of the Trustee and appoints the Trustee to act as its registrar and transfer agent to keep such books and to make 
such registration and transfers. Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond at the principal corporate trust office of the 
Trustee, UIA shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees, 
a new Bond or Bonds of authorized denomination for the aggregate principal amount which the Registered Owner is 
entitled to receive. Bonds of authorized denominations may be exchanged for Bonds of other authorized 
denominations of the same maturity, series, and interest rate upon request of the Owner thereof. 

New Bonds delivered upon any transfer or exchange shall be valid obligations of UIA, evidencing the same 
debt as the Bonds surrendered, shall be secured by and entitled to all of the security and benefits of the Indenture to 
the same extent as the Bonds surrendered. No service charge shall be made for any exchange, transfer, or registration 
of Bonds, but UIA may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may 
be imposed in relation thereto. UIA and the Trustee shall not be required to transfer or exchange any Bond (a) during 
the period from and including any Regular Record Date, to and including the next succeeding Interest Payment Date, 
(b) during the period from and including the day fifteen days prior to any Special Record Date, to and including the 
date of the proposed payment pertaining thereto, (c) during the period from and including the day fifteen days prior to 
the mailing of notice calling any Bonds for redemption, to and including the date of such mailing, or (d) at any time 
following the mailing of notice calling such Bond for redemption.   
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Redemption 

Optional Redemption.  The Series 2023 Bonds maturing on or after October 15, 2034, are subject to 
redemption prior to maturity at the option of UIA in whole or in part on any date on or after October 15, 2033, in such 
order of maturity as may be designated by UIA, at the redemption price of 100% the principal amount of the Series 
2023 Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.   

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The Series 2023 Bonds maturing on October 15, 2033, are subject to 
mandatory sinking fund redemption, by lot in such manner as the Trustee may determine, at a price equal to one 
hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date, on the dates and 
in the principal amounts as follows: 

Mandatory Sinking Fund 
Redemption Date 

(October 15) 

 
Principal 
Amount 

2025 $535,000 
2026 825,000 
2027 875,000 
2028 925,000 
2029 975,000 
2030 1,030,000 
2031 1,090,000 
2032 1,150,000 
2033* 1,215,000 

  
* Final Maturity 
 

The Series 2023 Bonds maturing on October 15, 2035, are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption, by 
lot in such manner as the Trustee may determine, at a price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal 
amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date, on the dates and in the principal amounts as follows: 

Mandatory Sinking Fund 
Redemption Date 

(October 15) 

 
Principal 
Amount 

2034 $1,285,000 
2035* 1,350,000 

  
* Final Maturity 
 

The Series 2023 Bonds maturing on October 15, 2038, are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption, by 
lot in such manner as the Trustee may determine, at a price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal 
amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date, on the dates and in the principal amounts as follows: 

Mandatory Sinking Fund 
Redemption Date 

(October 15) 

 
Principal 
Amount 

2036 $1,425,000 
2037 1,510,000 
2038* 1,595,000 

  
* Final Maturity 
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The Series 2023 Bonds maturing on October 15, 2047, are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption, by 
lot in such manner as the Trustee may determine, at a price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal 
amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date, on the dates and in the principal amounts as follows: 

Mandatory Sinking Fund 
Redemption Date 

(October 15) 

 
Principal 
Amount 

2039 $1,695,000 
2040 1,795,000 
2041 1,910,000 
2042 2,025,000 
2043 2,150,000 
2044 2,285,000 
2045 2,425,000 
2046 2,575,000 
2047* 2,735,000 

  
* Final Maturity 
 

If fewer than all of the Series 2023 Bonds maturing on October 15, 2033, 2035, 2038, or 2047 are redeemed 
in a manner other than pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund redemption, the principal amount so redeemed shall be 
credited at one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof by the Trustee against the obligation of UIA 
on future mandatory sinking fund redemption dates for the Series 2023 Bonds maturing on October 15, 2033, 2035, 
2038, or 2047, respectively, in such order as shall be directed by UIA.   

Selection of Series 2023 Bonds for Redemption 

If less than all of the Series 2023 Bonds of any maturity are to be so redeemed, the particular Series 2023 
Bonds or portion of Series 2023 Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee by lot, in such 
manner as the Trustee in its discretion may deem fair and appropriate.  

Notice of Redemption; Effect of Redemption 

Notice of Redemption. In the event any of the Bonds are to be redeemed, the Registrar shall cause notice to 
be given as required by the Indenture. Notice of such redemption (i) shall be filed with the Paying Agent designated 
for the Bonds being redeemed; and (ii) shall be mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, to all Registered Owners 
of Bonds to be redeemed at their addresses as they appear on the registration books of the Registrar at least thirty days 
but not more than sixty days prior to the date fixed for redemption. Such notice shall include, among other information 
specified by the Indenture, the following: (i) the complete official name of the Bonds; (ii) in the case of partial 
redemption of any Bonds, the respective principal amounts thereof to be redeemed; (iii) the date of mailing of 
redemption notices and the redemption date; and (iv) the redemption price. 

In addition to the foregoing, further notice of any redemption of Bonds under the Indenture shall be given by 
the Trustee, simultaneous with the mailed notice to Registered Owners, to the MSRB and all registered securities 
depositories (as reasonably determined by the Trustee) then in the business of holding substantial amounts of 
obligations of types comprising the Bonds. Such further notice shall contain the information required for a notice of 
redemption under the Indenture. Failure to give all or any portion of such further notice shall not in any manner defeat 
the effectiveness of a call for redemption. Upon the payment of the redemption price of Bonds being redeemed, each 
check or other transfer of funds issued for such purpose shall bear the CUSIP number, if any, identifying, by issue and 
maturity, the Bonds being redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other transfer. 

If at the time of mailing of any notice of optional redemption there shall not be on deposit with the Trustee 
moneys sufficient to redeem all the Bonds called for redemption, such notice shall state that such redemption shall be 
conditioned upon receipt by the Trustee on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption of moneys sufficient to pay 
the principal of and interest on such Bonds to be redeemed and that if such moneys shall not have been so received 
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said notice shall be of no force and effect and UIA shall not be required to redeem such Bonds.  In the event that such 
moneys are not so received, the redemption shall not be made and the Trustee shall within a reasonable time thereafter 
give notice, one time, in the same manner in which the notice of redemption was given, that such moneys were not so 
received. 

Any notice mailed shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the owner of such 
Bonds receives the notice. Receipt of such notice shall not be a condition precedent to such redemption, and failure 
so to receive any such notice by any of such Registered Owners shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the 
redemption of the Bonds. 

In case any Bond is to be redeemed in part only, the notice of redemption which relates to such Bond shall 
state also that on or after the redemption date, upon surrender of such Bond, a new Bond in principal amount equal to 
the unredeemed portion of such Bond will be issued. 

Partial Redemption.  In case any registered Bond shall be redeemed in part only, upon the presentation of 
such Bond for such partial redemption, UIA shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and shall deliver or cause 
to be delivered to or upon the written order of the Registered Owner thereof, at the expense of UIA, a Bond or Bonds 
of the same Series, interest rate and maturity, in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of such 
registered Bond.  Unless otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture, a portion of any Bond of a denomination of 
more than the minimum denomination of such Series specified in the Indenture or in the related Supplemental 
indenture to be redeemed will be in the principal amount of such minimum denomination or an integral multiple 
thereof and in selecting portions of such Bonds for redemption, the Trustee will treat each such Bond as representing 
that number of Bonds of such minimum denomination which is obtained by dividing the principal amount of such 
Bonds by such minimum denomination. 

Book-Entry Only System 

DTC will act as securities depository for the Series 2023 Bonds. The Series 2023 Bonds will be issued as 
fully registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as 
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully registered bond certificate will be issued for each 
maturity of the Series 2023 Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited 
with DTC. See “APPENDIX F—PROVISIONS REGARDING BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM.” 

THE SERIES 2023 PROJECT 

A portion of the proceeds from the Series 2023 Bonds will be used for the acquisition, construction, and 
installation of advanced communication lines, equipment and improvements, refreshment of major electronics, and 
related improvements and facilities as part of a fiber optic, open-access, advanced communications network. The 
Series 2023 Project includes the construction of “last mile” or access-level fiber in defined footprints, lateral 
infrastructure to commercially zoned areas, “curb to the premises” construction and connection to the UIA/UTOPIA 
Network where available. The majority of the Series 2023 Project will be undertaken throughout the boundaries of 
the Contracting Members and partner cities.  

The build-out of the network within the boundaries of the UTOPIA/UIA cities was substantially completed 
by the end of June 2022.  UIA estimates that approximately 180,000 accessible addresses will have fiber available 
from the curb, with connection from the curb to the premises orderable. As new subscribers order service in available 
areas, UIA installs the fiber connection from the curb to the premises.  Utah is experiencing one of the fastest growth 
rates in the nation.  As the Contracting Member cities grow, UIA has committed to expanding the network into new 
developments within the boundaries of each City.  UIA also takes advantage of business opportunities outside of the 
Contracting Member cities.  For example, the Utah Education Network (UEN) awards bids to UIA each year to 
connect schools to the UTOPIA/UIA network.  All business opportunities are analyzed to ensure quality return on 
investment. 
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ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The estimated sources of funds from the proceeds to be received from the sale of the Series 2023 Bonds and 
the estimated uses of such funds are shown in the following schedule: 

Sources:   

 Principal amount  ...........................................................  $35,630,000.00 

 Net Original Issue Discount ...........................................  (147,310.60) 

 Total .......................................................  $35,482,689.40 

Uses:   

 Deposit to Construction Account ...................................  $30,000,000.00 

 Deposit to Debt Service Reserve Account .....................  2,820,118.75 

 Deposit to Capitalized Interest Account (1) ....................  2,083,997.92 

 Costs of Issuance (2) .......................................................  578,572.73 

 Total .......................................................  $35,482,689.40 

  
(1) Interest with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds capitalized through October 15, 2024.   
 
(2) Includes Underwriter’s discount, legal, municipal advisor, and Trustee fees, and other costs and expenses 

related to the issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds. 
 
 
 
 
 

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.) 
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DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE FOR THE BONDS  

Payment Dates 
Series 2023 Bonds 

 Principal 
Series 2023 Bonds 

   Interest(1) 
Outstanding Parity 

   Bonds Debt Service(2) Fiscal Year Total 
4/15/2024 - $1,056,273 $3,931,819  $4,988,092 
10/15/2024 - 1,027,725  10,111,819   
4/15/2025 - 1,027,725  4,550,094  16,717,363 
10/15/2025 $785,000 1,027,725  11,770,094   
4/15/2026 - 1,006,763  4,385,244  18,974,826 
10/15/2026 825,000 1,006,763  11,935,244   
4/15/2027 - 984,075  4,212,594  18,963,676 
10/15/2027 875,000 984,075  12,137,594   
4/15/2028 - 960,013  4,022,819  18,979,501 
10/15/2028 925,000 960,013  12,332,819   
4/15/2029 - 934,575  3,823,769  18,976,176 
10/15/2029 975,000 934,575  12,533,769   
4/15/2030 - 907,763  3,613,931  18,965,038 
10/15/2030 1,030,000 907,763  12,738,931   
4/15/2031 - 879,438  3,404,131  18,960,262 
10/15/2031 1,090,000 879,438  12,949,131   
4/15/2032 - 849,463  3,184,594  18,952,625 
10/15/2032 1,150,000 849,463  13,184,594   
4/15/2033 - 817,838  2,954,438  18,956,332 
10/15/2033 1,215,000 817,838  13,419,438   
4/15/2034 - 784,425  2,713,463  18,950,164 
10/15/2034 1,285,000 784,425  13,663,463   
4/15/2035 - 750,694  2,460,450  18,944,032 
10/15/2035 1,350,000 750,694  13,925,450   
4/15/2036 - 715,256  2,195,356  18,936,756 
10/15/2036 1,425,000 715,256  14,195,356   
4/15/2037 - 675,178  1,917,741  18,928,531 
10/15/2037 1,510,000 675,178  14,477,741   
4/15/2038 - 632,709  1,626,984  18,922,613 
10/15/2038 1,595,000 632,709  14,781,984   
4/15/2039 - 587,850  1,322,288  18,919,831 
10/15/2039 1,695,000 587,850  15,097,288   
4/15/2040 - 537,000  1,003,041  18,920,179 
10/15/2040 1,795,000 537,000  15,428,041   
4/15/2041 - 483,150  668,525  18,911,716 
10/15/2041 1,910,000 483,150  8,448,525   
4/15/2042 - 425,850  504,375  11,771,900 
10/15/2042 2,025,000 425,850  8,599,375   
4/15/2043 - 365,100  348,625  11,763,950 
10/15/2043 2,150,000 365,100  5,358,625   
4/15/2044 - 300,600  254,575  8,428,900 
10/15/2044 2,285,000 300,600  5,454,575   
4/15/2045 - 232,050  156,725  8,428,950 
10/15/2045 2,425,000 232,050  5,556,725   
4/15/2046 - 159,300  54,875  8,427,950 
10/15/2046 2,575,000 159,300  2,249,875   
4/15/2047 - 82,050 - 5,066,225 
10/15/2047 2,735,000 82,050           -  
4/15/2028           -           -           - 2,817,050 

Total $35,630,000 $32,281,723 $313,660,906  
  
(1) Debt service on the Series 2023 Bonds will be paid from capitalized interest through October 15, 2024. 
(2) Amount excludes debt service on the Series 2022 Bonds which will be paid from capitalized interest through October 15, 

2024.  
Note: Amounts have been rounded.  
 
(Source:  The Municipal Advisor.)   
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SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS 

Pledge of the Indenture 

The Series 2023 Bonds constitute a Series of Bonds issued pursuant to the Indenture as special limited 
obligations of the UIA, secured equally and ratably by and payable exclusively from the Net Revenues of UIA and 
certain other funds and accounts pledged under the Indenture. Payments on the Series 2023 Bonds will be made on a 
parity with the payments on the Outstanding Parity Bonds and any Additional Bonds that may be issued in the future 
pursuant to the Indenture.   

The Bonds are not a general obligation of UIA, any Member, the State or any agency, instrumentality or 
political subdivision thereof. Neither the faith and credit nor the ad valorem taxing power of any Member, the State 
or any agency, instrumentality or political subdivision thereof is assigned or pledged for payment of the Bonds. UIA 
will not mortgage or grant a security interest in the physical assets of the UIA Network to secure payment of the 
Bonds. UIA has no taxing power. 

To secure the timely payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, UIA has pledged and assigned to 
the Trustee the Net Revenues and certain other funds and accounts established by the Indenture. 

General  

Pursuant to the General Indenture, “Net Revenues” means all Revenues after payment of all Operation and 
Maintenance Expenses.  

“Revenues” is defined under the General Indenture as all revenues, fees, income, rents, sale proceeds and 
receipts received or earned by UIA from or attributable to the ownership or operation of the UIA Network, including 
moneys received from the imposition of fees and charges to providers and end users and all payments received 
pursuant to the Service Contract, including any Franchise Tax Revenues, together with all interest earned by and 
profits derived from the sale of investments in the related funds thereof. Revenues do not include gifts or grants 
received by UIA. 

“Operation and Maintenance Expenses” is defined under the General Indenture as all expenses reasonably 
incurred by UIA in connection with the operation and maintenance of the UIA Network, whether incurred by UIA or 
paid to any other entity, including UTOPIA or any Member, pursuant to contract or otherwise, necessary to keep the 
UIA Network in efficient operating condition, including cost of audits required, payment of promotional and 
marketing expenses and real estate brokerage fees, payment of premiums for insurance and, generally all expenses, 
exclusive of depreciation (including depreciation related expenses of any joint venture) which under generally 
accepted accounting practices are properly allocable to operation and maintenance; provided, however, only such 
expenses as are reasonably and properly necessary to the efficient operation and maintenance of the UIA Network 
shall be included. 

See “—Net Revenues of UIA,” below.   

Flow of Funds  

The General Indenture provides that: 

(a) All Revenues shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund and accounted for by UIA separate and apart 
from all other moneys of UIA. 

(b) As a first charge and lien on the Revenues, UIA will cause to be paid from the Revenue Fund from 
time to time as UIA will determine, all Operation and Maintenance Expenses of UIA as the same become due and 
payable, and thereupon such expenses will be promptly paid.   
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(c) So long as any Bonds are Outstanding, as a second charge and lien on the Revenues, i.e. from Net 
Revenues, UIA will, on or before the first Business Day of each month, transfer to the Trustee for deposit into the 
Bond Fund from the Revenue Fund an amount equal to: 

(i) one-sixth of the interest falling due on the Bonds on the next succeeding Interest Payment 
Date established for the Bonds (provided, however, that so long as there are moneys representing capitalized 
interest on deposit with the Trustee to pay interest on the Bonds next coming due, UIA need not allocate from 
the Revenue Fund to pay interest on the Bonds); plus 

(ii) one-twelfth of the principal and premium, if any, falling due on the next succeeding 
principal payment date established for the Bonds; plus 

(iii) one-twelfth the Sinking Fund Installments, if any, falling due on the next succeeding 
Sinking Fund Installment payment date; 

(iv) the sum of which will be sufficient, when added to the existing balance in the Bond Fund, 
to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds promptly on each such Interest Payment 
Date as the same become due and payable.   

(d) As a third charge and lien on the Revenues (on a parity basis), UIA will make the following transfers 
to the Trustee on or before the 15th day of each month of each year: 

(i) To the extent the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any, is not funded with a Reserve 
Instrument or Instruments, (A) to the accounts in the Debt Service Reserve Fund any amounts required by 
the Supplemental Indenture to accumulate therein the applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement with 
respect to each Series of Bonds at the times and in the amounts provided in the Indenture and (B) if funds 
will have been withdrawn from an account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund or any account in the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund is at any time funded in an amount less than the applicable Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement, UIA will deposit Revenues in such account(s) in the Debt Service Reserve Fund sufficient in 
amount to restore such account(s) within one year with 12 substantially equal payments during such period 
(unless otherwise provided for by the Supplemental Indenture governing the applicable Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement); or a ratable portion (based on the amount to be transferred pursuant to the General Indenture) 
of remaining Revenues if less than the amount necessary; and 

(ii) Equally and ratably to the accounts of the Reserve Instrument Fund with respect to all 
Reserve Instruments which are in effect and are expected to continue in effect after the end of such month, 
such amount of the remaining Revenues, or a ratable portion (based on the amount to be transferred pursuant 
to the General Indenture) of the amount so remaining if less than the amount necessary, that is required to be 
paid, on or before the next such monthly transfer or deposit of Revenues into the Reserve Instrument Fund, 
to the Reserve Instrument Provider pursuant to any Reserve Instrument Agreement, other than Reserve 
Instrument Costs, in order to cause the Reserve Instrument Coverage to equal the Reserve Instrument Limit 
within one year from any draw date under the Reserve Instrument. 

(e) As a fourth charge and lien on the Revenues, UIA will deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund 
any amount required by the Indenture to accumulate therein the Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement. In the 
event that the amount on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund is ever less than the Repair and Replacement 
Reserve Requirement for the Bonds then Outstanding (or, after the issuance of Additional Bonds, the amount required 
to be on deposit therein), from time to time, UIA will deposit to the Repair and Replacement Fund from the Revenue 
Fund all remaining Revenues of UIA Network after payments required under the General Indenture have been made 
until there is on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund an amount equal to the Repair and Replacement Reserve 
Requirement. Subject to the provisions of the General Indenture, this provision is not intended to limit, and will not 
limit, the right of UIA to deposit additional moneys in the Repair and Replacement Fund from time to time as UIA 
may determine. 

The Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement at the time of issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds is $0.   
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(f) Subject to making the foregoing deposits, UIA may use the balance of the Revenues accounted for 
in the Revenue Fund for any of the following: (i) redemption of Bonds; (ii) refinancing, refunding or advance 
refunding of any Bonds; (iii) any amounts owed by UIA to any Contracting Member under the Service Contract; or 
(iv) for any other lawful purpose, including any intergovernmental transfers, including but not limited to transfers to 
UTOPIA. 

Debt Service Reserve Accounts 

The General Indenture establishes a Debt Service Reserve Fund, held by the Trustee. Each Supplemental 
Indenture authorizing the issuance of a Series of Bonds will specify if a Debt Service Reserve Account will be 
established for such Series and the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, as applicable. The Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement will be deposited: 

(a) immediately upon the issuance and delivery of such Series of Bonds from (i) proceeds from 
the sale thereof or from any other legally available source, (ii) by a Reserve Instrument or Instruments, or 
(iii) any combination thereof;  

(b) from available Net Revenues over the period of time specified therein; or  

(c) from any combination of (a) and (b) above; provided however, the foregoing provisions 
will be subject to the requirements of any Security Instrument Issuer set forth in the related Supplemental 
Indenture. 

In calculating the amount on deposit in each account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund, the amount of any 
Reserve Instrument Coverage will be treated as an amount on deposit in such account. If at any time the amount on 
deposit in any account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund is less than the minimum amount to be maintained, the 
Trustee is required to act in accordance with the provisions of the General Indenture to cure the deficiency. Moneys 
on deposit in any account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund will be used to make up any deficiencies in the Bond 
Fund only for the Series of Bonds secured by said account, and any Reserve Instrument will only be drawn upon with 
respect to the Series of Bonds for which such Reserve Instrument was obtained. For more information about the 
operation and use of the Debt Service Reserve Fund, see “APPENDIX B—Extracts of Certain Provisions of the 
Indenture.” 

UIA will fund a Series 2023 Debt Service Reserve Account as established pursuant to the Indenture. The 
Series 2023 Debt Service Reserve Requirement is $2,820,118.75, which is the maximum annual debt service for the 
Series 2023 Bonds.  The Series 2023 Debt Service Reserve Account will be funded by proceeds of the Series 2023 
Bonds.   

The Series 2022 Bonds are additionally secured by the Series 2022 Debt Service Reserve Account which is 
currently funded in the amount of $2,292,046.   

The Series 2021 Bonds are additionally secured by the Series 2021 Debt Service Reserve Account which is 
currently funded in the amount of $3,426,419.   

The Series 2019 Bonds are additionally secured by the Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Account which is 
currently funded in the amount of $3,403,686.   

The Series 2018A Bonds are additionally secured by the Series 2018A Debt Service Reserve Account which 
is currently funded in the amount of $1,709,696.   

The Series 2017A Bonds are additionally secured by the Series 2017A Debt Service Reserve Account which 
is currently funded in the amount of $5,703,013, and the Series 2017B Bonds are additionally secured by the Series 
2017B Debt Service Reserve Account which is currently funded in the amount of $366,828.   
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Moneys on deposit in any account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be used to make up any deficiencies 
in the Bond Fund only for the Series of Bonds secured by said account and any Reserve Instrument shall only be 
drawn upon with respect to the Series of Bonds for which such Reserve Instrument was obtained.   

Additional Bonds 

UIA may not issue additional indebtedness, bonds or notes payable from Net Revenues or any portion thereof 
on a priority basis senior to the Bonds or the Security Instrument Repayment Obligations. UIA may issue Additional 
Bonds and other parity obligations if the following requirements have been met: 

(a) (i) A certificate, based upon the most recent audited financial statements of UIA or a report prepared 
by UIA’s auditor, will be delivered to the Trustee by an Authorized Representative to the effect that the sum of the 
Net Revenues and any Available Franchise Tax Revenues for any Year within the 24 months immediately preceding 
the issuance of the Additional Bonds was at least 150% of the maximum Aggregate Annual Debt Service for any Bond 
Fund Year on all of the Bonds that will be Outstanding upon the issuance of such Additional Bonds; or (ii) An 
Authorized Representative will have delivered to the Trustee a certificate from a Qualified Consultant:   

(1) setting forth projected Available Franchise Tax Revenues and the Estimated Net Revenues 
as herein described (assuming, if applicable, the completion of any contemplated additions, improvements, 
extensions, replacements or repairs to the UIA Network (collectively, the “Improvements”)) either: (i) for 
each of the two Bond Fund Years succeeding the latest estimated date of completion of the Improvements, if 
proceeds of the Additional Bonds are used to fund interest during the construction period; or (ii) if (i) is not 
the case, for the then current Bond Fund Year and the next succeeding Bond Fund Year; and 

(2) verifying that the sum of the projected Available Franchise Tax Revenues and the 
Estimated Net Revenues as shown in (1) above for each Bond Fund Year during which Bonds are Outstanding 
is not less than 150% of the maximum annual debt service requirement for each of such Bond Fund Years 
with respect to all of the Bonds which would then be Outstanding upon the issuance of such Additional Bonds 
so proposed to be issued. 

For purposes of this subsection (ii) “Estimated Net Revenues” will be determined by the Qualified Consultant 
as follows: 

(A) The Net Revenues for any Year in the 24 months immediately preceding the delivery of 
the Additional Bonds shall first be determined. Net Revenues may be adjusted to give full effect to rate 
increases implemented prior to the issuance of the Additional Bonds. 

(B) Next, the additional Net Revenues, if any, resulting from the Improvements financed with 
proceeds of the Additional Bonds will be estimated by the Qualified Consultant for the applicable Bond Fund 
Years as determined in (ii)(l)(i) or (ii) above. 

(C) The Estimated Net Revenues will be the sum of the Net Revenues as calculated in (A) 
above, plus 75% of the estimated additional Net Revenues as calculated in (B) above. 

(b) All payments required by the General Indenture to be made into the Bond Fund must have been 
made in full, and there must be in the Debt Service Reserve Fund the full amount required by the General Indenture 
to be accumulated at such time, taking into account any Reserve Instrument Coverage. 

(c) The coverage test set forth in (a)(i) and (a)(ii) above will not apply to the issuance of any Additional 
Bonds to the extent such Bonds are issued for the purpose of refunding Bonds issued under the Indenture, and the 
Average Aggregate Annual Debt Service for such Additional Bonds does not exceed the then remaining Average 
Aggregate Annual Debt Service for the Bonds being refunded therewith. 

(d) All Repayment Obligations then due and owing will have been paid. 
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(e) The proceeds of the Additional Bonds, less costs of issuance and funding of reserves, must be used 
in connection with (i) the refunding of Bonds issued under the Indenture or any borrowing of UIA, (ii) the financing 
of a Project or (iii) any other lawful purpose. 

(f) No Event of Default is existing under the General Indenture on the date of authentication of such 
Additional Bonds, unless (i) the Security Instrument Issuers, Reserve Instrument Issuers and Owners of all 
Outstanding Bonds (subject to the consent authorized by the General Indenture) have each consented to the issuance 
of such Additional Bonds or (ii) upon the issuance of such Additional Bonds and the application of the proceeds 
thereof, all such Events of Default will be cured. 

Pursuant to the foregoing, the Estimated Net Revenues will be at least 150% of the maximum Aggregate 
Annual Debt Service for any Bond Fund Year on all of the Bonds that will be Outstanding upon the issuance of the 
Series 2023 Bonds.   

Outstanding Parity Bonds 

The UIA has previously issued the Outstanding Parity Bonds which are secured by the Net Revenues on a 
parity with the Series 2023 Bonds.  See “UIA—Outstanding Obligations of UIA.”  

Net Revenues of UIA  

As described above under “Flow of Funds,” Revenues are available to pay debt service on the Bonds after 
the payment of all Operation and Maintenance Expenses. Revenues consist primarily of amounts paid to UIA from 
(1) the Service Provider Agreements and (2) amounts paid pursuant to the Service Contract.     

Service Provider Agreements 

Approximately 67% of UIA’s Operating Revenues for fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, and 68% of UIA’s 
Operating Revenues for fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 were derived from Service Provider Agreements. Each 
Service Provider Agreement intends to memorialize a relationship between the Agency and the respective qualified 
service provider pursuant to which the Agency builds and operates the UIA Network, and the service provider is 
expected to actively market to potential users and provide high quality services. Pursuant to each Service Provider 
Agreement, the respective service provider pays the Agency to use the UIA Network to provide services, on a non-
exclusive basis, to end residential and business users within the Members’ boundaries. The payments to the Agency 
are paid monthly by the service provider, and the amounts are determined pursuant to the prices and fees identified in 
the UTOPIA/UIA Product Catalog. Prices vary based on the products and services provided by such service provider, 
whether the user is a residence or business, connection speed and capacity and other variables. Each Service Provider 
Agreement has an initial term of one year, which automatically renews for additional one-year terms, unless either 
party at its sole discretion elects not to renew such agreement by providing at least 90 days written notice of termination 
prior to the expiration of the term. 

Service Contract 

General. Approximately 31% of UIA’s Operating Revenues for fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 and 31% of 
UIA’s Revenues for fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, were derived from the Service Contract. Pursuant to the Service 
Contract, the Agency provides advanced telecommunications services via the UIA Network to residents and 
businesses of the Contracting Members in exchange for the Service Fees (defined below). The Agency markets to and 
subsequently facilitates connection to the UIA Network for the residents and businesses of each Contracting Member 
(each, a “Customer” and collectively, the “Customers”), and the fees charged by or on behalf of each Contracting 
Member to its Customers for such connections are the “Service Fees.” The stated termination date of the Service 
Contract is April 1, 2041. See “APPENDIX E—Service Contract.”   

With respect to connection services the Agency provides to each Customer, such Customer pays a monthly 
fee pursuant to one of the following options: 
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(1) The Customer makes a monthly payment for a contractual utility enhancement (“CUE”), 
the same being the connection of the UIA Network to its residence or business, for a term of 10 or 20 years. 
Upon full payment at the end of the term, such residence or business will never need to pay additional 
connection or access fees related to the UIA Network. The CUE agreements are with Members, and each 
Member is responsible for billing and collecting monthly payments from its participating residents and 
businesses.  The Member passes through to the Agency 95% of the amounts payable under the CUE 
agreements and retains the remaining 5%; or 

(2) The Customer pays a monthly fee to access a connection to the UIA Network pursuant to 
a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”). The Customer pays the fee for as long as it desires such 
connection. The Agency bills the Customer on behalf of the Member and receives 100% of the receipts 
pursuant to such Lease Agreement. 

Operation of the Service Contract.  If the Service Fees are not sufficient to meet the UIA Revenue 
Requirement (which is the sum of Operation and Maintenance Expenses and Capital Costs, including debt service on 
the Bonds) under the Service Contract, each Contracting Member is obligated, if requested by the Agency, to remit to 
the Agency a portion of its Franchise Tax Revenues to fund the difference between the UIA Revenue Requirement 
and the Service Fees (the “Revenue Difference”). The obligation of each Contracting Member to remit a portion of its 
Franchise Tax Revenues (its “Franchise Tax Obligation”) is limited to a percentage of the Revenue Difference and to 
a maximum annual amount. For a list of the Contracting Members and their respective Franchise Tax Obligations, see 
“FRANCHISE TAX OBLIGATION” below. Each Contracting Member is required to meet its Franchise Tax 
Obligation to the extent necessary to cover its applicable portion of the Revenue Difference, regardless of the amount 
of Service Fees it pays to UIA. Under the Service Contract, the Agency is required to repay any Franchise Tax 
Obligation payment made by a Contracting Member.  Such repayment would be made on a subordinate basis to 
payment of any debt service on the Bonds.  See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS—
Flow of Funds.”  

Since inception of the Agency, Franchise Tax Obligations have not been requested or required by the Agency 
to meet its obligations.   

A Contracting Member’s other obligations payable from its Franchise Tax Revenues (the “City Debt”) are 
required to be payable on a parity with or subordinate to its Franchise Tax Obligation, except for obligations that 
existed at the time of the execution of the Service Contract or future City Debt issued on a parity with obligations that 
existed at the time of execution of the Service Contract. See “CONTRACTING MEMBERS” for a description of City 
Debt. 

Payment obligations of Contracting Members under the Service Contract are not joint and several obligations, 
and no Contracting Member is obligated to satisfy the Franchise Tax Obligation of any other Contracting Member. 
Further, such payment obligations are not general obligations of the Contracting Members and are payable solely from 
the Service Fees and the Franchise Tax Obligations. Moreover, the Contracting Members have agreed to make all 
payments under the Service Contract, including Franchise Tax Obligation payments, whether or not the UIA Network 
or any portion thereof is acquired, completed, operable or operating. In any such scenario, the Franchise Tax 
Obligations may become the primary source of funds to meet the UIA Revenue Requirement. The obligations of the 
Contracting Members to pay the Service Fees to UIA are irrevocable, absolute and unconditional and are not subject 
to any reduction, whether by defense, recoupment, counterclaim or offset or otherwise. 
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Franchise Tax Obligation of Contracting Members 

Franchise Tax Revenues are included as a component of Revenues under the General Indenture. The 
Franchise Tax Obligation of each Contracting Member is limited to a maximum annual amount specific to each 
Contracting Member. Set forth below is a list of the Contracting Members, the allocated percentages of any Revenue 
Difference and the respective maximum Franchise Tax Obligations. 

Contracting 
Member 

Percentage of 
Revenue Difference 

Maximum Annual 
Franchise Tax Obligation 

Brigham City 0.62% $31,831 
Centerville City 3.63 186,737 

Layton City 18.20 937,272 
Lindon City 3.35 172,516 
Midvale City 6.60 339,988 
Murray City 13.40 690,241 
City of Orem 23.76 1,223,786 

West Valley City 30.44 1,568,781 
                                      Total 100.00% $5,151,152 

 
The Franchise Tax Revenues pledged under the Service Contract by the Contracting Members represent a 

portion of those revenues received from the levy of the Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax (defined below). 

The Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax Act of the State, Title 10, Chapter 1, Part 3 Utah Code Annotated 
1953, as amended, provides that a municipality may levy a municipal energy sales and use tax (the “Municipal Energy 
Sales and Use Tax”) on the sale or use of gas and electricity within the municipality, including sales by the 
municipality, for the purpose of raising revenue and to create a more competitive environment for the energy industry 
in accordance with the limitations and provisions set forth in the Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax Act. The 
municipality may levy a Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax at a rate not to exceed 6% of the delivered value of the 
taxable energy. All of the Contracting Members currently levy the Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax at the 
maximum rate of 6%. 

The Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax is imposed on the “delivered value” of taxable energy provided 
within the Contracting Member. “Delivered value” refers to the fair market value of the taxable energy and includes 
the value of the energy itself and any transportation, freight, customer demand charges, service charges or other costs 
typically incurred in providing taxable energy in usable form to customers within the Contracting Member. Each 
Contracting Member has either contracted with the Utah State Tax Commission to perform all functions incident to 
the collection and administration of the revenues derived from the levy of the Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax, 
or if the municipality operates its own utility, collects the revenues as part of the utility bill that it sends to its customers. 
Each Contracting Member receives such revenues on a monthly basis.  
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Revenue and Expense Details 

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the sources of the Revenues of the Agency by type of Customer. 
The Revenues shown in this table do not include Franchise Tax Obligations in the annual aggregate amount of 
$5,151,152, which have not been requested or required to meet the obligations of the Agency since its inception.  

 Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 

    2023(1) 2022 2021 2020 2019 

Residential $20,242,184 $17,111,485 $13,759,522 $7,833,014 $6,083,165 

Business 12,577,872 10,675,086 8,503,601 8,125,536 6,573,492 

Installation 335,393 160,519 120,998 104,592 112,860 

Miscellaneous(2) 163,295 143,244 63,549 954,641 745,959 

Contract Revenue(3)           –           –           – 165,400 1,851,696 

Total $33,318,744 $28,090,334 $22,447,670 $17,183,183 $15,367,172 
  
(1) Fiscal year 2023 amounts are preliminary and based on unaudited financial statements.   
(2) Miscellaneous sources of Revenues include rental income received for use of building, early contract termination fees, 

other miscellaneous charges, and bad debt expense (offsets revenue). 
(3) Contract Revenue represents gross amount received from non-UTOPIA/UIA cities for construction of their own fiber 

network.  Associated costs were $2,191,574 for FY 2019 and $93,297 for FY 2020.   
(Source: The Agency.) 
 

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Revenues of the Agency by contractual relationship: 

 Fiscal Year Ending June 30 

   2023(1) 2022 2021 2020 2019 
Service Contract 
  (lease agreements) $10,470,644 31.4% $8,910,975 31.7% $7,240,251 32.3% $4,191,256 24.4% $2,641,233 17.2% 
Service Contract 
  (CUE agreements) – – – – – – 247,500 1.4 837,767 5.5 
Service Provider 
  Agreements 22,349,412 67.1 18,875,596 67.2 15,022,872 66.9 11,519,794 67.0 9,177,657 59.7 

Installation 335,393 1.0 160,519 0.6 120,998 0.5 104,592 0.6 112,860 0.7 

Miscellaneous(2) 163,295 0.5 143,244 0.5 63,549 0.3 954,641 5.6 745,959 4.9 
Construction  
  Contracts           –    –           –    –           –     – 165,400 1.0 1,851,696 12.0 

       Total $33,318,744 100.0 $28,090,334 100.0 $22,447,670 100.0 $17,183,183 100.0 $15,367,172 100.0 

  
(1) Fiscal year 2023 amounts are preliminary and based on unaudited financial statements. 
(2) Miscellaneous includes rental income received for use of building, early contract termination fees, other miscellaneous 

charges, and bad debt expense (offsets revenue). 
(Source: The Agency.) 
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The table below sets forth a breakdown of operating expenses of the Agency.  

 Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 

    2023(1) 2022 2021 2020 2019 
      
Marketing Costs $1,444,068 $1,295,195 $876,739 $769,906 $634,749 

Professional Services(2) 40,922 35,311 240,797 178,222 172,597 

Network Maintenance 8,890,833 7,186,316 5,668,284 4,445,694 3,209,354 

Contract Costs(3) – – – 93,297 2,191,574 

Depreciation(4) 8,439,000 7,598,083 6,757,075 8,990,683 6,301,884 

     Total $21,072,023 $16,114,905 $13,542,895 $14,477,802 $12,510,158 

  
(1) Fiscal year 2023 amounts are preliminary and based on unaudited financial statements. 
(2) Professional Services donated by or paid to UTOPIA are reported as Network Maintenance. 
(3) The Agency entered into contracts with non-UTOPIA/UIA cities to build their fiber optic networks.  See 

related Construction Contract revenue of $1,851,696 (fiscal year 2019) and $165,400 (fiscal year 2020) in 
the immediately preceding revenue tables.   

(4) Not a cash expense.  Life of fiber and conduit was extended from 25 years to 40 years beginning July 1, 2020, 
resulting in lower annual depreciation in fiscal year 2021. 

(Source:  The Agency.) 
 
Customer Concentration 

As measured by Revenues generated per Customer, the Agency does not have a concentration of end users.  
No single Customer provides more than 5% of Recurring Monthly Revenue (defined below) and the ten largest 
Customers provide less than 10% of Recurring Monthly Revenue.  The following table provides a breakdown of 
residential and business Customers and Recurring Monthly Revenue.   

 Fiscal Year 

    2023(1) 2022 2021 2020 2019 

Residential customers 35,911 30,532 25,563 18,516 12,021  

Business customers 4,854 3,082 2,476 2,177 1,896  

     Total customers 40,765 33,614 28,039 20,693  13,917  

      
Average Recurring 
    Monthly Revenue(2) $2,736,726 $2,322,067 $1,864,082 $1,450,330 $1,136,249 
  
(1) Fiscal year 2023 amounts are preliminary and based on unaudited financial statements. 
(2) “Recurring Monthly Revenue” is revenue derived from service fees and other recurring operating revenues 

and excludes one-time fees.   
(Source:  The Agency.) 
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Historical and Projected Debt Service Coverage on the Bonds 

 

FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030 FY 2031

Operating Revenue

Residential connections (lease fees) 2,121,671      3,517,047      4,808,126      7,089,176      8,733,725      10,470,644    12,592,803    14,600,429    15,101,867    15,913,519    16,518,647    17,022,572    17,534,485    18,057,382    

Residential service provider fees 1,929,948      3,187,011      4,073,037      6,534,840      8,254,125      9,771,540      11,749,785    13,422,808    14,475,823    15,271,731    15,828,965    16,282,206    16,723,797    17,174,782    

Business service provider fees 5,720,453      6,573,492      7,449,110      8,362,509      10,675,086    12,577,872    14,543,336    16,195,436    17,804,536    19,403,636    21,001,736    22,594,836    24,184,936    25,775,036    

LESS Layton's share of revenues -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 (246,193)        (137,018)        (138,068)        (137,968)        (142,168)        (141,043)        (141,668)        (144,043)        (143,293)        

Bandwidth/DIA/NNI 598,752         -                 278,036         141,092         -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Installations 115,653         96,327           229,635         120,998         160,519         234,680         80,000           80,000           80,000           80,000           80,000           80,000           80,000           80,000           

Construction contract revenue (Idaho Falls) 1,851,696      165,400         -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Miscellaneous 155,338         141,600         179,840         199,054         266,880         264,008         161,600         161,600         161,600         161,600         161,600         161,600         161,600         161,600         

Total Operating Revenue (1) 10,641,815    15,367,173    17,183,185    22,447,668    28,090,336    33,072,551    38,990,506    44,322,205    47,485,857    50,688,318    53,449,905    55,999,546    58,540,775    61,105,506    

Total Franchise Tax Revenue Pledge (2) 5,151,152      5,151,152      5,151,152      5,151,152      5,151,152      5,151,152      5,151,152      5,151,152      5,151,152      5,151,152      5,151,152      5,151,152      5,151,152      5,151,152      

Total Non-Operating Revenue 1,527,822      1,720,829      1,571,527      1,583,144      429,441         1,148,732      600,000         600,000         600,000         600,000         600,000         600,000         600,000         600,000         

Total Revenue 17,320,789    22,239,153    23,905,864    29,181,964    33,670,928    39,372,435    44,741,658    50,073,357    53,237,009    56,439,470    59,201,057    61,750,698    64,291,927    66,856,658    

Total Expenditures (3) 3,021,597      6,208,274      5,487,119      6,785,820      8,516,820      10,374,823    11,958,655    12,801,969    13,536,286    14,212,820    14,852,025    15,499,572    16,181,218    16,903,895    

Net Revenue 14,299,192    16,030,880    18,418,746    22,396,144    25,154,108    28,997,612    32,783,003    37,271,387    39,700,723    42,226,650    44,349,031    46,251,125    48,110,708    49,952,763    

Net Debt Service (4)

Debt refunded w/ Series 2017 A&B 3,107,685      -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Series 2017 A&B 1,172,824      6,237,125      5,781,575      5,775,125      5,751,600      5,752,400      5,743,125      5,533,750      5,528,750      5,527,500      5,529,500      5,524,500      5,522,250      5,517,375      

UIA Series 2018 867,543         1,676,088      1,677,838      1,678,088      1,676,838      1,674,088      1,674,713      1,678,463      1,675,338      1,675,338      1,678,213      1,677,700      1,678,613      

Layton Series 2018 789,673         1,148,744      1,454,519      1,563,694      1,562,644      1,562,744      1,558,544      1,559,669      1,559,044      1,556,669      1,557,419      

Morgan Series 2019 101,638         165,013         166,638         168,013         169,138         165,138         166,013         166,638         167,013         167,950         

Payson Series 2019 65,894           219,538         219,913         220,037         219,913         219,538         223,788         222,663         221,288         220,338         

Westpoint Series 2019 130,775         433,050         430,950         433,550         430,850         432,850         429,550         430,950         431,950         432,550         

UIA Series 2019 3,340,550      3,340,650      3,338,550      3,339,150      3,339,225      3,337,975      3,342,475      3,342,475      3,337,975      3,339,100      

Clearfield Series 2020 501,169         730,213         730,588         730,212         733,963         731,838         730,788         730,888         730,388         

UIA Series 2021 3,364,225      3,364,300      3,363,025      3,360,400      3,362,850      3,364,650      3,363,650      3,359,850      

Pleasant Grove Series 2021 317,925         1,066,500      1,062,750      1,063,850      1,062,450      1,063,425      1,063,950      1,066,400      

Syracuse Series 2021 366,975         1,214,100      1,214,300      1,214,300      1,211,525      1,213,100      1,211,300      1,213,600      

Santa Clara Series 2022 405,113         404,812         404,312         403,613         407,612         406,312         404,813         

Cedar Hills Series 2022 357,494         357,794         357,894         357,794         357,494         356,994         361,194         

UIA Series 2022 750,000         2,245,875      2,246,625      2,250,250      2,246,750      2,246,125      2,248,125      

West Haven Series 2022 465,550         1,291,850      1,287,975      1,288,225      1,214,350      1,216,350      1,290,475      

UIA Series 2023 1,027,725      2,189,488      2,815,838      2,819,088      2,819,588      2,817,337      2,817,200      

Total Net Debt Service (5) 4,280,509      7,104,668      7,457,663      8,242,636      12,217,289    13,543,177    17,916,296    22,313,227    25,789,189    26,402,040    26,413,966    26,342,240    26,327,751    26,405,390    

Debt Service Coverage 3.34               2.26               2.47               2.72               2.06               2.14               1.83               1.67               1.54               1.60               1.68               1.76               1.83               1.89               

(Source: UIA and the Municipal Advisor)

(1)  Projected; based on UIA's audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Does not include available Franchise Tax Revenues. 

(2)  Pledged by the Contracting Members pursuant to the Service Contract.

(3)  Excludes depreciaiton. UIA's Operation and Maintenance expenses primarily consist of the monthly fees it pays to UTOPIA pursuant to the UTOPIA Service Agreement. 

(4)  Does not include debt service paid from capitalized interest.

(5)  Net Revenues divided by Net Debt Service

---------------Historical--------------- ------------------------------Projected------------------------------
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UIA 

General 

Creation and purpose.  UIA is a separate legal entity, body politic and corporate, and a political subdivision 
of the State regularly created, established, organized and existing under and by virtue of the provisions of the Interlocal 
Agreement, the Interlocal Cooperation Act and the State constitution.  The Members include the following Utah 
municipalities:  Brigham City, Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, Midvale City, Murray City, City of Orem, 
Payson City and West Valley City.  A map showing the location of the Members is provided on page ii of this Official 
Statement. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, cities may exercise and enjoy jointly with other 
cities any power, privileges or authority exercised or capable of being exercised by a city.  State law permits 
municipalities to purchase, lease, construct or equip communications facilities that are designed to provide services 
within the municipality, and that the municipality uses for internal municipal government purposes, or by written 
contract, leases, or sells capacity in or grants other similar rights to a private provider to use the facilities in connection 
with a private provider offering cable television services or public telecommunications services.  The Interlocal 
Cooperation Act permits cities to make the most efficient use of their power by enabling them to cooperate with other 
cities on the basis of mutual advantage and thereby to provide services and facilities in a manner and under forms of 
governmental organization that will accord best with geographic, economic, population and other factors influencing 
the needs of development of local communities and will provide the benefit of economy of scale, economic 
development and utilization of natural resources for the overall promotion of the general welfare of the State. 

Corporate and Statutory Powers. Pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act and the Interlocal Agreement, 
UIA has the power to:  (i) issue bonds, and construct, lease, operate (or cause the same to occur) and own the UIA 
Network; (ii) enter into contracts with suppliers, contractors, providers and others to facilitate the accomplishment of 
the purposes listed in (i); (iii) undertake such actions as are necessary or advisable to effectuate its general purpose; 
(iv) enter into contracts, bond, construct and undertake actions to effectuate such purposes, which may be done in 
series or phases, as determined by the Board; (v) upgrade and expand the UIA Network as new development occurs 
within the boundaries of the Member cities and as other municipalities join UIA; and (vi) engage in such other lawful 
activity in which an interlocal cooperative may become involved and conduct any and all transactions and activities 
related thereto. 

Organization. UIA is governed by a nine-member governing board (the “Board”), consisting of 
representatives appointed from each of the Members. The present Board members are as follows: 

Name City Board Role 
Alex Jensen Layton City  Chair 
Derek Oyler Brigham City First Vice Chair 
Brant Hansen Centerville City  Second Vice Chair 
Brenda Moore Murray City Third Vice Chair 
Carolyn Lundberg Lindon City Director 
Nate Rockwood Midvale City Director 
Brenn Bybee Orem City Director 
Brett Christensen Payson City  Director 
Dan Johnson West Valley City Director 

  
Note: The position of Fourth Vice Chair is currently vacant.   
 

The Board is required to hold at least one regular meeting annually, but may call other meetings as necessary.  
Each Member is entitled to one vote for each one thousand (1,000) residents, rounded to the nearest one thousand, as 
determined by the most recent official census or census estimate of the United States Census Bureau or the Utah 
Population Estimates Committee.  There must be a quorum present at each meeting in order to take any action.  A 
quorum consists of the presence of the Board members entitled to cast a majority of the votes, which is not a simple 
majority of Board members since votes are weighted based on population. 
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Member 
2020 

Population 
Approximate  

Current Voting % 
West Valley City 140,230 29% 

City of Orem 98,129 21 
Layton City 81,773 17 
Murray City 50,637 11 
Midvale City 36,028 8 
Payson City 21,101 4 

Brigham City 19,650 4 
Centerville City 16,884 4 

Lindon City 11,397 2 
______________________________ 
(Source (as to population): U.S. Census Bureau, 2020 Census.)   
 

The Board also elects from among its members a Chair, a First Vice Chair, a Second Vice Chair, a Third 
Vice Chair and a Fourth Vice Chair (currently vacant). The aforementioned officials serve as the Executive Committee 
of the Board. The Executive Committee has oversight of the operations of UIA as delegated by the Board. 

The Board appoints a Chief Executive Officer, who, subject to oversight by the Board, has general 
supervision, management, administration, direction, and control of the business and officers of UIA and has such other 
related duties as may be prescribed by the Board. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to perform any function 
required of UIA by the Interlocal Agreement. The day-to-day operations are handled by the Chief Executive Officer. 
Set forth below are brief biographies of certain key administrative personnel. 

Roger Timmerman, Chief Executive Officer.  Mr. Timmerman has served as Chief Executive Officer of UIA 
since 2016.  He also serves as Executive Director of UTOPIA, a position he has also held since 2016.  Prior to joining 
UIA and UTOPIA, Mr. Timmerman was Vice President of Engineering for Vivint Wireless, one of the country’s 
largest wireless internet service providers, and helped launch wireless ISP in Utah and Texas.  Mr. Timmerman also 
previously served as the Chief Technology Officer for UTOPIA for five years.  He also worked as a Network Engineer 
for the City of Provo for its iProvo fiber-to-the-home project.  After graduation, he worked for the BYU Office of 
Information Technology as a Network Product Manager and oversaw the deployment of various network products.  
He graduated from Brigham Young University with a B.S. in Information Technology in 2004 and received a Master 
of Science degree in Information Technology from Brigham Young University in 2009. 

Jason Roberts, Secretary/Treasurer.  Mr. Roberts was appointed as Secretary/Treasurer of UIA on April 11, 
2022.  He also serves as the Chief Financial Officer of UTOPIA.  Prior to joining UIA, Mr. Roberts was the City 
Manager for Brigham City, one of UIA’s member cities.  He was employed by Brigham City for 13 years, starting out 
as Finance Director in 2009, advancing to City Administrator in 2016.  He has served on the boards of both UIA and 
UTOPIA and on UIA’s Finance Committee.  Prior to working for Brigham City, Mr. Roberts worked for 
Transportation Alliance Bank as the Controller and Ernst & Young, LLP in Salt Lake City as an auditor.  He is a 
Certified Public Accountant.  He holds a B.A. and master’s degree in accounting from Utah State University. 

Jeffrey Starkey, General Counsel.  Mr. Starkey serves as General Counsel for UIA and UTOPIA and advises 
on a broad range of legal matters. Before joining UIA and UTOPIA in 2022, Mr. Starkey worked for more than 30 
years representing large private landowners and real estate developers, as well as the contracted city attorney for 
several Utah municipalities. In 2013, he was appointed as the first in-house city attorney for Washington City, one of 
Utah’s fastest growing cities. Prior to that appointment, Mr. Starkey was a shareholder in one of Utah’s largest law 
firms, Durham Jones & Pinegar, and served as the chair of that firm’s real estate and banking practice. His legal 
practice of three decades of governmental law, land use and development rights prepared him for his current role as 
General Counsel of UIA and UTOPIA. He received his law degree from Brigham Young University and B.A. in 
business administration from Utah State University.    
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Addition/Withdrawal/Dissolution 

Any municipality that wishes to become a member of UIA may do so upon approval of the governing body 
of the governmental entity and UIA’s Board. Entities that become members of UIA subsequent to the original 
execution of the Interlocal Agreement have the same rights, power and authority as the original Members.  To date, 
no additional members have been added since the inception of UIA.   

UIA may be dissolved by a two-thirds vote of the Members, so long as it has no outstanding bonds (including 
the Series 2023 Bonds). Upon dissolution and after payment in full of all outstanding bonds and other obligations, the 
Board will equitably disburse the assets of UIA to the then current Members. To the extent possible, each Member 
will receive ownership of that portion of the UIA Network within its boundaries, at no additional cost to each then 
current Member. 

Outstanding Obligations of UIA 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS REVENUE BONDS 

Series Purpose Amount Maturity Date 
Principal Amount 
   Outstanding(1) 

2017A(2) Improvements & Refunding $73,905,000 October 15, 2040 $64,975,000 
2017B(2) Refunding 3,500,000 October 15, 2023 650,000 
2018A(2) Improvements 21,810,000 October 15, 2040 19,430,000 
   2019(2) Improvements 48,365,000 October 15, 2042 45,620,000 
   2021(2) Improvements 52,495,000 October 15, 2045 52,495,000 
   2022(2) Improvements 30,000,000 October 15, 2046 30,000,000 

      2023(2)(3) Improvements 35,630,000 October 15, 2047 35,630,000 
   Total $248,800,000 

  
(1) As of September 1, 2023.   
(2) Issued under the Indenture and secured by UIA operating revenues and a pledge of franchise taxes under the 

Service Contract between UIA and its Members.  
(3) For purposes of this Official Statement, the Series 2023 Bonds are considered issued and outstanding. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.) 
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PROJECT SPECIFIC REVENUE BONDS 

Series Purpose Amount Maturity Date 
Principal Amount 
   Outstanding (1) 

2018(2) Layton Improvements $22,285,000 October 15, 2044 $21,670,000 
2019(3) Morgan Improvements 2,550,000 October 1, 2044 2,485,000 
2019(4) Payson Improvements 3,520,000 October 1, 2044 3,430,000 
2019(5) West Point Improvements 7,220,000 October 15, 2046 7,045,000 
2020(6) Clearfield Improvements 12,645,000 October 15, 2047 12,370,000 
2021(7) Pleasant Grove Improvements 16,915,000 October 15, 2048 16,915,000 
2021(8) Syracuse Improvements 19,220,000 October 15, 2048 19,220,000 
2022(9) Cedar Hills Improvements 5,965,000 October 15, 2051 5,965,000 
2022(10) Santa Clara Improvements 6,675,000 October 15, 2051 6,675,000 
2022(11) West Haven Improvements 17,680,000 October 15, 2049 17,680,000 

   Total $113,455,000 
  
(1) As of September 1, 2023.   
(2) Issued August 15, 2018, under a separate indenture with respect to these bonds and secured by revenues 

received by UIA with respect to certain telecommunications facilities constructed by UIA to provide fiber 
communications service in Layton City, Utah and certain franchise tax revenues of Layton City.   

(3) Issued April 16, 2019, under a separate indenture and secured by revenues received by UIA with respect to 
certain telecommunications facilities constructed by UIA to provide fiber communications service in Morgan 
City, Utah and certain sales tax revenues and electric fee revenues of Morgan City.   

(4) Issued June 18, 2019, under a separate indenture and secured by revenues received by UIA with respect to 
certain telecommunications facilities constructed by UIA to provide fiber communications service in Payson 
City, Utah and certain franchise tax revenues of Payson City.   

(5) Issued September 5, 2019, under a separate indenture and secured by revenues received by UIA with respect 
to certain telecommunications facilities constructed by UIA to provide fiber communications service in West 
Point City, Utah and certain sales and franchise tax revenues of West Point City.   

(6) Issued August 6, 2020, under a separate indenture and secured by revenues received by UIA with respect to 
certain telecommunications facilities constructed by UIA to provide fiber communications service in 
Clearfield City, Utah and certain franchise tax revenues of Clearfield City.   

(7) Issued June 16, 2021, under a separate indenture and secured by revenues received by UIA with respect to 
certain telecommunications facilities constructed by UIA to provide fiber communications service in Pleasant 
Grove City, Utah and certain franchise tax revenues of Pleasant Grove City.   

(8) Issued September 8, 2021, under a separate indenture and secured by revenues received by UIA with respect 
to certain telecommunications facilities constructed by UIA to provide fiber communications service in 
Syracuse City, Utah and certain franchise tax and sales and use tax revenues of Syracuse City.   

(9) Issued April 28, 2022, under a separate indenture and secured by revenues received by UIA with respect to 
certain telecommunications facilities constructed by UIA to provide fiber communications service in the City 
of Cedar Hills, Utah and certain franchise tax and sales and use tax revenues of City of Cedar Hills.    

(10) Issued April 28, 2022, under a separate indenture and secured by revenues received by UIA with respect to 
certain telecommunications facilities constructed by UIA to provide fiber communications service in Santa 
Clara City, Utah and certain franchise tax and sales and use tax revenues of Santa Clara City.   

(11) Issued December 21, 2022, under a separate indenture and secured by revenues received by UIA with respect 
to certain telecommunications facilities constructed by UIA to provide fiber communications service in West 
Haven City, Utah and certain sales and use tax revenues of West Haven City.   

 
As of June 30, 2022, UIA has paid in full outstanding notes that were payable to certain of the Members (the 

“Member Notes”).  The Member Notes evidenced working capital assessments made by UIA to such Members for 
fiscal years 2013-2015 pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement in order to help UIA meet ongoing operational expense 
obligations, including payments to UTOPIA for operational expenses of the UTOPIA Network.  Although most of the 
Members agreed to pay at least some portion of the assessments in the past, no assurance can be given that the 
Members will agree to do so in the future in the event that any additional assessments are necessary.  UIA has not 
assessed the Members (and no new notes were issued) since fiscal year 2015, and UIA does not expect to issue any 
additional notes in the future.   
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UIA may issue Additional Bonds under the Indenture upon the satisfaction of certain conditions set forth in 
the Indenture. The Additional Bonds will be secured by the Indenture on a parity with the Series 2023 Bonds and the 
Outstanding Parity Bonds. 

UIA also plans to issue project-specific bonds in the next several years that are payable from and secured by 
sources other than the Net Revenues.  Such bonds will be payable from and secured by project specific revenues.   

No Defaulted Bonds 

UIA has never been in default on any material contractual or financial obligation, including the punctual 
payment of principal or interest on any of its indebtedness.   

Management Discussion 

UIA believes that there is strong consumer demand nationwide for faster and higher capacity fiber optic 
infrastructure.  UIA is well positioned to meet the emerging needs of the industry within its service area. 

The UIA Network is a fiber optic, open-access network providing high-speed broadband voice, video, and 
data access.  The UIA Network is connected to the UTOPIA Network pursuant to the IRU Agreement.  The UTOPIA 
and UIA Network is an open-access system where UTOPIA and UIA design, build and operate a fiber infrastructure 
that multiple competing service providers utilize to provide internet service to end-customers.  The synergy provided 
by UIA’s partnership with UTOPIA allows both organizations to provide citizens a state-of-the-art broadband 
network.  UIA’s projects are facilitating economic development throughout UIA’s (and UTOPIA’s) member cities 
and partner cities. 

UIA, working in conjunction with the UTOPIA Network, has established a track record of successfully 
building out fiber infrastructure that brings fast and reliable internet service to customers within and outside of the 
boundaries of the Members.  Competition among service providers within the UIA Network has helped ensure 
competitively priced internet services and excellent customer support.  If a specific service provider fails to provide 
reliable and affordable service, the open-access system allows a customer to switch to a new service provider while 
utilizing the same UTOPIA fiber connection. 

As of June 30, 2023, 30 residential and business internet service providers were actively providing services 
utilizing the combined UTOPIA/UIA Network and just over 56,210 homes and businesses had subscribed for services.  
This is an increase of 18% since June 30, 2022 and 40% since June 30, 2021.  By June 2022 UIA had completed its 
original mission:  to build a fiber optic network to service substantially all of the businesses and residents in UTOPIA’s 
eleven member cities.  As of June 30, 2023, more than 5,200 miles of fiber cable have been placed to serve member 
and partner cities.  Within footprints serviced by approximately 210 hut sites, UTOPIA/UIA has installed fiber to the 
curb past 184,000 addresses. As UTOPIA/UIA member and partner cities continue to develop, UIA will install fiber 
to the curb in new developments. 

Future growth of the UIA Network will be largely demand-based, bringing the network to those areas that 
will bring the best return on investment and/or to cities willing to pay cash on hand or pledge existing revenues (sales 
and franchise tax revenues) to guarantee debt service on bonds issued for construction.  The combined UTOPIA/UIA 
Network has grown to become the largest open-access system in North America.  In early 2019, UIA completed the 
expansion of its network to Woodland Hills, Utah, its first city outside the boundaries of UTOPIA’s eleven member 
cities.  The Woodland Hills network is available to approximately 560 addresses, and as of June 30, 2023, 
approximately 87% of occupied homes have signed up for services.  Building on the success of that project, UIA has 
since executed contracts with eight (not including Layton and Payson due to previous arrangements) additional cities 
to build a city network.  Two of those projects were completed by December 2020 and enjoy take rates (percentage 
of subscribers/available addresses) of 65% and 43%.  Construction of the network in a fourth city was completed in 
June 2021 and already has a 21% take rate.  Two additional cities were substantially completed in the spring of 2023.  
The cities of Cedar Hills and Santa Clara are anticipated to be completed by fall of 2024.  UIA is in various stages of 
discussion with many additional Utah municipalities regarding expansion of the network and expects to execute 
service contracts within the next year. 

In May of 2023, UTOPIA entered into an agreement with Bountiful City, Utah to build out a network in the 
city.  The network will be paid for and owned by Bountiful City.  UTOPIA will manage the construction of the network 
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over a three-year period and provide network management services for an initial ten-year period.  UTOPIA will collect 
fees for network management services from service providers with Bountiful City receiving a portion of the fees.  
Bountiful City will be required to pay for all maintenance or expansion of the network outside of the terms of the 
construction contract.   

Unaudited financial results for UIA for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, are projected to be very positive.  
Projected operating revenues increased from an actual amount of $28,090,334 in fiscal year 2022 to $33,318,744 in 
fiscal year 2023, an 18.6% increase.  Projected Operating Expenses (excluding depreciation) were up 21.8% from an 
actual amount of $8,516,822 in fiscal year 2022 to $10,375,823 in fiscal year 2023.  Operating Income (excluding 
depreciation) is projected at $22,942,921, an increase of 17% from fiscal year 2022.  Customers of the UIA network 
alone increased by 18% in fiscal year 2023, 21% in fiscal year 2022, and 35% in fiscal year 2021.  The UIA customer 
count increased from 34,514 as of June 30, 2022 to 40,765 as of June 30, 2023.  Projected average monthly recurring 
revenue for UIA alone was $2,736,726, an increase of $414,659 (17.9%) over fiscal year 2022.    

For fiscal year 2024, UIA budgeted for a 19.0% increase in monthly recurring revenue. The budget shows a 
15.2% increase in operating expenditures.  A significant portion of the increase in operating expenditures is to properly 
recognize services provided by UTOPIA to UIA.  UTOPIA has recently increased its field service workforce and 
added additional engineering personnel to keep pace with demand.  Budgeted net operating revenue for FY 2023 is 
$27.5 million, an increase of $4.6 million from FY 2023 projected.    

UIA actively works toward reducing operating expenditures through technology.  In 2020 UIA purchased a 
warehouse/office building to store inventory and house field service technicians and utility locators.  This will 
eventually eliminate materials handling charges paid to the general contractor for inventory storage.  Utility locating 
services were brought in-house in January 2020.  The net savings from these changes are expected to be approximately 
$100,000 per year. 

Certain recent trends in the industry should benefit both the near-term success and long-term viability of 
UTOPIA/UIA.  Consumer demand in the service area continues to outpace available incumbent provider options, 
which has led to significant customer growth for UTOPIA/UIA.  UTOPIA and UIA combined have been adding 
customers at the fastest pace in their history, averaging 674 net new customers per month over the past 24 months, 
with growth coming from all areas where their service is available.  Subscriber disconnections (known as “churn”) for 
UTOPIA/UIA have averaged 3.3% annually over the past five years.  This is well below industry averages, and the 
low churn rate has helped to contribute to net growth of customers over time.  Additionally, based on an independent 
third-party survey conducted in August 2022 and contracted for by UTOPIA, UTOPIA’s Net Promoter Score, an 
industry metric for measuring customer satisfaction, was 64, significantly higher than any other known Net Promoter 
Score for broadband options in Utah.  UTOPIA also has a Google satisfaction rating of 4.5, which is higher than 
Comcast or Google Fiber.   

UTOPIA has also partnered with fiber networks outside of Utah.  In 2019, UTOPIA entered into an 
operational partnership with Idaho Falls Fiber in Idaho where UTOPIA provided consulting, network design and is an 
Idaho Falls technology provider for the open access system software.  The Idaho Falls network has passed 
approximately 20,000 addresses and 5,666 have signed up for service as of June 30, 2023.  In 2021, UTOPIA entered 
into an agreement with Yellowstone Fiber in Montana to provide design, construction and operation of the expansion 
of its fiber network.  The buildout of the Yellowstone Fiber network is expected to reach 16,000 addresses by summer 
of 2024 (the estimated completion date for the buildout).   

Further, the industry trend of “cord-cutting,” a practice where customers cancel traditional cable-related 
services in favor of internet only delivered services, should greatly benefit UTOPIA/UIA.  Much of the cable and 
telecom industries are threatened by new internet-delivered services for phone (such as Ooma and Vonage) or video 
streaming (such as Netflix, Amazon Prime, Disney+, Hulu, SlingTV and YouTube TV) because the cable and telecom 
providers often depend on bundled revenues for profitability.  The trend of increased cord-cutting is driving consumers 
to cancel cable TV and phone services in favor of faster internet connections and internet delivered services.  Because 
UIA’s revenue model is generally based on connection revenues and higher speed internet access at competitive rates 
and is not reliant on providing bundled services, UIA believes it is well positioned to benefit from the cord-cutting 
trend. 

On November 15, 2021, President Biden signed into law the $1.2 trillion Infrastructure Investment and Jobs 
Act (the “IIJ Act”) which allocates $65 billion to broadband development, with $42 billion earmarked for a last mile 
broadband program administered by the National Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTIA).  The 
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Broadband Equity, Access and Deployment (BEAD) Program will offer competitive grants of at least $100 million to 
each state for broadband deployment in unserved and underserved areas.  UIA intends to closely monitor the 
deployment of federal funds in Utah pursuant to the BEAD Program and pursue grant opportunities as they become 
available.  However, UIA currently does not anticipate that the Series 2023 Project will qualify for any BEAD monies. 

The result of these industry trends, many of which should provide increased demand for broadband services 
of the type provided by UTOPIA and UIA, together with improving economies of scale for UTOPIA and UIA related 
to continued growth, should collectively better ensure the long-term viability of UTOPIA and UIA as they finish the 
buildout of member cities and expand into new cities. 

Financial Summaries and Budget 

The following tables summarize UIA’s recent financial history as well as its budget for fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2024.  UIA prepared the historical tables based on information set forth in its audited financial statements for 
the fiscal years 2019 through 2022 and its unaudited, preliminary financial statements for the fiscal year 2023 with 
respect to the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position and the fiscal years 2018 through 
2022 with respect to the Statement of Net Position.  
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Utah Infrastructure Agency 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

(This summary has not been audited.) 
 

 Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
 2023* 2022 2021 2020 2019 

Operating Revenues      

Access fees $22,349,412  $18,802,020  $14,931,211 $11,665,097 $9,762,852 
Installations 225,065  225,065  123,668 104,592 29,624 
Lease Revenues 
   /Connection Fees 10,480,259  8,910,974  7,240,251 5,088,104 3,582,149 
Misc. operating revenue 264,008  152,275 152,540 159,990 140,851 
Construction contract revenue           –            –            – 165,400 1,851,696 

Total Operating 
   Revenues 33,318,744  28,090,334 22,447,670 17,183,183 15,367,172 

Operating Expenses      
Marketing 1,444,068  1,295,195  876,739 769,906 634,749 
Professional services 40,922  35,311  240,797 178,222 172,597 
Network 8,890,833  7,186,316  5,668,284 4,445,694 3,209,354 
Construction contract costs – –           – 93,297 2,191,574 
Depreciation 8,439,000  7,598,083  6,757,075 8,990,683 6,301,884 

Total Operating 
   Expenses 18,814,823  16,114,905  13,542,895 14,477,802 12,510,158 

Operating Income (Loss) 14,503,921  11,975,429  8,904,775 2,705,381 2,857,014 
Non-Operating  
     Revenues (Expenses)      

Interest income 884,724  429,441  457,006 1,418,679 1,420,334 
Installation related capital 
contributions – – 1,122,680 152,848 300,494 
Bond interest and fees (13,708,355) (11,827,122) (9,938,605) (8,039,778) (6,577,988) 
Payments to Member Cities (4,000,000) (335,283) – – – 

Total Non-Operating 
Revenues (Expenses) (16,823,631) (11,732,964) (8,358,919) (6,468,251) (4,857,160) 

Change in Net Position (2,319,710) 242,465  545,856 (3,762,870) (2,000,146) 
Total Net Position, July 1 (201,591) (444,056) (989,912) 2,772,958 4,773,105 
Total Net Position, June 30 $(2,521,301) $(201,591) $(444,056) $(989,912) $2,772,959 

  
* Preliminary, unaudited.   
(Source:  UIA has provided this unaudited summary based on its audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2019 –2022 and its unaudited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.)   
  



 

 30 

Utah Infrastructure Agency 
Statement of Net Position 

(This summary has not been audited.) 

 Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 

Assets      
Current Assets      

Cash $21,481,350  $21,283,322 $13,916,081 $8,777,628 $5,447,838 
Restricted cash equivalents 48,406,939  50,997,670 26,525,999 24,798,724 4,504,137 
Trade receivables, net 3,144,513  1,713,531 2,255,120 1,567,017 1,100,484 
Investments 3,082,354  3,090,240 3,066,532 – – 
Inventory 10,935,693  5,610,052 3,485,054 2,802,295 2,579,451 
Notes receivable 172,674  222,598 243,644 248,023 236,173 
Prepaid expenses – – 10,226 7,390 5,553 
Costs of uncompleted contracts in excess 
of recent billings           –           –           – 341,396           – 

Total Current Assets $87,223,523  $82,917,413 $49,502,656 $38,542,473 $13,873,636 
Noncurrent Assets      

Restricted cash equivalents 20,104,600  $17,469,813 $11,307,505 $8,252,539 $6,004,053 
Trade receivables, net - – 197,014 – – 
Notes receivable 1,586,621  1,898,972 2,360,592 2,848,652 3,091,433 
Capital Assets:      

Construction in progress 29,228,960  19,662,901 11,765,028 5,339,558 3,246,486 
Land 959,272  959,272 959,272 555,872 500,000 
Building, equipment,  
   & net fiber optic network 213,637,244  166,268,199 123,413,188 87,847,211 65,400,272 

Total Noncurrent Assets $265,516,697  $206,259,157 $150,002,599 $104,843,832 $78,242,244 
Total Assets $352,740,220  $289,176,570 $199,505,255 $143,386,305 $92,115,880 
Deferred Outflows of Resources      

Deferred issuance costs on bonds 4,232,437  4,463,297 4,694,157 4,925,018 5,155,878 
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,232,437  4,463,297 4,694,157 4,925,018 5,155,878 

Total Assets & Deferred Outflows  $356,972,657  $293,639,867 $204,199,412 $148,311,323 $97,271,758 
Liabilities      
Current Liabilities      

Accounts payable 12,811,592  $7,928,834 $7,722,781 $4,236,467 $1,931,760 
Accrued liabilities –  – 16,800 111,018 140,074 
Unearned/Deferred revenue 126,983  160,363 125,926 44,006 25,075 
Interest payable from restricted assets 2,705,511  2,530,686 1,720,374 1,220,273 762,473 
Capital leases payable – – – – 647,187 
Notes payable – 1,388,270 1,452,500 830,000 – 
Revenue bonds payable $5,535,000  4,420,000 2,830,000 2,745,000 2,595,000 

Total Current Liabilities 21,179,086  $16,428,153 $13,868,381 $9,186,764 $6,101,569 
Noncurrent Liabilities      

Capital Leases Payable – – – – $365,216 
Notes Payable – – 1,308,454 2,677,673 3,718,636 
Revenue Bonds Payable 335,995,162  277,655,770 190,012,489 133,673,927 82,313,232 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities $335,995,162  $277,655,770 $191,320,943 $136,351,600 $86,397,084 
Total Liabilities $357,174,248  $294,083,923 $205,189,324 $145,538,364 $92,498,653 
Net Position      

Net investment in capital assets (26,153,808) (24,374,358) (19,109,531) (8,049,857) (5,540,482) 
Restricted for:      

Debt service 12,074,630  8,262,082 4,620,189 10,828,506 9,672,253 
Future development – – – 18,257,484 – 
Unspent bond proceeds – – – – 73,464 

Unrestricted 13,877,586  15,668,220 13,499,431 (18,263,174) 567,870 
Total Net Position $(201,591) $(444,056) $(989,912) $2,772,959 $4,773,105 
Total Liabilities and Net Position $356,972,657  $293,639,867 $204,199,412 $148,311,323 $97,271,758 

  
(Source:  UIA has provided this unaudited summary based on its audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 through 
June 30, 2022.)  Note: FY 2020 is the first year UIA showed a deficit net position.  This is largely due to depreciation of rapidly growing property, 
plant and equipment.  UIA historically depreciates conduit and fiber over 25 years, which is considerably less than its expected service life.  
Beginning July 1, 2020, the expected service life of conduit and fiber was adjusted to 40 years.     
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Utah Infrastructure Agency 
FY 2024 Budget 

  
Budget  

FY 2024 
Revenues:  

Residential Transport $11,702,936  
Business Transport  13,967,624  
Fiber Lease Revenue  13,225,720  
Installation Revenue  180,000  
Miscellaneous Revenue  408,600  
     Total Operating Revenue $39,484,880 
  

Expenses:  
Marketing Expense  1,300,000  
Professional Services  33,500  
Management Fees to UTOPIA  3,837,000  
Service Contract Fees to UTOPIA  6,788,155  
Capitalized Labor to UTOPIA  1,012,000  
Capital Projects (non-Network expansion)  768,000  
Distribution to UTOPIA  1,781,698  
Debt Service (net of capitalized interest) 18,000,269 
          Total 33,520,622 
  

Net Gain (Loss) from Operations: $5,964,258 
  
Network Expansion (Capital): $27,526,225 
Non-Operating Revenues:  

Proceeds from Debt Issuance – 
Interest revenue  600,000  
Contribution from (to) Fund Balance  5,340,742  
Contribution from Restricted Bonds Funds  15,000,000  
     Total Non-Operating Revenues 20,940,742 

Non-Operating Expenses:  
Capital Projects (Network expansion)  11,703,000  
Bond Issuance Costs – 
Reduction of Fund Balance Deficit  202,000  
Deposit to Restricted Funds 15,000,000  
          Total Non-Operating Expenses 26,905,000 

  
             Net Gain (Loss) from Network Expansion: $(5,964,258) 
  

      Total Revenue Over (Under) Expense:           – 
  
(Source:  UIA.) 
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THE UIA NETWORK 

General 

The UIA Network is an advanced communications, open-access network built with fiber optic technology, 
providing transmission of voice, data and video at speeds that are significantly faster than those available through 
certain competing technologies.  Fiber optic technology supports the long-term projected growth in bandwidth and 
capacity required for increasing usage demand and requirements.  The use of fiber optic technology to support homes 
and businesses has become more accepted as the telecommunications industry continues to implement new 
infrastructure and technology to meet increasing demand and economic needs.  UIA provides the fiber optic cable, 
laid both underground and above ground, necessary to connect cities and the homes and businesses within those cities.  
Other elements of the UIA Network include conduits, fiber strands, splices, switches, transmitters, terminals, internal 
power sources and all other items necessary to operate the UIA Network. 

The UIA Network is based on providing transport services at layer 2 of the open systems interconnect (OSI) 
model.  The core backbone is built around internet provider multi-protocol label switching (IP-MPLS).  This structure 
gives the UIA Network a powerful, highly redundant core that remains transparent to customer traffic.  The UIA 
Network employs an Active Ethernet architecture, meaning that customers are connected to community cabinets with 
active electronics.  This architecture permits UIA to scale economically and service business and residential customers 
over the same carrier grade network.  It also allows the UIA Network to operate as an Open Access network with 
multiple internet service providers (ISPs) delivering customized services and products to customers.  The UIA 
Network extends into the customer site with Customer Premise Equipment (CPE).  The CPE device allows the 
conversion of optical signals to electrical signals that are separated by the ports on the CPE device.  This device allows 
the UIA Network to deliver ISP services consisting of data, video and VoIP services with minimum equipment 
investment on behalf of the ISP or the customer.  This design makes it possible to support flexible customer service 
without requiring a service visit each time the customer makes a change in services. 

The UIA Network deploys a fiber-to-the-premises (FTTP) network with a minimum capacity of 250 Mbps 
(megabits per second) in both directions, upload and download.  The UIA Network is 10 Gigabit capable for residents 
and currently supports speeds of up to 100 Gigabit for commercial customers.  UIA believes that this bandwidth makes 
it possible for service providers using the UIA Network to deliver higher quality services and launch innovative new 
services that existing networks cannot currently support.  Also, since the carrying capacity of fiber plant can be 
significantly increased by changing the electronics in the UIA Network, UIA believes the UIA Network has a long 
useful life and is able to support innovations created by evolving technologies. 

The UIA Network operates as a network under an open access model which is available to all qualified 
service providers.  UIA provides carrier class transport services to the Members and provides physical connections 
and transport services on behalf of the Members to end-users.  Service providers contract with UIA directly, or with 
UTOPIA, as UIA’s operator, for access to the UIA Network and then market and provide internet, video, telephone 
and other services to their customers.  Such services will utilize the transport services provided by UIA.  UIA, the 
Members and UTOPIA may also independently market and promote the benefits and uses of connecting to the UIA 
Network. 
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The following table shows the five largest service providers on the UIA/UTOPIA Network for the past five 
fiscal years, as measured by comparing the percentage of Revenues generated from such service provider against 
Revenues generated from all Service Provider Agreements: 

Service 
Provider 

Fiscal Year 
2023 

Fiscal Year 
2022 

Fiscal Year 
2021 

Fiscal Year 
2020 

Fiscal Year 
2019 

Xmission 35.1% 30.2% 30.0 31.3% 30.6% 
Sumo 20.4 13.0 11.4 8.5 7.6 
Beehive 6.9 5.2 5.0 4.9 – 
Veracity 6.1 13.4 17.2 19.3 21.6 
Intellipop 3.5 – – – – 
Centracom – 4.4 3.4 – – 
First Digital – – – 3.2 3.6 
Windstream – – – – 3.7 
     Total 72.0% 66.2% 67.0% 67.2% 67.0% 

  
(Source:  UIA.) 
 
The UTOPIA Network 

UTOPIA is a separate legal entity and political subdivision of the State which was created under the Interlocal 
Cooperation Act by 15 Utah municipalities.  UTOPIA is governed by the First Amended and Restated Interlocal 
Cooperative Agreement of the Utah Telecommunication Open Infrastructure Agency, dated as of June 1, 2004.   

UTOPIA has the following member cities:  Brigham City, Cedar City, Cedar Hills City, Centerville City, 
Layton City, Lindon City, Midvale City, Murray City, City of Orem, Payson City, Perry City, Riverton City, 
Tremonton City, Town of Vineyard and West Valley City.  Cedar City, Cedar Hills City, Riverton City and the Town 
of Vineyard did not pledge revenues towards UTOPIA debt. 

UIA connects the UIA Network to the UTOPIA Network pursuant to the IRU Agreement and other 
agreements.  See “Intersection of UIA Network and Utopia Network” herein for a further discussion of the IRU 
Agreement. As of June 30, 2023, the UTOPIA/UIA Network consisted of more than 5,200 miles of fiber cable serving 
member and partner cities within and outside of the boundaries of eleven of UTOPIA’s member cities. All eleven 
pledging Member cities are substantially built-out.   

Intersection of UIA Network and UTOPIA Network 

The physical location of the UTOPIA Network is critical to UIA’s success because UIA does not have the 
backbone telecommunications infrastructure in place nor the financing available to provide for such a large 
construction endeavor.  Technically, the UIA Network could connect to many other networks other than the UTOPIA 
Network; however, no other fiber optic networks have the physical connections to the homes that UIA intends to 
connect to the UIA Network, and the costs of connecting to different networks would be prohibitive.  The IRU 
Agreement provides long-term rights to UIA to connect the UIA Network to the UTOPIA Network.  The initial term 
of the IRU Agreement runs until April 30, 2042, and the IRU Agreement will automatically renew in additional 
five-year increments, unless either party gives the other party at least 365 days written notice of such party’s intent to 
terminate at the expiration of the then current term.  A party under the IRU Agreement may deliver to the other party 
a written notice of default for (i) failing to make any payment of any amounts owed under the IRU Agreement, when 
no bona fide dispute exists, (ii) the breaching by either party or its agents, assigns or affiliates of any material provision 
(as defined in the IRU Agreement), or (iii) the filing or initiating of bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings or certain 
similar actions.  If UIA receives a notice of default related to the occurrence of an event described in (i) above, UIA 
will have 30 days to cure.  If UIA fails to cure such event within the cure period, UTOPIA will have the right to either 
(a) suspend its performance obligations under the IRU Agreement, (b) seek an award for the past due balance, 
including interest and reasonable attorneys’ fees, and/or (c) require UIA to post a reasonable deposit or other adequate 
assurance of payment as a condition of continuing performance by UTOPIA.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
UTOPIA may not disconnect service or revoke the indefeasible right of use of UIA with respect to any additional 
capacity except for non-payment of any additional indefeasible right of use fee with respect to that additional capacity.  
A party that has received a notice of default related to the occurrence of an event described in (ii) above will have 30 
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days to cure the alleged breach.  If the defaulting party has commenced actions in good faith to cure such defaults 
which are not susceptible of being cured during such 30-day period, such period will be extended (but not in excess 
of 90 additional days) while such party continues such actions to cure.  If such party fails to cure the breach within the 
applicable cure period, the IRU Agreement will not be terminated, but as long as such default shall be continuing, the 
non-defaulting party shall have the right to either (a) suspend its performance or payment obligations under the IRU 
Agreement, (b) seek an order of specific performance, and/or (c) seek the award of compensatory damages.  Upon the 
expiration of the term of the IRU Agreement, or as a result of a material breach of a component set forth in the IRU 
Agreement which has gone uncured as set forth in the IRU Agreement, the IRU Agreement will terminate and UIA 
shall owe UTOPIA no additional compensation. 

UIA does not have a payroll, and both employees of UIA are also employees of UTOPIA and are paid by 
UTOPIA.  Pursuant to the UTOPIA Service Agreement, UIA has contracted for UTOPIA to provide for the 
management of various services for certain portions of the UIA Network, including planning and pre-construction 
management services to build the UIA Network and administration and operations management of the UIA Network, 
including service provider management.  The initial term of the UTOPIA Service Agreement was for five years 
(beginning June 29, 2010), and UIA has continued rights to renew such Agreement, unless UTOPIA later objects in 
writing within 30 days, for successive one-year periods, on the same terms and conditions existing on the date of such 
renewal by delivering written notice to UTOPIA at least 30 days prior to the end of the then existing term.  The 
UTOPIA Service Agreement may be terminated as follows: (a) as required by law, (b) 30 days after a non-breaching 
party has delivered written notice of a material breach of the UTOPIA Service Agreement to the breaching party and 
such breach remains uncured, (c) by written mutual agreement of the parties, or (d) immediately, without delivery of 
notice, upon the insolvency or bankruptcy of a party, or upon the occurrence of certain similar events set forth in the 
UTOPIA Service Agreement.  A party is required under the UTOPIA Service Agreement to immediately notify the 
other party in writing upon the occurrence of any of the events listed in (d).  Failure to do so constitutes a material 
breach of the UTOPIA Service Agreement and will result in automatic termination of the UTOPIA Service Agreement.  
The UTOPIA Service Agreement is also subject to termination by UIA for business convenience, for any or no reason, 
and without penalty, liability or obligation of any kind (except for payment for conforming services already received) 
by delivering at least 90 days’ written notice to UTOPIA.   

UTOPIA/UIA substantially completed all remaining network construction within UTOPIA’s pledging 
members prior to June of 2022, with approximately 137,700 addresses within those cities able to receive services at 
the decision of the household or business (marketable).   

The following chart shows the total number of business and residential customers, the “take rate” and the 
“churn rate” of the combined UTOPIA/UIA Networks for the past five fiscal years.  “Take rate” means the percentage 
of potential business and residential customers in that city that have signed up for either the UIA Network or the 
UTOPIA Network.  Upon complete build-out of the combined UTOPIA/UIA Networks, including the seven partner 
cities, the total projected potential customers for the combined UTOPIA/UIA Networks is approximately 180,000.  
“Churn rate” means the percentage of customers of the combined UTOPIA/UIA Networks that have terminated 
services in such fiscal year.   

 
 
 
 
 

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.) 
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Combined UTOPIA/UIA Networks – Customers, Take-Rate and Churn Rate 

City Fiscal Year 2023 Fiscal Year 2022 Fiscal Year 2021 Fiscal Year 2020 Fiscal Year 2019 

 (1) 
Customers 

(1) 
Addresses 

Take 
Rate 

(1) 
Customers 

(1) 
Addresses 

Take 
Rate 

(1) 
Customers 

(1) 
Addresses 

Take 
Rate 

(1) 
Customers 

(1) 
Addresses 

Take 
Rate 

(1) 
Customers 

(1) 
Addresses 

Take 
Rate 

Bozeman, 
MT 

379 3,188 12%             

Brigham City 3,055 6,775 45 2,945 6,677 44% 2,759 6,561 42% 2,423 6,244 39% 2,197 5,962 37% 

Centerville 2,497 5,450 46 2,422 5,368 45  2,245   4,992  45 2,053 4,908 42 1,883 4,888 39 

Clearfield 1,426 6,940 21 1,136 6,719 17  127   2,096  6 – – – – – – 

Idaho Falls 5,666 20,000 28 3,752 15,379 24  1,690   1,800  94 – – – – – – 

Layton 9,330 22,876 41 8,880 22,645 39  8,081   25,303  32 6,557 24,691 (3) 27 4,306 21,140 20 

Lindon 2,043 3,799 54 1,984 3,706 54  1,903   3,602  53 1,773 3,498 51 1,630 3,391 48 

Midvale (2) 1,633 9,708 17 1,460 9,473 15  1,230   8,016  15 1,001 7,828 13 913 6,219 15 

Morgan 1,128 1,732 65 1,008 1,672 60  840   1,521  55 597 1,473 41 – – – 

Murray (2) 4,402 16,671 26 4,080 16,407 25  3,724   13,583  27 3,320 11,489 29 3,010 11,287 27 

Orem (2) 8,470 26,338 32 7,828 24,113 32  7,139   22,727  31 5,646 20,710 27 4,371 15,360 28 

Payson (2) 2,498 6,773 37 2,223 6,435 35  1,889   6,096  31 1,391 5,794 24 1,113 3,196 35 

Perry 923 1,816 51 862 1,779 48  807   1,818  44 703 1,803 39 584 1,775 33 

Pleasant 
   Grove 

1,850 8,282 22 131 729 18 – – – – – – – – – 

Santa Clara 39 1,817 2 – – – – – – – – – – – – 

Syracuse 857 7,799 11 – – – – – – – – – – – – 

Tremonton 1,495 3,706 40 1,397 3,452 40  1,226   3,176  39 1,064 3,005 35 904 2,864 32 

WestPoint (2) 1,662 3,845 43 1,461 3,756 39  1,156   3,360  34 322 1,914 17 – – – 

West Valley 
  City (2) 

5,292 33,803 16 4,793 33,424 14  4,136   27,987  15 3,243 20,706 16 2,524 17,018 15 

Other 1,565 1,817 86 1,304 1,544 84 1,077  1,328  81 900 1,171 77 782 1,114 70 

     Total 56,210 193,135 29% 47,666 163,278 29% 40,029  133,966  30% 30,993 115,234 27% 24,217 94,214 26% 
 

   
            

Cancellations 1,856 666 732 873 867 

Churn rate 4.30% 1.66% 2.36% 3.60% 4.44% 

Notes:   
(1)  “Customers” shows the amount of Utopia/UIA customers in each area; “Addresses” shows the total amount of available commercial and residential addresses in the city.  
(2)  “Take Rate” represents the percentage of available commercial and residential addresses in each city or area that have subscribed.  Take Rate percentages will not total 100%. 
(Source:  UIA.) 

Certain potential customers are candidates for services by both UIA and UTOPIA.  In such situations, UIA and UTOPIA have a practice of allocating 
such potential customers to UIA if any of UIA’s funds are expended when providing connection services to such customers.     
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CONTRACTING MEMBERS 

Set forth below is a brief description and demographic information for each Contracting Member, a five-year 
history of its Franchise Tax Revenues, and a description of any City Debt secured by the Franchise Tax Revenues. 
Outstanding City Debt information is as of September 1, 2023.  

Pursuant to the Service Contract, each Contracting Member may create or incur additional debt on a parity 
with any outstanding debt secured by a priority lien pledge of such Contracting Member’s Franchise Tax Revenues 
or on parity with the pledge created pursuant to the Service Contract so long as the pledged Franchise Tax Revenues 
received by such Contracting Member during the fiscal year immediately preceding the fiscal year in which the 
additional priority or parity City Debt is to be incurred is not less than 150% of the sum of (a) the Maximum Annual 
Debt Service (as defined below) of (i) the additional priority or parity City Debt proposed to be incurred and (ii) any 
City Debt secured by Franchise Tax Revenues previously issued and outstanding, plus (b) the total maximum annual 
amount of such Contracting Member’s Franchise Tax Obligation under the Service Contract. For purposes of this test, 
“Maximum Annual Debt Service” means, with respect to any outstanding City Debt of the Contracting Member, the 
maximum annual principal and interest payable on such City Debt for any one fiscal year, less any moneys, other than 
Franchise Tax Revenues, that are legally pledged and applied to pay debt service on such City Debt in the fiscal year 
immediately preceding the fiscal year in which the additional priority or parity City Debt is to be incurred. 
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West Valley City 

General.  West Valley City is the second most populous city in the State. It is located four miles from the 
Salt Lake City International Airport and is a commercial and industrial center for Salt Lake County and the 
metropolitan area. West Valley City was incorporated on July 1, 1980, and encompasses approximately 35 square 
miles. 

Population Data 
 

Entity 2000 2010 2020 
2010/2020 
% Change 

West Valley City 108,896 129,480 140,230 8.30% 
Salt Lake County 898,387 1,029,655 1,185,238 15.11 
The State 2,233,169 2,763,885 3,271,616 18.37 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau.) 
  
Specified Owner-Occupied Units 
 

 West Valley City Salt Lake County The State 
Value Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $50,000 1,784 6.6% 7,236 2.7% 23,656 3.2% 
$50,000 to $99,999 508 1.9 2,297 0.9 12,539 1.7 
$100,000 to $149,999 962 3.6 6,192 2.3 27,567 3.8 
$150,000 to $199,999 2,793 10.3 14,366 5.3 55,060 7.6 
$200,000 to $299,999 10,897 40.3 59,733 22.2 176,591 24.2 
$300,000 to $499,999 9,317 34.4 112,325 41.7 283,736 38.9 
$500,000 to $999,999 654 2.4 58,947 21.9 129,726 17.8 
$1,000,000 or more 153 0.6 8,091 3.0 20,199 2.8 
     Total 27,068  269,187  729,074   
       
Median Value $272,100 $367,300 $339,700 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.)  
 
Median Household Income 
 

 West Valley City Salt Lake County The State 
Income Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $10,000 831 2.1% 14,039 3.5% 36,609 3.5% 
$10,000 to $14,999 1,012 2.6 10,421 2.6 26,427 2.6 
$15,000 to $24,999 1,982 5.1 19,619 4.9 54,035 5.2 
$25,000 to $34,999 3,119 8.0 25,281 6.3 71,934 7.0 
$35,000 to $49,999 4,148 10.7 40,961 10.3 111,491 10.8 
$50,000 to $74,999 8,337 21.4 71,372 17.9 187,494 18.1 
$75,000 to $99,999 6,782 17.4 59,176 14.8 156,374 15.1 
$100,000 to $149,999 8,408 21.6 80,807 20.2 210,060 20.3 
$150,000 to $199,999 2,739 7.0 38,215 9.6 90,896 8.8 
$200,000 or more  1,575 4.0 39,693 9.9 88,331 8.5 
     Total households 38,933  399,584  1,033,651  
       
Median Income $75,137 $82,206 $79,133 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
  



 

 38 

Franchise Tax Revenue 
 

Fiscal Year Franchise Tax Revenues % Change 
   2023(1) $10,709,306 29.2% 

2022 8,291,949 8.5 
2021 7,643,734 -3.1 
2020 7,884,205 -2.8 
2019 8,108,111 0.7 
2018 8,053,310 – 

  
(1) Preliminary; subject to change.   
(Source: West Valley City and the Municipal Advisor.) 
 
 

Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt.  West Valley City has entered into a pledge agreement (the “Pledge 
Agreement”) with its Redevelopment Agency (the “West Valley RDA”) in connection with the issuance by the West 
Valley RDA of its Tax Increment and Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 (the “RDA 2020 
Bonds”), which are outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $3,625,000. The RDA 2020 Bonds are payable 
from and secured by a pledge of tax increment revenues of the West Valley RDA. However, in the event that such tax 
increment revenues are not sufficient to pay debt service on the RDA 2020 Bonds, West Valley City will, pursuant to 
the Pledge Agreement, transfer to the West Valley RDA an amount of Franchise Tax Revenues that is sufficient to 
pay the debt service on the RDA 2020 Bonds. The final maturity date of the RDA 2020 Bonds is November 1, 2025. 
The lien on Franchise Tax Revenues created pursuant to the Pledge Agreement is senior to the lien of the Franchise 
Tax Obligation on such revenues. 

West Valley City has also entered into a contribution agreement (the “Contribution Agreement”) with the 
West Valley RDA in connection with the issuance by the West Valley RDA of its Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 
2016 (the “RDA 2016 Bonds” and together with the RDA 2020 Bonds, the “West Valley RDA Bonds”), which are 
outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $8,135,000. The RDA 2016 Bonds are payable from and secured by 
a pledge of certain franchise tax revenues of West Valley City, made available under the Contribution Agreement, 
and certain revenues derived from investment income. The final maturity date of the RDA 2016 Bonds is November 1, 
2036. The lien on Franchise Tax Revenues created pursuant to the Contribution Agreement is senior to the lien of the 
Franchise Tax Obligation on such revenues. 

West Valley City has indicated to UIA that West Valley City does not have any current plans to incur 
additional obligations payable from Franchise Tax Revenues within the next two years.  
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Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Franchise Tax 
   Revenues (1) 

City 
    Debt(2) 

Franchise Tax 
Obligation Total(3) Coverage(4) 

2023 $8,291,949 $2,014,410 $1,568,781 $3,583,191 2.31x 
2024 8,291,949 2,008,330 1,568,781 3,577,111 2.32 
2025 8,291,949 2,009,055 1,568,781 3,577,836 2.32 
2026 8,291,949 2,011,075 1,568,781 3,579,856 2.32 
2027 8,291,949 771,525 1,568,781 2,340,306 3.54 
2028 8,291,949 773,300 1,568,781 2,342,081 3.54 
2029 8,291,949 771,700 1,568,781 2,340,481 3.54 
2030 8,291,949 772,150 1,568,781 2,340,931 3.54 
2031 8,291,949 774,750 1,568,781 2,343,531 3.54 
2032 8,291,949 771,825 1,568,781 2,340,606 3.54 
2033 8,291,949 770,250 1,568,781 2,339,031 3.55 
2034 8,291,949 769,750 1,568,781 2,338,531 3.55 
2035 8,291,949 769,750 1,568,781 2,338,531 3.55 
2036 8,291,949 765,000 1,568,781 2,333,781 3.55 
2037 8,291,949 763,625 1,568,781 2,332,406 3.56 

2038 and after 8,291,949 – 1,568,781 1,568,781 5.29 
  
(Source:  West Valley City and the Municipal Advisor.) 
(1) Based on Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
(2) Consists of outstanding debt service on the West Valley RDA Bonds. These bonds are also secured by other 

revenues as discussed above; however, for purposes of this table coverage is shown using the solely the 
Franchise Tax Revenues.   

(3) Sum of City Debt and Franchise Tax Obligation. 
(4) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Total. 
 
 
City of Orem 

General.  The City of Orem was incorporated in 1919 and covers an area of approximately 18 square miles. 
It is located in Utah County, approximately 40 miles south of Salt Lake City and adjacent to Provo City. 

Population Data 
 

Entity 2000 2010 2020 
2010/2020 
% Change 

City of Orem 84,324 88,328 98,129 11.10% 
Utah County 368,536 516,564 659,399 27.65 
The State 2,233,169 2,763,885 3,271,616 18.37 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau.) 
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Specified Owner-Occupied Units 
 

 City of Orem Utah County The State 
Value Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $50,000 483 2.7% 2,661 2.2% 23,656 3.2% 
$50,000 to $99,999 184 1.0 999 0.8 12,539 1.7 
$100,000 to $149,999 275 1.5 1,604 1.3 27,567 3.8 
$150,000 to $199,999 1,245 7.0 5,644 4.6 55,060 7.6 
$200,000 to $299,999 5,224 29.2 27,277 22.2 176,591 24.2 
$300,000 to $499,999 8,220 45.9 56,434 45.9 283,736 38.9 
$500,000 to $999,999 2,065 11.5 25,137 20.4 129,726 17.8 
$1,000,000 or more 217 1.2 3,189 2.6 20,199 2.8 
     Total 17,913   122,945   729,074   
       
Median Value $329,000 $367,200 $339,700 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
 
Median Household Income 
 

 City of Orem Utah County The State 
Income Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $10,000 977 3.3% 5,653 3.2 36,609 3.5% 
$10,000 to $14,999 654 2.2 3,613 2.0 26,427 2.6 
$15,000 to $24,999 1,959 6.6 8,824 4.9 54,035 5.2 
$25,000 to $34,999 2,617 8.8 11,436 6.4 71,934 7.0 
$35,000 to $49,999 3,635 12.3 18,474 10.3 111,491 10.8 
$50,000 to $74,999 6,058 20.5 32,231 18.0 187,494 18.1 
$75,000 to $99,999 4,186 14.1 28,189 15.7 156,374 15.1 
$100,000 to $149,999 5,246 17.7 37,360 20.8 210,060 20.3 
$150,000 to $199,999 2,007 6.8 17,100 9.5 90,896 8.8 
$200,000 or more  2,254 7.6 16,507 9.2 88,331 8.5 
     Total households: 29,593  179,387  1,033,651  
       
Median Income $70,412 $82,893 $79,133 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
  
Franchise Tax Revenue 
 

Fiscal Year Franchise Tax Revenues % Change 
   2023(1) $8,042,404 11.6% 

2022 7,207,161 2.8 
2021 7,012,632 2.3 
2020 6,857,075 1.0 
2019 6,787,660 1.2 
2018 6,709,878 – 

  
(1) Preliminary; subject to change.   
(Source: City of Orem and the Municipal Advisor.) 
 

No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt.  The City of Orem does not currently have any outstanding obligations 
secured by Franchise Tax Revenues.  The City of Orem has indicated to UIA that it does not have any current plans 
to incur additional obligations payable from Franchise Tax Revenues within the next two years. 
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Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Franchise Tax 
Revenues(1)  

City 
    Debt 

Franchise Tax 
Obligation Total(2) Coverage(3) 

2023 and after $7,207,161 -0- $1,223,786 $1,223,786 5.89x 
  
(Source:  City of Orem and the Municipal Advisor.) 
(1) Based on Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
 (2) Sum of City Debt and Franchise Tax Obligation.  
(3) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Total.   
 
 
Murray City 

General.  Murray City is located in the central portion of Salt Lake County, approximately eight miles south 
of Salt Lake City. Murray City was incorporated in 1902. 

Population Data 
 

Entity 2000 2010 2020 
2010/2020 
% Change 

Murray City 34,024 46,746 50,637 8.32% 
Salt Lake County 898,387 1,029,655 1,185,238 15.11 
The State 2,233,169 2,763,885 3,271,616 18.37 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau.) 
  
Specified Owner-Occupied Units 
 

 Murray City Salt Lake County The State 
Value Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $50,000 362 2.8% 7,236 2.7% 23,656 3.2% 
$50,000 to $99,999 207 1.6 2,297 0.9 12,539 1.7 
$100,000 to $149,999 547 4.2 6,192 2.3 27,567 3.8 
$150,000 to $199,999 1,061 8.2 14,366 5.3 55,060 7.6 
$200,000 to $299,999 2,789 21.5 59,733 22.2 176,591 24.2 
$300,000 to $499,999 5,675 43.7 112,325 41.7 283,736 38.9 
$500,000 to $999,999 2,054 15.8 58,947 21.9 129,726 17.8 
$1,000,000 or more 305 2.3 8,091 3.0 20,199 2.8 
     Total 13,000   269,187  729,074   
       
Median Value $387,700 $367,300 $339,700 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
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Median Household Income 
 

 Murray City Salt Lake County The State 
Income  Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $10,000 626 3.1% 14,039 3.5% 36,609 3.5% 
$10,000 to $14,999 514 2.6 10,421 2.6 26,427 2.6 
$15,000 to $24,999 1,168 5.9 19,619 4.9 54,035 5.2 
$25,000 to $34,999 1,313 6.6 25,281 6.3 71,934 7.0 
$35,000 to $49,999 2,720 13.7 40,961 10.3 111,491 10.8 
$50,000 to $74,999 3,913 19.7 71,372 17.9 187,494 18.1 
$75,000 to $99,999 2,734 13.7 59,176 14.8 156,374 15.1 
$100,000 to $149,999 3,697 18.6 80,807 20.2 210,060 20.3 
$150,000 to $199,999 1,774 8.9 38,215 9.6 90,896 8.8 
$200,000 or more  1,425 7.2 39,693 9.9 88,331 8.5 
     Total households 19,884  399,584  1,033,651  
       
Median Income $75,524 $82,206 $79,133 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
  
Franchise Tax Revenue 
 

Fiscal Year Franchise Tax Revenues % Change 
   2023(1) $4,133,802 12.0% 

2022 3,691,273 7.7 
2021 3,428,349 0.9 
2020 3,397,023 -1.0 
2019 3,432,337 -3.5 
2018 3,555,500 – 

  
(1) Preliminary; subject to change.   
(Source: Murray City and the Municipal Advisor.) 
 
 

No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt.  Murray City does not currently have any outstanding obligations 
secured by Franchise Tax Revenues.  Murray City has indicated to UIA that Murray City does not have any current 
plans to incur additional obligations payable from Franchise Tax Revenues within the next two years.   

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Franchise Tax 
Revenues(1) 

City 
Debt 

Franchise Tax 
Obligation Total(2) Coverage(3) 

2023 and after $3,691,273 -0- $690,241 $690,241 5.35x 
  
(Source:  Murray City and the Municipal Advisor.) 
(1) Based on Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
(2) Sum of City Debt and Franchise Tax Obligation.  
(3) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Total.   
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Midvale City 

General.  Midvale City was incorporated in 1909 and covers an area of approximately 6.5 square miles within 
Salt Lake County. Midvale City is located approximately 10 miles south of Salt Lake City on Interstate 15 in the 
middle of the Salt Lake Valley.   

Population Data 
 

Entity 2000 2010 2020 
2010/2020 
 % Change 

Midvale City 27,029 27,964 36,028 28.84% 
Salt Lake County 898,387 1,029,655 1,185,238 15.11 
The State 2,233,169 2,763,885 3,271,616 18.37 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau.) 
  
Specified Owner-Occupied Units 
 

 Midvale City Salt Lake County The State 
Value Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $50,000 61 0.9% 7,236 2.7% 23,656 3.2% 
$50,000 to $99,999 40 0.6 2,297 0.9 12,539 1.7 
$100,000 to $149,999 91 1.4 6,192 2.3 27,567 3.8 
$150,000 to $199,999 441 6.6 14,366 5.3 55,060 7.6 
$200,000 to $299,999 2,676 40.0 59,733 22.2 176,591 24.2 
$300,000 to $499,999 3,109 46.4 112,325 41.7 283,736 38.9 
$500,000 to $999,999 257 3.8 58,947 21.9 129,726 17.8 
$1,000,000 or more 20 0.3 8,091 3.0 20,199 2.8 
     Total 6,695   269,187  729,074   
       
Median Value $301,600 $367,300 $339,700 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
 
Median Household Income 
 

 Midvale City Salt Lake County The State 
Income Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $10,000 687 4.7% 14,039 3.5% 36,609 3.5% 
$10,000 to $14,999 526 3.6 10,421 2.6 26,427 2.6 
$15,000 to $24,999 964 6.6 19,619 4.9 54,035 5.2 
$25,000 to $34,999 1,022 7.0 25,281 6.3 71,934 7.0 
$35,000 to $49,999 2,134 14.6 40,961 10.3 111,491 10.8 
$50,000 to $74,999 3,488 23.9 71,372 17.9 187,494 18.1 
$75,000 to $99,999 2,075 14.2 59,176 14.8 156,374 15.1 
$100,000 to $149,999 2,319 15.9 80,807 20.2 210,060 20.3 
$150,000 to $199,999 869 6.0 38,215 9.6 90,896 8.8 
$200,000 or more  511 3.5 39,693 9.9 88,331 8.5 
     Total households: 14,595  399,584  1,033,651  
       
Median Income $65,897 $82,206 $79,133 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
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Franchise Tax Revenue 
 

Fiscal Year Franchise Tax Revenues % Change 
   2023(1) $2,270,932 11.5% 

2022 2,037,118 8.4 
2021 1,879,868 -9.8 
2020 2,083,511 -1.5 
2019 2,115,894 -4.4 
2018 2,212,291 – 

  
(1) Preliminary; subject to change.   
(Source: Midvale City and the Municipal Advisor.) 
 

No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt.  Midvale City does not currently have any outstanding obligations 
secured by Franchise Tax Revenues.  Midvale City has indicated it does not have any current plans to incur any 
obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues within the next two years.   

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 
 

Fiscal  
Year 

Franchise Tax 
Revenues(1) 

City 
Debt 

Franchise Tax 
Obligation Total(2) Coverage(3) 

2023 and after $2,037,118 -0- $339,988 $339,988 5.09x 
  
(Source:  Midvale City and the Municipal Advisor.) 
(1) Based on Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 
(2) Sum of City Debt and Franchise Tax Obligation.  
(3) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Total.   
 
 
Layton City 

General.  Layton City was incorporated in 1920 and covers an area of approximately 22 square miles. Layton 
City is located in Davis County, approximately 25 miles north of Salt Lake City and approximately 15 miles south of 
Ogden City.   

Population Data 
 

Entity 2000 2010 2020 
2010/2020 
% Change 

Layton City 58,474 67,311 81,773 21.49% 
Davis County 238,994 306,479 362,679 18.34 
The State 2,233,169 2,763,885 3,271,616 18.37 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau.) 
  



 

 45 

Specified Owner-Occupied Units 
 

 Layton City Davis County The State 
Value Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $50,000 1,019 5.5 2,900 3.4 23,656 3.2% 
$50,000 to $99,999 311 1.7 883 1.0 12,539 1.7 
$100,000 to $149,999 315 1.7 1,499 1.8 27,567 3.8 
$150,000 to $199,999 1,262 6.8 4,826 5.7 55,060 7.6 
$200,000 to $299,999 5,423 29.1 20,244 23.8 176,591 24.2 
$300,000 to $499,999 7,892 42.3 39,129 45.9 283,736 38.9 
$500,000 to $999,999 2,284 12.3 14,156 16.6 129,726 17.8 
$1,000,000 or more 134 0.7 1,529 1.8 20,199 2.8 
     Total 18,640   85,166   729,074   
       
Median Value $320,000 $351,400 $339,700 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
 
Median Household Income 
 

 Layton City Davis County The State 
Income Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $10,000 611 2.4% 2,302 2.1% 36,609 3.5% 
$10,000 to $14,999 474 1.8 2,008 1.8 26,427 2.6 
$15,000 to $24,999 1,412 5.4 4,423 4.0 54,035 5.2 
$25,000 to $34,999 1,133 4.4 5,485 5.0 71,934 7.0 
$35,000 to $49,999 2,297 8.8 9,410 8.6 111,491 10.8 
$50,000 to $74,999 4,995 19.2 18,384 16.7 187,494 18.1 
$75,000 to $99,999 4,577 17.6 17,528 15.9 156,374 15.1 
$100,000 to $149,999 5,326 20.5 26,989 24.6 210,060 20.3 
$150,000 to $199,999 2,978 11.5 12,065 11.0 90,896 8.8 
$200,000 or more  2,155 8.3 11,305 10.3 88,331 8.5 
     Total households: 25,958  109,899  1,033,651  
       
Median Income $85,224 $92,765 $79,133 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
  
Franchise Tax Revenue 
 

Fiscal Year Franchise Tax Revenues % Change 
   2023(1) $5,076,100 19.4% 

2022 4,250,584 6.7 
2021 3,982,992 5.9 
2020 3,762,003 1.4 
2019 3,710,152 -4.6 
2018 3,890,891 – 

  
(1) Preliminary; subject to change.   
(Source: Layton City and the Municipal Advisor.) 
 

Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt.  Layton City accelerated the expansion of the UIA Network within its 
boundaries through the issuance of the Layton City Telecommunications and Franchise Tax Revenues Bonds, Series 
2018 (referred to herein as the “Layton Bonds”) by UIA. The Layton Bonds are special limited obligations of UIA 
payable from revenues derived from amounts payable under the service contract entered into between UIA and Layton 
City. The Layton Bonds are secured by the Layton City Franchise Tax Revenues on a parity with Layton City’s 
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Franchise Tax Obligation.  Layton City has indicated to UIA that Layton City does not have any current plans to incur 
additional obligations payable from Franchise Tax Revenues within the next two years.  

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Franchise Tax 
Revenues(1)  

Layton 
   Bonds(2) 

Franchise Tax 
Obligation Total(3) Coverage(4) 

2023 $4,250,584 $1,454,519 $937,272 $2,391,791 1.78x 
2024 4,250,584 1,563,694 937,272 2,500,966 1.70 
2025 4,250,584 1,562,644 937,272 2,499,916 1.70 
2026 4,250,584 1,562,744 937,272 2,500,016 1.70 
2027 4,250,584 1,558,544 937,272 2,495,816 1.70 
2028 4,250,584 1,559,669 937,272 2,496,941 1.70 
2029 4,250,584 1,559,044 937,272 2,496,316 1.70 
2030 4,250,584 1,556,669 937,272 2,493,941 1.70 
2031 4,250,584 1,557,419 937,272 2,494,691 1.70 
2032 4,250,584 1,556,169 937,272 2,493,441 1.70 
2033 4,250,584 1,552,919 937,272 2,490,191 1.71 
2034 4,250,584 1,552,544 937,272 2,489,816 1.71 
2035 4,250,584 1,561,531 937,272 2,498,803 1.70 
2036 4,250,584 1,560,372 937,272 2,497,644 1.70 
2037 4,250,584 1,550,725 937,272 2,487,997 1.71 
2038 4,250,584 1,551,850 937,272 2,489,122 1.71 
2039 4,250,584 1,550,225 937,272 2,487,497 1.71 
2040 4,250,584 1,545,850 937,272 2,483,122 1.71 
2041 4,250,584 1,543,600 937,272 2,480,872 1.71 
2042 4,250,584 1,543,225 937,272 2,480,497 1.71 
2043 4,250,584 1,547,503 937,272 2,484,775 1.71 
2044 4,250,584 1,546,994 937,272 2,484,266 1.71 
2045 4,250,584 1,544,353 937,272 2,481,625 1.71 

2046 and beyond 4,250,584 0 937,272 937,272 4.54 
  
(Source:  Layton City and the Municipal Advisor.)   
(1) Based on Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
(2) Represents fiscal year debt service on the Layton Bonds, which are special limited obligations of UIA payable 

from revenues derived from amounts payable under a separate service contract between UIA and Layton 
City. However, the Layton Bonds are also secured by the Layton City Franchise Tax Revenues on a parity 
with Layton City’s Franchise Tax Obligation.  The Layton Bonds have a final scheduled maturity of October 
15, 2044. The City has no other Franchise Tax debt.   

(3) Sum of Layton Bonds Debt Service and Franchise Tax Obligation.  
(4) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Total.   
 
 
Lindon City 

General.  Lindon City was incorporated in 1924 and is located in northern Utah County, approximately 38 
miles south of Salt Lake City. It is bordered by the cities of Orem, Pleasant Grove and American Fork, and has an 
area of approximately eight square miles.   
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Population Data 
 

Entity 2000 2010 2020 
2010/2020 
% Change 

Lindon City 8,363 10,070 11,397 13.18% 
Utah County 368,536 516,564 659,399 27.65 
The State 2,233,169 2,763,885 3,271,616 18.37 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau.) 
  
Specified Owner-Occupied Units 
 

 Lindon City Utah County The State 
Value Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $50,000 24 1.0 2,661 2.2% 23,656 3.2% 
$50,000 to $99,999 7 0.3 999 0.8 12,539 1.7 
$100,000 to $149,999 0 0.0 1,604 1.3 27,567 3.8 
$150,000 to $199,999 19 0.8 5,644 4.6 55,060 7.6 
$200,000 to $299,999 204 8.6 27,277 22.2 176,591 24.2 
$300,000 to $499,999 1,042 43.9 56,434 45.9 283,736 38.9 
$500,000 to $999,999 887 37.4 25,137 20.4 129,726 17.8 
$1,000,000 or more 189 8.0 3,189 2.6 20,199 2.8 
     Total 2,372   122,945   729,074   
       
Median Value $478,800 $367,200 $339,700 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
 
Median Household Income 
 

 Lindon City Utah County The State 
Income Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $10,000 19 0.6% 5,653 3.2 36,609 3.5% 
$10,000 to $14,999 18 0.6 3,613 2.0 26,427 2.6 
$15,000 to $24,999 113 3.8 8,824 4.9 54,035 5.2 
$25,000 to $34,999 186 6.2 11,436 6.4 71,934 7.0 
$35,000 to $49,999 209 7.0 18,474 10.3 111,491 10.8 
$50,000 to $74,999 590 19.7 32,231 18.0 187,494 18.1 
$75,000 to $99,999 357 11.9 28,189 15.7 156,374 15.1 
$100,000 to $149,999 661 22.0 37,360 20.8 210,060 20.3 
$150,000 to $199,999 425 14.2 17,100 9.5 90,896 8.8 
$200,000 or more  422 14.1 16,507 9.2 88,331 8.5 
     Total households: 3,000  179,387  1,033,651  
       
Median Income $100,351 $82,893 $79,133 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
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Franchise Tax Revenue 
 

Fiscal Year Franchise Tax Revenues % Change 
   2023(1) $1,866,683 16.6% 

2022 1,601,330 7.4 
2021 1,490,977 6.9 
2020 1,394,692 2.8 
2019 1,356,176 -3.0 
2018 1,398,641 – 

  
(1) Preliminary; subject to change.   
(Source: Lindon City and the Municipal Advisor.) 
 

No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt.  Lindon City does not currently have any outstanding obligations 
secured by Franchise Tax Revenues.  Lindon City has indicated to UIA that Lindon City does not have any current 
plans to incur additional obligations payable from Franchise Tax Revenues within the next two years.   

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Franchise Tax 
Revenues(1) 

City 
Debt 

Franchise Tax 
Obligation Total(2) Coverage(3) 

2023 and after $1,601,330 -0- $172,516 $172,516 9.28x 
  
(Source:  Lindon City and the Municipal Advisor.) 
(1) Based on Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
(2) Sum of City Debt and Franchise Tax Obligation.  
(3) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Total.   
 
 
Brigham City 

General.  Brigham City was incorporated in 1867 and is located in Box Elder County, approximately 60 miles 
north of Salt Lake City. Brigham City encompasses approximately 23 square miles.   

Population Data 
 

Entity 2000 2010 2020 
2010/2020 
% Change 

Brigham City 17,411 17,899 19,650 9.78% 
Box Elder County 42,745 49,975 57,666 15.39 
The State 2,233,169 2,763,885 3,271,616 18.37 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau.) 
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Specified Owner-Occupied Units 
 

 Brigham City Box Elder County The State 
Value Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $50,000 82 2.0% 480 3.5% 23,656 3.2% 
$50,000 to $99,999 19 0.5 324 2.4 12,539 1.7 
$100,000 to $149,999 449 10.7 1,319 9.6 27,567 3.8 
$150,000 to $199,999 1,053 25.1 2,264 16.4 55,060 7.6 
$200,000 to $299,999 1,613 38.4 4,546 33.0 176,591 24.2 
$300,000 to $499,999 852 20.3 3,809 27.7 283,736 38.9 
$500,000 to $999,999 116 2.8 846 6.1 129,726 17.8 
$1,000,000 or more 15 0.4 182 1.3 20,199 2.8 
     Total 4,199   13,770   729,074   
       
Median Value $227,100 $250,500 $339,700 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
 
Median Household Income 
 

 Brigham City Box Elder County The State 
Income Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $10,000 561 8.5% 946 5.2% 36,609 3.5% 
$10,000 to $14,999 229 3.5 504 2.8 26,427 2.6 
$15,000 to $24,999 490 7.5 874 4.8 54,035 5.2 
$25,000 to $34,999 485 7.4 1,320 7.3 71,934 7.0 
$35,000 to $49,999 987 15.0 2,416 13.3 111,491 10.8 
$50,000 to $74,999 1,292 19.6 3,933 21.6 187,494 18.1 
$75,000 to $99,999 940 14.3 2,792 15.3 156,374 15.1 
$100,000 to $149,999 1,076 16.4 3,602 19.8 210,060 20.3 
$150,000 to $199,999 340 5.2 1,084 6.0 90,896 8.8 
$200,000 or more  176 2.7 723 4.0 88,331 8.5 
     Total households: 6,576  18,194  1,033,651  
       
Median Income $66,615 $67,486 $79,133 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
  
Franchise Tax Revenue 
 

Fiscal Year Franchise Tax Revenues % Change 
   2023(1) $1,883,000 37.8% 

2022 1,366,146 6.2 
2021 1,286,179 4.0 
2020 1,237,269 -1.5 
2019 1,256,742 -3.1 
2018 1,297,465 – 

  
(1) Preliminary; subject to change.   
(Source: Brigham City and the Municipal Advisor.) 
 

No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt.  Brigham City does not currently have any outstanding obligations 
secured by Franchise Tax Revenues.  Brigham City has indicated to UIA that Brigham City does not have any current 
plans to incur additional obligations payable from Franchise Tax Revenues within the next two years.   
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Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Franchise Tax 
Revenues (1) 

City 
Debt 

Franchise Tax 
Obligation Total(2) Coverage(3) 

2023 and after $1,366,146 -0- $31,831 $31,831 42.92x 
  
(Source:  Brigham City and the Municipal Advisor.) 
(1) Based on Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
(2) Sum of City Debt and Franchise Tax Obligation.   
(3) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Total.    
 
 
Centerville City 

General.  Centerville City was incorporated in 1915. It covers an area of approximately six square miles and 
is located in Davis County. Centerville City is approximately 12 miles north of Salt Lake City and 25 miles south of 
Ogden City. 

Population Data 
 

Entity 2000 2010 2020 
2010/2020 
% Change 

Centerville City 14,585 15,335 16,884 10.10% 
Davis County 238,994 306,479 362,679 18.34 
The State 2,233,169 2,763,885 3,271,616 18.37 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau.) 
  
Specified Owner-Occupied Units 
 

 Centerville City Davis County The State 
Value Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $50,000 116 2.4% 2,900 3.4% 23,656 3.2% 
$50,000 to $99,999 67 1.4 883 1.0 12,539 1.7 
$100,000 to $149,999 11 0.2 1,499 1.8 27,567 3.8 
$150,000 to $199,999 205 4.2 4,826 5.7 55,060 7.6 
$200,000 to $299,999 870 18.0 20,244 23.8 176,591 24.2 
$300,000 to $499,999 2,523 52.1 39,129 45.9 283,736 38.9 
$500,000 to $999,999 975 20.1 14,156 16.6 129,726 17.8 
$1,000,000 or more 77 1.6 1,529 1.8 20,199 2.8 
     Total 4,844   85,166   729,074   
       
Median Value $374,800 $351,400 $339,700 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
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Median Household Income 
 

 Centerville City Davis County The State 
Income Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $10,000 74 1.3% 2,302 2.1% 36,609 3.5% 
$10,000 to $14,999 130 2.3 2,008 1.8 26,427 2.6 
$15,000 to $24,999 232 4.1 4,423 4.0 54,035 5.2 
$25,000 to $34,999 268 4.7 5,485 5.0 71,934 7.0 
$35,000 to $49,999 325 5.7 9,410 8.6 111,491 10.8 
$50,000 to $74,999 857 15.1 18,384 16.7 187,494 18.1 
$75,000 to $99,999 726 12.8 17,528 15.9 156,374 15.1 
$100,000 to $149,999 1,643 28.9 26,989 24.6 210,060 20.3 
$150,000 to $199,999 689 12.1 12,065 11.0 90,896 8.8 
$200,000 or more  744 13.1 11,305 10.3 88,331 8.5 
     Total households 5,688  109,899  1,033,651  
       
Median Income $107,808 $92,765 $79,133 

  
(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.) 
  
Franchise Tax Revenue 
 

Fiscal Year Franchise Tax Revenues % Change 
   2023(1) $1,021,981 19.2% 

2022 857,132 4.6 
2021 819,327 -0.2 
2020 821,359 2.4 
2019 802,491 -6.1 
2018 854,772 – 

  
(1) Preliminary; subject to change.   
(Source: Centerville City and the Municipal Advisor.) 
 

No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt.  Centerville City does not currently have any outstanding obligations 
secured by Franchise Tax Revenues.  Centerville City has indicated to UIA that it does not have any current plans to 
incur any obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues within the next two years.   

Franchise Tax Coverage Table 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Franchise Tax 
Revenues (1) 

City 
Debt 

Franchise Tax 
Obligation Total(2) Coverage(3) 

2023 and after $857,132 -0- $186,737 $186,737 4.59x 
  
(Source:  Centerville City and the Municipal Advisor.) 
(1) Based on Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
(2) Sum of City Debt and Franchise Tax Obligation.  
(3) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Total.   
 
 

BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS 

The purchase of the Series 2023 Bonds involves certain investment risks that are discussed throughout this 
Official Statement. No prospective purchaser of the Series 2023 Bonds should make a decision to purchase any of the 
Series 2023 Bonds without first reading and considering the entire Official Statement, including all Appendices, and 
making an independent evaluation of all such information. Certain of those investment risks are described below. The 
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list of risks described below is not intended to be definitive or exhaustive and the order in which the following factors 
are presented is not intended to reflect the relative importance of any such risks. 

Revenue Limitations 

General.  The Series 2023 Bonds are payable solely from and secured by a pledge and assignment of the Net 
Revenues and certain other funds pledged under the Indenture. A variety of factors could impact the amount and the 
sources of Net Revenues and such other funds pledged. Among other things, economic conditions, the demand for 
communication services within the boundaries of the Contracting Members, competition from other 
telecommunications providers, technological advances, demographic changes, changes in governmental regulations 
and policies may adversely affect the financial condition of UIA, and consequently, the availability of Net Revenues. 
Since inception, UIA has been able to operate without requesting or requiring loans pursuant to the Franchise Tax 
Obligation provisions of the Interlocal Agreement to cover operation and maintenance expenses of UIA and debt 
service on outstanding bonds.  UIA believes that the UIA Network will continue to operate in a manner that will allow 
it to pay Operation and Maintenance Expenses and to pay debt service on the Series 2023 Bonds and Outstanding 
Parity Bonds from Net Revenues. Further, UIA does not expect any further working capital assessments will be 
required to pay operational expenses of the UTOPIA Network. However, no assurance can be given that the Net 
Revenues will be sufficient to pay debt service on the Series 2023 Bonds and Outstanding Parity Bonds when due. 

Revenues from Fees.  Certain Revenues (other than Franchise Tax Revenues) are generated from fees that 
Contracting Members, service providers or UIA charge to Customers. Unlike other municipal enterprises, such as 
water and sewer systems or electric systems, residents within the Contracting Members are not required to participate 
in the UIA Network. Subscription to the UIA Network by end users is voluntary and may be canceled upon request. 
Therefore, price is more elastic than fees for other municipal enterprise systems and cannot be set and sustained at 
levels that would discourage participation by existing and potential Customers. Additionally, although Contracting 
Members have the ability to establish such fees without obtaining approval of any regulatory or other governmental 
agency, under State law, such fees must be deemed reasonable for the service provided. The ultimate determination 
of reasonableness lies with the Utah courts in the event any such fees are challenged. 

Franchise Tax Revenues.  The Franchise Tax Revenues for each Contracting Member are generated from 
receipts of Municipal Energy Sales and Use Taxes. The global, national and state economy, weather conditions, 
inflation, global conflicts, and many other factors can affect the level of receipts of such Revenues. Additionally, UIA 
and the Contracting Members cannot predict whether the State Legislature will modify franchise tax rates or 
distributions or take other actions that affect the ability of a Contracting Member to generate Municipal Energy Sales 
and Use Taxes. No assurance can be given that the Municipal Energy Sales and Use Taxes will remain sufficient to 
meet the Franchise Tax Obligation of each Contracting Member. 

Under certain circumstances, the Franchise Tax Obligation of a Contracting Member is permitted to be 
payable on a subordinate basis to a pledge of Franchise Tax Revenues for the payment of its City Debt. If a Contracting 
Member has City Debt outstanding and payable on a senior basis with respect to the Franchise Tax Revenues, all such 
Franchise Tax Revenues will be first applied to pay debt service on such City Debt prior to meeting its Franchise Tax 
Obligation. See “CONTRACTING MEMBERS” herein. 

The annual Franchise Tax Obligation of each Contracting Member is limited as set forth in the Service 
Contract. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS—Franchise Tax Obligation of 
Contracting Members” herein. Further, each Franchise Tax Obligation is not a joint and several obligation of the 
Contracting Members, and no Contracting Member is obligated to satisfy the Franchise Tax Obligation of any other 
Contracting Member.  

Expansion and Operation of the UIA Network 

Expansion of the UIA Network is important to generating and maintaining Revenues at levels that will allow 
UIA to make timely payment of debt service on the Bonds.  Expansion  requires construction and construction involves 
many risks common to projects such as shortages or delays in the availability of materials and qualified labor, work 
stoppages, contractual disputes with contractors or suppliers or others, weather interferences, construction accidents, 
delays in obtaining legal approvals, unforeseen engineering, archeological or environmental problems and 
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unanticipated cost increases, any of which could give rise to significant delays or cost overruns.  No assurance can be 
given that expansion of the UIA Network will occur in a timely manner or that UIA will be able to secure available 
funds to pursue such expansion.   

UIA and UTOPIA, as UIA’s contracted operator, are tasked with managing, operating and maintaining the 
UIA Network in an efficient and economical manner consistent with prudent telecommunications utility practice.  As 
the UIA Network expands, its operation and maintenance expenses may increase, and no assurance can be given that 
such expenses will not exceed available funds of UIA.  UIA is exempt from regulation by the Utah Public Service 
Commission (“PSC”), but the operation of the UIA Network is subject to various other governmental rules and 
regulations.  If the UIA Network is not operating or operable as required by State law, UIA may be subject to certain 
penalties or other remedies.  In addition, service providers who utilize the UIA Network may be subject to regulation 
by the PSC, and any noncompliance by such service providers could negatively affect the operation of the UIA 
Network. 

Competition 

There is significant competition in the Utah telecommunications market.  While UIA believes that the UIA 
Network currently offers competitive pricing and certain distinct technological advantages, such as bidirectional speed 
offerings, competing telecommunications providers utilize greater name recognition, financial resources and 
marketing services to compete for users.  Additionally, certain competitors offer some services at lower prices than 
service providers utilizing the UIA Network.  There can be no assurance that UIA or its service providers will have 
the financial resources or management expertise to continue to compete effectively for customers in the future. 

Advances in internet, data, television, telephone and related technology may occur at a very rapid pace.  There 
can be no assurance that future advances in technology implemented by existing competitors or others will not render 
the services provided by the service providers of the combined UTOPIA/UIA Networks noncompetitive.   

Destruction of the Network 

UIA, like many entities and municipalities in the State, may be subject to unpredictable seismic activity, fires, 
flood or other natural disasters.  Climate change may intensify and increase the frequency of extreme weather events, 
such as wildfires and floods which could affect the UIA Network. The loss of life and property damage that could 
result from such extreme weather events or a major natural disaster could have a material and adverse impact on the 
UIA Network and the local community and economy.  

The Indenture requires that UIA, in its operation of the UIA Network, maintain insurance in such amounts 
and to such extent as is normally carried by other operating public utilities of the same size and type.  In the event of 
any loss or damage, the Indenture requires that the proceeds of any such insurance be used first to restore or replace 
the property lost or damaged. There can be no assurance that the proceeds of any such insurance will be sufficient to 
restore or replace the lost or damaged property of UIA.   

Pursuant to the issuance of the UTOPIA Bonds (hereinafter defined), UTOPIA is required to maintain similar 
insurance, and in the event of any loss or damage, such insurance proceeds would be used first to restore or replace 
the property lost or damaged.  There can be no assurance that the proceeds of any such insurance will be sufficient to 
restore or replace the lost or damaged property of UTOPIA.   

The infrastructure of the UIA Network and the UTOPIA Network is regionally diverse and widely 
distributed.  UIA also notes certain risks to UIA Network and the UTOPIA Network are reduced due to the 
longstanding policies of UIA and UTOPIA to create network redundancy where possible and to place fiber optic lines 
in deep trenches when possible.  UIA estimates that approximately 85% of the UIA and UTOPIA Networks are 
underground.  However, any damage to or destruction of any portion of the UIA Network or the UTOPIA Network 
may prevent UIA from providing telecommunications services to some or all of its service providers.  In such event, 
the revenues of UIA may decrease. 
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Reliance on UTOPIA 

UIA entered into the UTOPIA Service Agreement and the IRU Agreement to advance UIA’s objective of 
providing high speed telecommunications facilities to its Members and to capitalize on the economies of scale that 
can be achieved by connecting the UIA Network to the UTOPIA Network.  Although the UIA Network could connect 
to many other networks other than the UTOPIA Network, no other fiber optic networks have the physical proximity 
to the homes that UIA intends to connect to the UIA Network, and the costs of connecting to different networks would 
be prohibitive. 

UTOPIA undertook the acquisition and construction of the UTOPIA Network in 2004 and financed and 
refinanced such acquisition and construction with the issuance of bonds that are secured both by revenues of the 
UTOPIA Network and by a sales tax pledge of certain of UTOPIA’s members.  Although the UTOPIA Network is 
operational and generating revenues, the revenues have previously been insufficient to pay operational expenses and 
meet debt service requirements of the UTOPIA Bonds.  However, there has been no payment default of debt service 
on the UTOPIA Bonds.   

As of June 30, 2023, UTOPIA’s Sales Tax and Telecommunications Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022 
(the “UTOPIA Series 2022 Bonds”), were outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $202,645,000. The 
UTOPIA Series 2022 Bonds are not secured by the Net Revenues but are secured by a separate and different revenue 
stream. 

UTOPIA also has notes payable to its member cities in the outstanding amount of $181,891,000, reflecting 
member city contributions to pay the UTOPIA Bonds.  The notes are payable on a subordinate basis to the UTOPIA 
Bonds. 

UIA is not responsible for paying debt service on the UTOPIA Bonds or its other outstanding obligations.  If 
UTOPIA is unable to meet its financial obligations as they become due, its continued ability to operate the UTOPIA 
Network could be impacted.  Any disruption or inability of UTOPIA to operate the UTOPIA Network would likely 
have a material adverse impact on the ability of UIA to meet its customer and financial obligations.  

Without sufficient moneys to operate, the UTOPIA Network could terminate, which would likely cause a 
shut-down of the UIA Network.  In the event of a shut-down of the UIA Network following the termination of the 
UTOPIA Network or otherwise, amounts payable by the Contracting Members under the Service Contract are required 
to continue to be paid; however, there can be no assurance that such amounts will be sufficient to pay debt service on 
the Series 2023 Bonds and Outstanding Parity Bonds after other required expenses have been paid. 

Cybersecurity 

The risk of cyberattacks against commercial enterprises, including those operated for a governmental 
purpose, has become more prevalent in recent years.  A cyberattack could cause the UIA Network or the UTOPIA 
Network to cease or limit operational capacity, for short or extended lengths of time.  Additionally, other potential 
negative consequences include data loss or compromise, diversion of resources to prevent future incidences and 
reputational damage resulting in loss of future revenues.  UIA employs a cybersecurity program that consists of 
policies, procedures, and technical controls to protect its network.  To date, UIA has not experienced a successful 
cyberattack.  UIA believes it has made all reasonable efforts to ensure that any such attack is not successful and that 
the UIA Network and the UTOPIA Network will not see any loss of service to customers or other consequences.  
However, there can be no assurance that a cyberattack will not occur in a manner resulting in damage to the UIA 
Network or the UTOPIA Network or other challenges.  UIA has insurance coverage for cyber liability.  

Future Changes in Laws 

Various state and federal laws, regulations and constitutional provisions apply to UIA, UTOPIA, each 
respective network, the Members and the Series 2023 Bonds.  Future actions of State or federal legislatures may affect 
the overall financial conditions of UIA or its ability to continue to collect revenues for its ongoing operations.  UIA 
can give no assurance that there will not be a change in, interpretation of or addition to such applicable laws, provisions 
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and regulations that would have a material effect on the finances of UIA, its corporate existence or its ability to offer 
advanced telecommunications services, collect revenues or attract service providers and customers. 

Limited Remedies 

The remedies of the Series 2023 Bondholders upon an Event of Default under the Indenture are limited.  See 
“APPENDIX B—EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE—Remedies.”  Under the 
Indenture, there is no contractual remedy of acceleration.  Further, the legal right and ability of a Series 2023 
Bondholder to enforce its rights and remedies under the Indenture may be limited by laws relating to bankruptcy, 
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights.  In addition, a 
Series 2023 Bondholder’s ability to enforce such rights and remedies may require judicial actions that are often subject 
to discretion and delay or that otherwise may not be readily available or may be limited. 

Withdrawal or Change of Bond Rating 

The Series 2023 Bonds have received a rating from Fitch Ratings.  Such rating can be changed or withdrawn 
at any time for reasons both under and outside UIA’s control.  Any change or withdrawal of any rating on the Series 
2023 Bonds could adversely affect the ability of investors to sell the Series 2023 Bonds or may affect the price at 
which they can be sold. 

Secondary Market for the Bonds 

No assurance can be given that a secondary market will develop for the purchase and sale of the Series 2023 
Bonds or, if a secondary market exists, that such Series 2023 Bonds can be sold for any particular price.  The 
Underwriter is not obligated to engage in secondary market trading or to repurchase any of the Series 2023 Bonds at 
the request of the owners thereof. 

Prices of the Series 2023 Bonds as traded in the secondary market are subject to adjustment upward and 
downward in response to changes in the credit markets and other circumstances.  No guarantee exists as to the future 
market value of the Series 2023 Bonds.  Such market value could be substantially different from the original purchase 
price. 

Continuing Disclosure 

A failure by UIA to comply with its Continuing Disclosure Undertaking with respect to the Series 2023 
Bonds (see “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE” herein) will not constitute an event of default on the Series 2023 Bonds.  
Any failure of UIA’s obligations under the Undertaking must be reported in accordance with Rule 15c2-12 (the 
“Rule”) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) under the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Series 
2023 Bonds and their market price. 

Suitability of Investment 

The interest rate borne by the Series 2023 Bonds is intended to compensate the investor for assuming the risk 
of investing in the Series 2023 Bonds.  Furthermore, the tax-exempt feature of the Series 2023 Bonds is currently 
more valuable to high tax bracket investors than to investors that are in low tax brackets.  As such, the value of the 
interest compensation to any particular investor will vary with individual tax rates and circumstances.  Each 
prospective investor should carefully examine this Official Statement and its own financial condition to make a 
judgment as to its ability to bear the economic risk of such an investment and whether or not the Series 2023 Bonds 
are an appropriate investment for such investor. 

Factors Relating to Tax Exemption 

As discussed under “TAX MATTERS” herein, interest on the Series 2023 Bonds could become includible 
in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation, retroactive to the date the Series 2023 Bonds were issued, as 
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a result of future acts or omissions of UIA in violation of its covenants in the Indenture.  Should such an event of 
taxability occur, the Series 2023 Bonds are not subject to any special redemption. 

There are or may be pending in the Congress of the United States legislative proposals relating to the federal 
tax treatment of interest on the Series 2023 Bonds, including some that carry retroactive effective dates, that, if 
enacted, could affect the market value of the Series 2023 Bonds.  Finally, reduction or elimination of the tax-exempt 
status of obligations such as the Series 2023 Bonds could have an adverse effect on UIA’s ability to access the capital 
markets to finance future capital or operational needs by reducing market demand for such obligations or materially 
increasing borrowing costs of UIA. 

The tax-exempt bond office of the Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) is conducting audits of 
tax-exempt bonds, both compliance checks and full audits, with increasing frequency to determine whether, in the 
view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is includible in the gross income of the owners thereof 
for federal income tax purposes.  It cannot be predicted whether the Service will commence any such audit.  If an audit 
is commenced, under current procedures the Service may treat UIA as a taxpayer and the Series 2023 Bondholders 
may have no right to participate in such proceeding.  The commencement of an audit with respect to any tax-exempt 
obligations of UIA could adversely affect the market value and liquidity of the Series 2023 Bonds, regardless of the 
ultimate outcome.   

Infectious Disease Outbreak 

The financial and operating condition of UIA, including the UIA’s ability to collect Revenues, may be 
materially affected by a national or localized outbreak of an infectious disease, such as COVID-19, or other highly 
contagious or epidemic diseases (an “Outbreak”).  Regardless of any policies or actions of UIA or the existence of 
governmental aid programs, there can be no assurances that an Outbreak, including COVID-19, will not materially 
affect the regional economy or the national or global economies and, accordingly, materially adversely affect the 
financial or operating condition of UIA, including the UIA’s collection of Revenues.  UIA cannot predict (i) the 
duration or extent of any Outbreak; (ii) the scope, duration or effect on UIA of government restrictions, if any, related 
to commercial or other activity by businesses and individuals; (iii) whether and to what extent any Outbreak may 
disrupt the local or global economy or financial markets, or whether any such disruption may adversely affect UIA’s 
activities; or (iv) whether any of the foregoing may have a material adverse effect on the finances and operations of 
UIA, including, without limitation, the ability to collect Revenues and meet its debt service obligations.   

Continuing Inflation  

UIA’s service area, like the rest of the country, has recently experienced significant increases in costs of gas, 
energy, and supplies, in addition to associated wage and salary pressures. Some cost increases are being driven by 
COVID-related supply chain disruptions, whereas others appear unrelated to the pandemic.  Due to the varying 
contributors to the current inflationary environment, it is not possible to state with certainty the period of time over 
which the recent price increases will continue.  Some inflationary costs impacting operations (e.g. wages and salaries, 
operating supplies, etc.) may be recovered via rate actions approved by the UIA’s Board. While management and the 
UIA Board are sensitive to billing increases to customers, the risk associated with inflationary pressures is mitigated 
by the UIA Board’s unlimited rate setting authority. The inability of UIA to increase fees and charges to keep pace 
with inflation could adversely affect the financial condition and results of operations of the Network.  UIA also relies 
on highly skilled employees in many areas and if it does not offer or keep pace with prevailing market wages and 
salaries, it may have difficulty recruiting talent and face significant pressures in operating the Network effectively.  
UIA cannot predict the extent of inflationary pressures on its wages and salaries or other operating costs, including 
energy costs.  

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

UIA will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the “Undertaking”) for the benefit of the beneficial 
owners of the Series 2023 Bonds to send certain information annually and to provide notice of certain events to the 
MSRB pursuant to the requirements of the Rule.  No person, other than UIA, has undertaken, or is otherwise expected, 
to provide continuing disclosure with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds.  At present, such dissemination is made 
through the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access system, referred to as EMMA (“EMMA”).  UIA is required 
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to deliver such information within 210 days after the last day of UIA’s fiscal year (currently June 30), beginning with 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.  The information to be provided on an annual basis, the events which will be 
noticed on an occurrence basis and a statement of other terms of the Undertaking, including termination, amendment 
and remedies, are set forth in “APPENDIX E—FORM OF THE CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING.” 

During the past five years, although UIA timely filed its audited financial statements and certain operating 
information in connection with previously executed undertakings, it failed in certain years to timely file certain annual 
financial and operating information, including by failing to file certain financial and operating information with respect 
to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, as required by prior undertakings relating to its Telecommunications Revenue 
and Refunding Bonds, Series 2017A and 2017B, Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A, 
and Layton City Telecommunications and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2018. UIA has since filed the missing 
information on EMMA, together with a notice of failure to file.  Due to staffing shortages, UIA failed to timely file 
its audited financial statements and certain annual financial and operating information with respect to the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2021, as required by all prior UIA undertakings.  UIA timely filed a notice of failure to file on EMMA 
and has since filed the required information.  UIA contracts with a third-party disclosure agent to assist UIA in ensuring 
compliance with its continuing disclosure undertakings.   

LEGAL MATTERS 

Absence of Litigation 

Jeffrey Starkey, general counsel to UIA, will issue an opinion dated the date of closing, that will state, among 
other things, that there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or any other litigation or investigation at law or in equity, 
before or by any court, public board or body, which is pending or threatened, (a) challenging the creation, organization, 
or existence of UIA; (b) challenging the titles of its directors or officers to their respective offices; (c) seeking to 
restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, or delivery of the Series 2023 Bonds; (d) directly or indirectly contesting or 
affecting the proceedings or the authority by which the Series 2023 Bonds are issued; (e) contesting the validity of the 
Series 2023 Bonds or the issuance thereof; or (f) which if determined adversely to UIA would have a materially 
adverse effect on the financial condition of UIA or its ability to meet the debt service requirements on the Series 2023 
Bonds. 

General 

All legal matters incident to the authorization and issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds are subject to the 
approval of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Salt Lake City, Utah, Bond Counsel to UIA. Certain legal matters will be passed 
upon for UIA by its general counsel, Jeffrey Starkey. Certain matters relating to disclosure will be passed upon by 
Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Disclosure Counsel to UIA. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriter by 
its counsel, Chapman and Cutler LLP.  LRB Public Finance Advisors, Inc., Salt Lake City, Utah, has acted as 
municipal advisor to UIA in connection with the issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds. The approving opinion of Bond 
Counsel will be delivered with the Series 2023 Bonds. A form of the opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in 
APPENDIX D of this Official Statement. 

TAX MATTERS 

The following is a summary of the material federal and State of Utah income tax consequences of holding 
and disposing of the Series 2023 Bonds.  This summary is based upon laws, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions 
now in effect, all of which are subject to change (possibly on a retroactive basis).  This summary does not discuss all 
aspects of federal income taxation that may be relevant to investors in light of their personal investment circumstances 
or describe the tax consequences to certain types of owners subject to special treatment under the federal income tax 
laws (for example, dealers in securities or other persons who do not hold the Series 2023 Bonds as a capital asset, tax-
exempt organizations, individual retirement accounts and other tax deferred accounts, and foreign taxpayers), and, 
except for the income tax laws of the State of Utah, does not discuss the consequences to an owner under any state, 
local or foreign tax laws.  The summary does not deal with the tax treatment of persons who purchase the Series 2023 
Bonds in the secondary market.  Prospective investors are advised to consult their own tax advisors regarding federal, 
state, local and other tax considerations of holding and disposing of the Series 2023 Bonds. 
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Opinion of Bond Counsel 

In the opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Bond Counsel to UIA, under the law existing as of the issue date of 
the Series 2023 Bonds: 

Federal Tax Exemption.  The interest on the Series 2023 Bonds (including any original issue discount 
properly allocable to an owner thereof) is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

Alternative Minimum Tax.  Interest on the Series 2023 Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes 
of computing the federal alternative minimum tax. 

State of Utah Tax Exemption.  The interest on the Series 2023 Bonds is exempt from State of Utah individual 
income taxes.   

No Bank Qualification.  The Series 2023 Bonds have not been designated as “qualified tax-exempt 
obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.   

Bond Counsel’s opinions are provided as of the date of the original issue of the Series 2023 Bonds, subject 
to the condition that the Issuer comply with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 
“Code”) that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds in order that interest thereon be, 
or continue to be, excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  The Issuer has covenanted to comply 
with all such requirements.  Failure to comply with certain of such requirements may cause the inclusion of interest 
on the Series 2023 Bonds in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the 
Series 2023 Bonds.   

No Other Opinion.  Bond Counsel is expressing no opinion regarding other federal, state or local tax 
consequences arising with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds but has reviewed the discussion under the heading “TAX 
MATTERS.” 

Other Tax Consequences   

Original Issue Discount.  For federal income tax purposes, original issue discount is the excess of the stated 
redemption price at maturity of a Series 2023 Bond over its issue price.  The stated redemption price at maturity of a 
Series 2023 Bond is the sum of all payments on the Series 2023 Bond other than “qualified stated interest” (i.e., 
interest unconditionally payable at least annually at a single fixed rate).  The issue price of a Series 2023 Bond is 
generally the first price at which a substantial amount of the Series 2023 Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the 
public.  Under Section 1288 of the Code, original issue discount on tax-exempt bonds accrues on a compound basis.  
The amount of original issue discount that accrues to an owner of a Series 2023 Bond during any accrual period 
generally equals (1) the issue price of that Series 2023 Bond, plus the amount of original issue discount accrued in all 
prior accrual periods, multiplied by (2) the yield to maturity on that Series 2023 Bond (determined on the basis of 
compounding at the close of each accrual period and properly adjusted for the length of the accrual period), minus (3) 
any interest payable on that Series 2023 Bond during that accrual period.  The amount of original issue discount 
accrued in a particular accrual period will be considered to be received ratably on each day of the accrual period, will 
be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and will increase the owner’s tax basis in that Series 
2023 Bond.  Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors concerning the calculation and accrual of 
original issue discount. 

Original Issue Premium.  For federal income tax purposes, premium is the excess of the issue price of a 
Series 2023 Bond over its stated redemption price at maturity.  The stated redemption price at maturity of a Series 
2023 Bond is the sum of all payments on the Series 2023 Bond other than “qualified stated interest” (i.e., interest 
unconditionally payable at least annually at a single fixed rate).  The issue price of a Series 2023 Bond is generally 
the first price at which a substantial amount of the Series 2023 Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public.  
Under Section 171 of the Code, premium on tax-exempt bonds amortizes over the term of the Series 2023 Bond using 
constant yield principles, based on the purchaser’s yield to maturity.  As premium is amortized, the owner’s basis in 
the Series 2023 Bond and the amount of tax-exempt interest received will be reduced by the amount of amortizable 
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premium properly allocable to the owner, which will result in an increase in the gain (or decrease in the loss) to be 
recognized for federal income tax purposes on sale or disposition of the Series 2023 Bond prior to its maturity.  Even 
though the owner’s basis is reduced, no federal income tax deduction is allowed.  Prospective investors should consult 
their own tax advisors concerning the calculation and accrual of bond premium.   

Sale, Exchange, or Retirement of Series 2023 Bonds.  Upon the sale, exchange, or retirement (including 
redemption) of a Series 2023 Bond, an owner of the Series 2023 Bond generally will recognize gain or loss in an 
amount equal to the difference between the amount of cash and the fair market value of any property actually or 
constructively received on the sale, exchange, or retirement of the Series 2023 Bond (other than in respect of accrued 
and unpaid interest) and such owner’s adjusted tax basis in the Series 2023 Bond.  To the extent a Series 2023 Bond 
is held as a capital asset, such gain or loss will be capital gain or loss and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the 
Series 2023 Bond has been held for more than 12 months at the time of sale, exchange or retirement. 

Reporting Requirements.  In general, information reporting requirements will apply to certain payments of 
principal, interest and premium paid on the Series 2023 Bonds, and to the proceeds paid on the sale of the Series 2023 
Bonds, other than certain exempt recipients (such as corporations and foreign entities).  A backup withholding tax will 
apply to such payments if the owner fails to provide a taxpayer identification number or certification of foreign or 
other exempt status or fails to report in full dividend and interest income.  The amount of any backup withholding 
from a payment to an owner will be allowed as a credit against the owner’s federal income tax liability. 

Collateral Federal Income Tax Consequences.  Prospective purchasers of the Series 2023 Bonds should be 
aware that ownership of the Series 2023 Bonds may result in collateral federal income tax consequences to certain 
taxpayers, including, without limitation, certain applicable corporations subject to the corporate alternative minimum 
tax, financial institutions, property and casualty insurance companies, individual recipients of Social Security or 
Railroad Retirement benefits, certain S corporations with “excess net passive income,” foreign corporations subject 
to the branch profits tax, life insurance companies, and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued 
indebtedness to purchase or carry or have paid or incurred certain expenses allocable to the Series 2023 Bonds.  Bond 
Counsel expresses no opinion regarding these tax consequences.  Purchasers of Series 2023 Bonds should consult 
their tax advisors as to the applicability of these tax consequences and other federal income tax consequences of the 
purchase, ownership and disposition of the Series 2023 Bonds, including the possible application of state, local, 
foreign and other tax laws.   

Bond Counsel notes that for tax years beginning after December 31, 2022, the interest on the Series 2023 
Bonds may be included in adjusted financial statement income of applicable corporations for purposes of determining 
the applicability and amount of the federal corporate alternative minimum tax.    

BOND RATING 

Fitch Ratings, Inc. (“Fitch”) has assigned a rating of “BBB-” to the Series 2023 Bonds. Such rating reflects 
only the view of the rating agency providing such rating and any desired explanation of the significance of such rating 
should be obtained from the rating agency. Generally, a rating agency bases its ratings on the information and materials 
furnished to it and on investigations, studies and assumptions of its own. There is no assurance such ratings will 
continue for any given period of time or that such ratings will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the 
rating agency, if in the judgment of such rating agency, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or 
withdrawal of such ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Series 2023 Bonds. Neither UIA nor 
the Underwriter have undertaken any responsibility either to bring to the attention of the registered owners or the 
Beneficial Owners of the Series 2023 Bonds any proposed change in or withdrawal of the rating or to oppose any such 
change or withdrawal.   

UIA furnished such rating agency with certain information and materials relating to the Series 2023 Bonds 
that have not been included in this Official Statement.  Generally, rating agencies base their ratings on the information 
and materials so furnished and on investigations, studies and assumptions by the rating agencies. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A copy of UIA’s audited basic financial statements for fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 is appended hereto as 
“APPENDIX A—AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022.” Such financial statements have been audited by Keddington & Christensen, 
LLC, Salt Lake City, Utah (“Keddington & Christensen”), as stated in its report included therein.  Keddington & 
Christensen has not been asked to consent to the use of its name, audited financial statements and report in this Official 
Statement. 

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR 

LRB Public Finance Advisors, Inc., Salt Lake City, Utah (the “Municipal Advisor”), has been employed as 
an independent municipal advisor to UIA in connection with the issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds. The Municipal 
Advisor has not independently verified any of the information contained in this Official Statement and makes no 
representation to the owners or purchasers of the Series 2023 Bonds as to their completeness or accuracy. The 
Municipal Advisor’s fee for services rendered with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds is contingent upon the delivery 
of such Series 2023 Bonds.  LRB Public Finance Advisors, Inc. also serves as municipal advisor to UTOPIA. 

UNDERWRITING 

The Series 2023 Bonds are being purchased by the Underwriter pursuant to a Bond Purchase Contract 
between UIA and the Underwriter (the “Purchase Contract”). The Purchase Contract provides that the Underwriter 
will purchase all of the Series 2023 Bonds, if any are purchased, at a purchase price of $35,215,464.40 (representing 
the par amount of the Series 2023 Bonds less net original issue discount of $147,310.60 and less Underwriter’s 
discount of $267,225.00. 

The Purchase Contract pursuant to which the Series 2023 Bonds are being sold provides that the Underwriter 
will purchase not less than all of the Series 2023 Bonds. The Underwriter’s obligation to make such purchase is subject 
to certain terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Contract, the approval of certain legal matters by counsel and 
certain other conditions. 

The Underwriter may offer and sell the Series 2023 Bonds to certain dealers and others at prices lower than 
the offering prices stated on the inside cover page hereof. The offering price may be changed from time to time by the 
Underwriter. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Related Parties 

Certain of the parties involved with the issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds provide services to UTOPIA. 
Gilmore & Bell, P.C. serves as bond counsel to UTOPIA and Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham serves as 
municipal advisor to UTOPIA. 

Additional Information 

All quotations from and summaries and explanations of the Utah Constitution, statutes, programs, laws of 
the State of Utah, court decisions, the Indenture, the Service Contract, and the Purchase Contract which are contained 
herein, do not purport to be complete, and reference is made to said Constitution, statutes, programs, laws, court 
decisions, the Indenture, the Service Contract, and the Purchase Contract for full and complete statements of their 
respective provisions. 

All forecasts, estimates and other statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether 
or not expressly so stated, are intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Official Statement is not 
intended to be construed as a contract or agreement between UIA and the purchasers or holders of any of the Series 
2023 Bonds. The information contained in this Official Statement is presented for the guidance of prospective 
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purchasers of the Series 2023 Bonds described therein. The information has been compiled from official sources and, 
while not guaranteed by UIA, is believed to be correct.  

The appendices attached hereto are an integral part of this Official Statement and should be read in 
conjunction with the foregoing material. 

The delivery of the Official Statement has been duly authorized by UIA.  

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Utah Infrastructure Agency 
Murray, Utah 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Opinions 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the proprietary fund of Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA) 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise UIA’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
  
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the proprietary fund of UIA, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of 
UIA and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our 
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about UIA’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve 
months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial 
doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based 
on the financial statements. 
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, 
we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, 
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
UIA’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about UIA’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified 
during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion 
and analysis on pages 3 through 8 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance.  
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 30, 2022 on our 
consideration of UIA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering UIA’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

K&C, CPAs 
Salt Lake City, Utah 
December 30, 2022
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Introduction 
As management of Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA), we offer readers of UIA’s financial statements this 
discussion and analysis of the financial activities of UIA for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.  This 
narrative focuses on significant financial issues, provides an overview of the Agency’s financial activity, 
highlights significant changes in financial position, and provides insight into future growth and 
development.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with 
additional information provided throughout this report.   
   
Description of Business 
UIA is a political subdivision of the State of Utah and was created in June 2010. Nine cities created the 
agency (Brigham City, Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, Midvale City, Murray City, Orem City, 
Payson City and West Valley City).  Eight of the member cities (all except Payson City) pledged franchise 
tax revenues as partial loan guarantees in order to secure financing for the network. 
 
The UIA network is a fiber optic network providing high-speed broadband voice, video, and data access. 
The network includes fiber optic lines, transmitters, power sources and backups, switches, and access 
portals. The network operates as a wholesale network under an open-access model and is available to all 
qualified service providers. The open-access aspect means subscribers—both residents and businesses—
have real choice for their broadband needs and can choose the provider and options that work best for them.  
UIA itself does not provide retail services, it provides the infrastructure necessary for services to be 
delivered, much like an airport provides infrastructure for private airline carriers to deliver flight services 
to its customers.    
 
The UIA network is connected to the Utah Telecommunication Open Infrastructure Agency (UTOPIA) 
fiber optic network pursuant to an Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement (IRU) between UIA and UTOPIA.  
The IRU grants UIA access to certain facilities of and capacity in the UTOPIA network. UTOPIA was 
created in 2002 by eleven pledging member cities to provide crucial infrastructure in the form of high-speed 
broadband access to its member cities.  UTOPIA provides use of its fiber optic network and support and 
management services for UIA. The synergy provided by UIA’s partnership with UTOPIA allows both 
organizations to provide their citizens a state-of-the-art broadband network. The project is facilitating 
economic development throughout UTOPIA member cities and since 2019, to other partnering 
municipalities.  Residents and businesses located in areas where the network is completed have access to 
the fastest internet in the country. 
 
Thirty-one service providers were actively providing services and a total of 47,666 homes and businesses 
were subscribing to services at year end on the combined UTOPIA/UIA network.  This represents 31% of 
addresses passed by the network.  UIA substantially completed the buildout of the eleven pledging UTOPIA 
member cities by June 2022.  UIA has also completed the buildout of the network in four partner cities.  As 
these cities continue to grow, UIA will extend the network into new developments to provide access to all 
addresses within each city.  Future growth of the network outside of the UTOPIA cities is demand-based, 
bringing the network to areas that will bring the best return on investment, and/or to cities willing to pledge 
financial support towards the success of the network. UIA has been successful in accomplishing UTOPIA’s 
original mission: to build and maintain a fiber network to service all of the businesses and residents in 
UTOPIA’s member cities.  UIA has broadened its mission to provide the same valuable service to 
communities outside of the eleven founding UTOPIA cities when requested and supported by those City 
Councils.  
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As of the end of June 2022, more than 4,900 miles of fiber cable have been placed within the boundaries 
of participating cities. Within footprints serviced by just over 185 hut sites, there are approximately 165,000 
addresses which could immediately subscribe for services on the UTOPIA/UIA network.  
 
Highlights 
Financial highlights include: 
 

 UIA’s average monthly recurring operating revenues (from service provider access fees and end-
user connection fees) increased by $470,000, or 13.6% from the prior year. 
 

 The number of subscribers to the combined UTOPIA/UIA network grew from 40,029 to 47,666, a 
19% increase. 
 

 As of June 30, 2022, UIA has issued revenue bonds for seven non-UIA partner Utah cities willing 
to pledge franchise and/or sales tax revenues as a payment backstop for the bonds. 
 

o Morgan City was the first, with bonds issued in April of 2019.  Access to the network is 
available to 1,672 residential and business addresses in Morgan, and as of June 30, 2022, 
60% of those addresses were connected to the network and subscribing for services.  UIA 
commonly refers to this as the “take rate.”  
  

o In September of 2019 West Point City became the second partner city.  The network was 
substantially built in West Point by December of 2020 and has a 39% take rate as of June 
30, 2022 (1,461 subscribers of 3,756 addresses available). 

 
o UIA issued bonds for the City of Clearfield project (approximately 6,700 addresses) in 

August of 2020.  Construction was substantially completed in the fall of 2021 and has a 
17% take rate as of June 30, 2022 (1,136 subscribers of 6,719 available). 

 
o UIA issued bonds for the City of Pleasant Grove project (approximately 10,000 addresses) 

in June of 2021.  Construction is underway, with an estimated completion date in the fall 
of 2022. 

 
o UIA issued bonds for the City of Syracuse project (approximately 12,000 addresses) in 

September of 2021.  Construction is underway, with an estimated completion date in the 
spring of 2023. 

 
o UIA issued bonds for the City of Santa Clara project (approximately 3,000 addresses) in 

April of 2022.  The project has an estimated completion date in the summer of 2023. 
 

o UIA issued bonds for the City of Cedar Hills project (approximately 3,000 addresses) in 
April of 2022.  The project has an estimated completion date in the summer of 2023. 
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 UIA added $55.0M of additions and improvements to its active fiberoptic network in fiscal year
2022. 

 UIA currently has $29.2M of additions and improvements in progress.

 As of June 30, 2022, Cash reserves are adequate to cover 2.5 years of operating expenses less
depreciation.

Overview of Financial Statements 
The financial statements included in this report have been prepared in compliance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. The balance sheet provides information about the Agency’s resources and 
obligations at year end. The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents the results 
of business activities during the course of the year. The statement of cash flows presents changes in cash 
and cash equivalents, resulting from operational and investing activities. Notes to the financial statements 
provide required disclosures and other information that are essential to the full understanding of material 
data provided in the statements. The notes present information about UIA’s accounting policies, significant 
account balances, obligations, commitments, contingencies, and subsequent events. 

Current and Other Assets increased by $6.6M.  This change is primarily due to an increase in unrestricted 
current assets of $7.7M.  Capital Assets net of depreciation increased by $56.9M.  Current and Other 
Liabilities increased by $4.8M primarily due to increased accounts payable.  Long-term Liabilities 
increased by $58.3M due to the issuance of four bonds; Syracuse, Santa Clara, Cedar Hills, and UIA 
general.  Net Position improved by $0.2M.   

Operating revenues of $28.1M exceeded budget by $2.3M and increased from FY 2021 by $5.6M or 25.1%.  
Total revenues increased by $4.5M, or 18.7%.  Operating expenditures (expenses excluding interest and 
depreciation of $7,598,083) exceeded budget by $371,022 or 4.6%.  Net position improved by $201,591. 

Depreciation expense increased by $841,000 or 12.4%.  Bond interest and fees increased by 19.0%, related 
to the increase in Long-term liabilities. 
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Table 1 - Summary of the Agency’s Statement of Net Position. 
 

 
 

Table 2 - Summary of the Agency’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 
 

 

2022 2021

Current and other assets 108,914,744$  102,286,198$ 
Capital assets 243,825,476    186,890,372   

Total Assets 352,740,220  289,176,570 

Deferred outflows of resources 4,232,437       4,463,297       

Total Assets and
deferred outlows of resources 356,972,657    293,639,867   

Current and other liabilities 21,179,086     16,428,153     
Long-term liabilities outstanding 335,995,162    277,655,770   

Total Liabilities 357,174,248    294,083,923   

Net investment in capital assets (26,153,808)    (24,374,358)    
Restricted 12,074,630     8,262,082       
Unrestricted     13,877,586     15,668,220     

Total Net Position (201,591)$       (444,056)$      

2022 2021

Revenues:
Operating revenues 28,090,334$    22,447,670$    
Interest income 429,441          457,006          
Other revenues -                1,122,680       

Total Revenues 28,519,775     24,027,356     

Expenditures:
Marketing 1,295,195       876,739          
Professional services 35,311           240,797          
Network operations 7,186,316       5,668,284       
Depreciation 7,598,083       6,757,075       
Bond interest and fees 11,827,122     9,938,605       
Payments to member cities 335,283          -                

Total Expenditures 28,277,310     23,481,500     

Change in net position 242,465          545,856          

Total net position, beginning of year (444,056)        (989,912)        

Total net position, end of year (201,591)$       (444,056)$       
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
UIA’s capital assets, net of depreciation, totaled $243.8 M.  Types of assets include outside plant (fiber and 
conduit), inside plant (electronics), customer premise equipment, construction in progress and a capitalized 
lease (IRU).  $55.0M was added to the active network in FY 2022.  Depreciation for FY 2022 was $7.6M.   
 
As of June 30, 2022, UIA’s outstanding debt amounted to $341.5M.  UIA issued revenue bonds totaling 
$65.1M (including premium) and repaid or amortized $4.4M.  Notes payable from direct borrowings 
decreased by a net $1.4M.  The balance of Notes Payable to Pledging Members (included in Notes Payable 
from direct borrowings) decreased by a net $1.4M, eliminating the remaining balance payable.  
 
Table 3 - Summary of UIA’s Capital Assets at June 30, 2022: 

 

 
 
Table 4 - Summary of UIA’s Debt at June 30, 2022: 
 

 
 

2022 2021

Construction in progress 29,228,960$   19,662,901$   
Land 959,272         959,272         
Building 3,636,258       3,808,048       
Furniture and equipment 52,207           104,194         
Outside plant 148,581,983   108,299,225   
Inside plant 9,662,655       7,547,795       
Customer premise equipment 40,780,143     35,210,845     
Intangible right 10,923,998     11,298,092     

243,825,476   186,890,372$  

2022 2021

Revenue bonds payable 341,530,162$  282,075,770$  
Notes payable from direct borrowings -                1,388,270       

341,530,162$  283,464,040$  
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UIA’s monthly recurring operating revenue exceeded monthly debt service obligations by $1.4M in June 
2022.  The following illustration shows revenue growth since 2013 in comparison to debt service: 
 

 
 
Subsequent events, FY 2022 budget, and future plans 
UIA issued bonds for extending its network into West Haven, Utah in December of 2022.  Proceeds from 
debt totaled $19.5M.  The project is underway, and when completed in the fall of 2024, the UIA network 
will be available to an additional 6,600 addresses. 

 
Discussions with other Utah cities are active, and additional partnerships in FY 2023 are expected. 
 
The FY 2023 budget adopted in June of 2022 anticipated operating revenue of $33.5M.  This is $5.4M 
above actual operating revenue for FY 2022, and the Agency is on track to meet budgeted revenue.  
Budgeted operating expenditures for FY 2023 total $10.3M.  This amount is $1.8M higher than actual 
operating expenditures for FY 2022.  The largest component of operating expenditures is payment to 
UTOPIA for management services and connections to the UTOPIA network and is directly related to 
subscriber growth.  The FY 2023 UIA budget also includes a non-operating distribution to Cities in the 
amount of $4,000,000. 

 
Contacting UIA’s Financial Management 
This financial report is designed to provide interested readers with a general overview of UIA’s financial 
position and to demonstrate accountability. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer, 
Utah Infrastructure Agency, 5858 S 900 E Murray, UT  84121.  
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Assets

Current Assets:
Cash 21,481,350$    
Trade receivables, net 3,144,513       
Investments 3,082,354       
Inventory 10,935,693     
Notes receivable 172,674          
Restricted cash equivalents 48,406,939     

Total Current Assets 87,223,523     

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash equivalents 20,104,600     
Notes receivable 1,586,621       

   Capital Assets:
Construction in progress 29,228,960     
Land 959,272          
Assets, net of accumulated depreciation:

Building 3,636,258       
Furniture and equipment 52,207           
Fiber optic network 209,948,779    

Total Noncurrent Assets 265,516,697    

Total Assets 352,740,220    

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred charge on refunding 4,232,437       

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 356,972,657$  
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Liabilities

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 12,811,592$    
Interest payable from restricted assets 2,705,511       
Revenue bonds payable 5,535,000       
Unearned revenue 126,983          

Total Current Liabilities 21,179,086     

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Revenue bonds payable 335,995,162    

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 335,995,162    

Total Liabilities 357,174,248    

Net Position

Net Investment in capital assets (26,153,808)    
Restricted for:

Debt service 12,074,630     
Unrestricted 13,877,586     

Total Net Position (201,591)        

Total Liabilities and Net Position 356,972,657$  
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Operating Revenues:
Access fees 18,802,020$    
Installations 225,065          
Connection fees 8,910,974       
Miscellaneous operating revenue 152,275          

Total Operating Revenues 28,090,334     

Operating Expenses:
Marketing 1,295,195       
Professional services 35,311           
Network Operations 7,186,316       
Depreciation 7,598,083       

Total Operating Expenses 16,114,905     

Operating Income 11,975,429     

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest income 429,441          
Bond interest and fees (11,827,122)    
Payments to member cities (335,283)        

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (11,732,964)    

Change In Net Position 242,465          

Total Net Position, Beginning of Year (444,056)        

Total Net Position, End of Year (201,591)$       
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Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers and users 26,909,588$    
Payments to suppliers (20,552,766)    

Net cash provided by operating activities 6,356,821       

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchase of capital assets (53,055,875)    
Proceeds from installations 202,294          
Bond interest and fees (12,651,676)    
Proceeds from issuance of new bonds 65,104,631     
Principal paid on bonds (4,420,000)      

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities (4,820,625)      

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Payments to member cities (335,283)        
Payment of note payable (1,388,270)      

Net cash used by non-capital financing activities (1,723,553)      

Cash Flows From Investing Activity:
Interest income 429,441          

Net cash used by investing activity 429,441          

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 242,084          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 89,750,805     

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 89,992,889$    



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
 

13 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash from operating activities:

Operating income 11,975,429$    

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
from operating activities:

Depreciation expense 7,598,083       
Bad debt expense 123,635          

(Increase) decrease in assets related to operations
Trade receivables, net (1,430,982)      
Inventory (14,691,576)    
Note receivable related to operating revenues 159,981          

Increase (decrease) in liabilities related to operations
Accounts payable 2,655,632       
Unearned Revenue (33,380)          

   Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 6,356,821$     

Supplemental Information

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:

Inventory additions to capital assets 9,248,104$     
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Reporting Entity 
Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA), a separate legal entity and political subdivision of the State 
of Utah, was formed on July 29, 2010, by an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement pursuant to the 
provisions of the Utah Interlocal Cooperation Act.  UIA’s Interlocal Cooperative Agreement has 
a term of five years, and is renewable every year thereafter.  UIA consists of nine member-cities 
(eight pledging and one non-pledging) at June 30, 2022. UIA’s purpose is to design, finance, 
build, operate, and maintain an open, wholesale, public telecommunication infrastructure that has 
the capacity to deliver high-speed connections to every home and business in the member 
communities. 
 
In evaluating how to define UIA for financial reporting purposes, management has considered 
all potential component units.  The decision as to whether or not to include a potential component 
unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  The basic, but not the only, criterion for including a 
potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body's ability to exercise 
oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial 
interdependency.  Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, 
but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the 
ability to significantly influence operations and accountability of fiscal matters.  The other 
criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting 
entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether UIA is able to 
exercise oversight responsibilities.  UIA does not have any component units, nor is it a component 
unit of any primary government. 
   
The following is a summary of the more significant policies. 

 
 Financial Statement Presentation and Basis of Accounting 

UIA prepares its financial statements on an enterprise fund basis, using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing 
of related cash flows.  Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed 
and operated in a manner similar to private businesses, where the intent is that all costs of 
providing certain goods and services to the general public be financed or recovered primarily 
through user charges, or where it has been deemed that periodic determination of net income 
is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or 
other purposes. Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from 
nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing 
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with UIA’s principal ongoing 
operations.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating. 
  

 Restricted Assets 
UIA maintains investments held by financial institutions for safekeeping of funds relating to 
debt service reserves and to fund capital assets.  When both restricted and unrestricted assets 
are available, it is UIA’s policy to use restricted assets first, then unrestricted assets as they 
are needed.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows 
of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to future period(s) and 
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. UIA reports a deferred 
charge on refunding in this category. 

 
 Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are stated at cost, which includes capitalization of interest costs 
incurred during construction prior to July 1, 2019.  Normal maintenance and repair expenses 
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.  
Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related 
fixed asset.  The net book value of property sold or otherwise disposed of is removed from 
the property and accumulated depreciation accounts and the resulting gain or loss is included 
as nonoperating revenues or expenses. Depreciation of property and equipment was 
computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 
   Outside plant and certain customer premise equipment   25-40 years 

Buildings       25 years 
Office furniture and equipment and vehicles    3-5 years 
Intangible rights       30 years 
 

Depreciation of inside plant and certain customer premise equipment was computed using an 
accelerated method over a six-year life.   

          
 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

UIA considers all cash and investments with original maturities of three months or less to be 
cash and cash equivalents.  For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents are defined as the cash accounts and the restricted cash equivalent accounts.   
 
Investments, in the form of accounts invested with the Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment 
Fund (the State Treasurer’s Pool) of UIA are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. 
 

  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
The allowance for doubtful accounts is UIA’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit 
losses in the existing accounts receivable. UIA has reserved $80,000 of accounts receivable. 
 
Inventories 
Inventories are stated at cost using the first-in first-out method.  
 

 Estimates and Assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is generally recorded when the service has been provided, and profit is recognized 
at that time.  Revenues are reported net of bad debt expense.  Total bad debt expense related 
to revenues of the current period is $123,635. 
 

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Deposits 
Utah State law requires that UIA’s funds be deposited with a "qualified depository" as defined 
by the Utah Money Management Act.  "Qualified depository" includes any depository institution 
which has been certified by the Utah State Commissioner of Financial Institutions as having met 
the requirements as defined in Rule 11 of the Utah Money Management Act.  Rule 11 establishes 
the formula for determining the amount of public funds which a qualified depository may hold 
in order to minimize risk of loss and defines capital requirements which an institution must 
maintain to be eligible to accept public funds. 
 
Custodial credit risk – deposits.  In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure, UIA’s deposits may not be returned to it. As of June 30, 2022, $16,972,185 of the 
$17,222,185 balance of deposits was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured 
and uncollateralized.  
 
Investments 
The Money Management Act defines the types of securities authorized as appropriate 
investments for the Agency and the conditions for making investment transactions. Investment 
transactions may be conducted only through qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly 
with issuers of the investment securities. Statutes authorize the Agency to invest in negotiable or 
nonnegotiable deposits of qualified depositories and permitted negotiable depositories; 
repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements; commercial paper that is classified as “first tier” 
by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, one of which must be Moody’s 
Investors Services or Standard & Poor’s; bankers’ acceptances; obligations of the United States 
Treasury including bills, notes, and bonds; bonds, notes and other evidence of indebtedness of 
political subdivision of the State; fixed rate corporate obligations and variable rate securities rated 
“A” or higher, or the equivalent of “A” or higher, by two nationally recognized statistical rating 
organizations; shares or certificates in a money market mutual fund as defined in the Act; and the 
Utah State Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund (PTIF).  
 
The PTIF is authorized and regulated by the Money Management Act, Section 51-7, Utah Code 
Annotated, 1953, as amended. The Act established the Money Management Council which 
oversees the activities of the State Treasurer and the PTIF and details the types of authorized 
investments. Deposits in the PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah, 
and participants share proportionally in any realized gains or losses on investments. The PTIF is 
not registered with the SEC as an investment company. 
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NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Components of cash and investments at June 30, 2022, are as follows: 
 

 
 
Interest rate risk. The risk that changes in the interest rate will have an adverse effect on the fair 
value of an investment.  UIA’s written policy for managing interest rate risk is to comply with 
the Utah Money Management Act which requires that the term to maturity of an investment may 
not exceed the period of availability of the funds to be invested. 
 
Credit risk. This is the risk that an issuer or other counter party to an investment will not fulfill 
its obligations. UIA follows the Money Management Act, which only allows for investments of 
the highest quality, as measured by the bond rating.  UIA also invests in the PTIF, which, as of 
June 30, 2022, was unrated. 
 
Concentration of credit risk. This is the risk of loss attributable to the magnitude of UIA’s 
investment in a single issuer. UIA’s policy for reducing the concentration of credit risk is to 
follow the Utah Money Management Councils Rules, specifically Rule 17, which limits the 
amount of money that can be invested in a single issuer.  UIA’s investment in PTIF is not subject 
to a concentration of credit risk.  
 
Custodial credit risk – investments. This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty to a transaction, UIA will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are 
in the possession of an outside party.  UIA’s policy for managing custodial credit risk is to follow 
the Utah Money Management Act’s list of certified investment advisors.  UIA’s investment in 
PTIF has no custodial credit risk.  
 

  Investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements 
are those that Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit 
in the statement of net position at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are 
categorized based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs 
are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other 
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  

 

Weighted
Carrying Credit Average

Fair Value Amount Rating Maturity

Cash on deposit 17,521,165$    17,521,165$    N/A N/A

Investments:
Utah State Public Treasurer's Investment Fund 72,172,338$    72,471,749$    unrated < 3 mos.
Corporate bonds 877,220          877,220          A3 to A1 < 3 years
Certificates of deposit 2,173,717       2,173,717       Baa3 to Aa3 < 2 years
Money Market Fund 31,392           31,392           Aaa N/A

Total Investments 75,254,667$    75,554,078$    



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

18 

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
  The fair value measurements for investments are as follows at June 30, 2022: 
   

   
 
NOTE 3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

 
The following summarizes UIA's property and equipment as of June 30, 2022: 
 

 
 

Depreciation expense of $7,598,083 was charged to operating expense for the year ended June 
30, 2022.   

Fair Value Level 1 Inputs Level 2 Inputs Level 3 Inputs

Utah State Public Treasurer's Investment Fund 72,172,338$    -$              72,172,338$    -$              
Corporate bonds 877,220          -                877,220          -                
Certificates of deposit 2,173,717       -                2,173,717       -                
Money Market Fund 31,392           31,392           -                -                

Total 75,254,667$    31,392$          75,223,275$    -$              

Fair Value Measurements Using

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 959,272$          -$                -$                959,272$          
Construction in progress 19,662,901       26,425,976       (16,859,917)      29,228,960       

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 20,622,173       26,425,976       (16,859,917)      30,188,232       

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Building 4,294,731         -                  -                  4,294,731         
Furniture and equipment 418,475            -                  -                  418,475           
Outside plant 121,473,467      43,772,322       -                  165,245,789     
Inside plant 20,227,314       3,675,280         -                  23,902,594       
Customer premise equipment 41,812,252       7,519,526         -                  49,331,778       
Intangible right 18,176,964       -                  -                  18,176,964       

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 206,403,203      54,967,128       -                  261,370,331     

Less accumulated depreciation:
Building (486,683)          (171,790)          -                  (658,473)          
Furniture and equipment (314,281)          (51,987)            -                  (366,268)          
Outside plant (13,174,242)      (3,489,564)        -                  (16,663,806)      
Inside plant (12,679,519)      (1,560,420)        -                  (14,239,939)      
Customer premise equipment (6,601,407)        (1,950,228)        -                  (8,551,635)        
Intangible right (6,878,872)        (374,094)          -                  (7,252,966)        

Total accumulated depreciation (40,135,004)      (7,598,083)        -                  (47,733,087)      

Total capital asset, net of 
accumulated depreciation 166,268,199      47,369,045       -                  213,637,244     

Property and Equipment, net 186,890,372$    73,795,021$      (16,859,917)$    243,825,476$    
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NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt obligations for the year ended June 
30, 2022. 

 
 

Revenue Bonds 
 

 

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Revenue Bonds
Series 2017A 68,475,000$   -$             (1,705,000)$   66,770,000$   1,795,000$    
Series 2017B 1,890,000      -               (610,000)       1,280,000      630,000         
Series 2018A 20,680,000    -               (610,000)       20,070,000    640,000         
Series 2018 - Layton 22,285,000    -               (150,000)       22,135,000    465,000         
Series 2019 - Morgan 2,550,000      -               -               2,550,000      65,000          
Series 2019 - Payson 3,520,000      -               -               3,520,000      90,000          
Series 2019 - West Point 7,220,000      -               -               7,220,000      175,000         
Series 2019 48,365,000    -               (1,345,000)     47,020,000    1,400,000      
Series 2020 - Clearfield 12,645,000    -               -               12,645,000    275,000         
Series 2021 52,495,000    -               -               52,495,000    -               
Series 2021 - Pleasant Grove 16,915,000    -               -               16,915,000    -               
Series 2021 - Syracuse -               19,220,000    -               19,220,000    -               
Series 2022 -               30,000,000    -               30,000,000    -               
Series 2022 - Santa Clara -               6,675,000      -               6,675,000      -               
Series 2022 - Cedar Hills -               5,965,000      -               5,965,000      -               
Plus: Net Premiums 25,035,770    3,244,631      (1,230,239)     27,050,162    -               

Total Revenue Bonds 282,075,770   65,104,631    (5,650,239)     341,530,162   5,535,000      

Notes Payable from Direct Borrowings
Pledging Members 1,328,071      -               (1,328,071)     -               -               
Tremonton Note 60,199          -               (60,199)         -               -               

Total Notes Payable from
Direct Borrowings 1,388,270      -               (1,388,270)     -               -               

Total Long-Term Debt 283,464,040$ 65,104,631$   (7,038,509)$   341,530,162$ 5,535,000$    

Tax-exempt Telecommunications Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series
2017A, original issue of $73,905,000 plus a premium of $7,784,509, principal
payments due in annual installments beginning October 15, 2018, interest
payments due semi-annually at 2.00% to 5.00%, with the final payment due
October 15, 2040. The bonds were issued to refund the Series 2011A,
2013, and 2015 Bonds and obtain additional funding for infrastructure.
There are no significant events of default or termination events with finance-
related consequences and no subjective acceleration clauses. 66,770,000$    
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NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 

Revenue Bonds (Continued) 
 

 
 
 

Taxable Telecommunication Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B,
original issue of $3,500,000, principal payments due in annual installments
beginning October 15, 2018, interest payments due semi-annually at 3.50%
with the final payment due October 15, 2023. The bonds were issued to
refund the Series 2011B Bonds. There are no significant events of default
or termination events with finance-related consequences and no subjective
acceleration clauses. 1,280,000$     

Tax-exempt Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A, original
issue of $21,810,000 plus a premium of $2,323,343, principal payments due
in annual installments beginning October 2019, interest payments due semi-
annually at 5.000% to 5.375%, with the final payment due October 2040.
The bonds were issued to finance the expansion of UIA's infrastructure.
There are no significant events of default or termination events with finance-
related consequences and no subjective acceleration clauses. 20,070,000     

Layton City Telecommunications and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds,
Series 2018, original issue of $22,285,000 plus a premium of $1,863,184,
principal payments due in annual installments beginning October 2021,
interest payments due semi-annually at 3.00% to 5.00%, with the final
payment due October 2044. The bonds were issued to finance the
expansion of UIA's infrastructure within Layton City. There are no
significant events of default or termination events with finance-related
consequences and no subjective acceleration clauses. 22,135,000     

Telecommunications, Electric Utility, and Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
(Morgan City Project), Series 2019, original issue of $2,550,000 plus a
premium of $67,549, principal payments due in annual installments beginning 
October 2022, interest payments due semi-annually at 3.375% to 5.000%,
with the final payment due October 2044. The bonds were issued to
finance the construction of UIA's infrastructure within Morgan City. There
are no significant events of default or termination events with finance-
related consequences and no subjective acceleration clauses. 2,550,000       



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

21 

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 

Revenue Bonds (Continued) 
 

 

Telecommunications and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds (Payson City
Project), Series 2019, original issue of $3,520,000 plus a premium of
$198,292, principal payments due in annual installments beginning October
2022, interest payments due semi-annually at 3.00% to 5.00%, with the final 
payment due October 2044. The bonds were issued to finance the
expansion of UIA's infrastructure within Payson City. There are no
significant events of default or termination events with finance-related
consequences and no subjective acceleration clauses. 3,520,000$     

Telecommunications, Franchise, and Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (West
Point City Project), Series 2019, original issue of $7,220,000 plus a premium
of $595,011, principal payments due in annual installments beginning
October 2022, interest payments due semi-annually at 3.00% to 4.00%,
with the final payment due October 2046. The bonds were issued to
finance the construction of UIA's infrastructure within West Point City.
There are no significant events of default or termination events with finance-
related consequences and no subjective acceleration clauses. 7,220,000       

Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 2019, original issue of
$48,365,000 plus a premium of $3,634,287, principal payments due in annual
installments beginning October 2021, interest payments due semi-annually
at 4.0% to 5.0%, with the final payment due October 2042. The bonds
were issued to finance improvements of UIA's infrastructure. There are
no significant events of default or termination events with finance-related
consequences and no subjective acceleration clauses. 47,020,000     

Telecommunications and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020
(Clearfield City Project), original issue of $12,645,000 plus a premium of
$1,348,306, principal payments due in annual installments beginning October
2022, interest payments due semi-annually at 2.75% to 5.00%, with the final 
payment due October 2047. The bonds were issued to finance the
expansion of UIA's infrastructure within Clearfield City. There are no
significant events of default or termination events with finance-related
consequences and no subjective acceleration clauses. 12,645,000     
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NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 

Revenue Bonds (Continued) 
 

 
 

Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 2021, original issue of
$52,495,000 plus a premium of $6,758,016, principal payments due in annual
installments beginning October 2023, interest payments due semi-annually
at 3.00% to 4.00%, with the final payment due October 2045. The bonds
were issued to finance improvements of UIA's infrastructure. There are
no significant events of default or termination events with finance-related
consequences and no subjective acceleration clauses. 52,495,000$    

Telecommunications and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2021
(Pleasant Grove City Project), original issue of $16,915,000 plus a premium
of $2,749,958, principal payments due in annual installments beginning
October 2024, interest payments due semi-annually at 2.00% to 4.00%,
with the final payment due October 2048. The bonds were issued to
finance the expansion of UIA's infrastructure within Pleasant Grove City.
There are no significant events of default or termination events with finance-
related consequences and no subjective acceleration clauses. 16,915,000     

Telecommunications, Franchise, and Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series
2021 (Syracuse City Project), original issue of $19,220,000 plus a premium
of $3,337,961, principal payments due in annual installments beginning
October 2024, interest payments due semi-annually at 2.00% to 4.00%,
with the final payment due October 2048. The bonds were issued to
finance the expansion of UIA's infrastructure within Syracuse City. There
are no significant events of default or termination events with finance-
related consequences and no subjective acceleration clauses. 19,220,000     

Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 2022, original issue of
$30,000,000 less a discount of $60,172, principal payments due in annual
installments beginning October 2025, interest payments due semi-annually
at 5.00%, with the final payment due October 2046. The bonds were
issued to finance improvements of UIA's infrastructure. There are no
significant events of default or termination events with finance-related
consequences and no subjective acceleration clauses. 30,000,000     
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NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 

Revenue Bonds (Continued) 
 

 
 
The following summarizes UIA’s revenue bonds debt service requirements as of June 30, 2022: 
 

 
 

Telecommunications, Franchise, and Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series
2022 (Santa Clara City Project), original issue of $6,675,000 less a discount
of $51,563, principal payments due in annual installments beginning October
2024, interest payments due semi-annually at 4.00% to 4.25%, with the final 
payment due October 2051. The bonds were issued to finance the
expansion of UIA's infrastructure within Santa Clara City. There are no
significant events of default or termination events with finance-related
consequences and no subjective acceleration clauses. 6,675,000$     

Telecommunications, Franchise, and Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series
2022 (Cedar Hills City Project), original issue of $5,965,000 plus a premium
of $18,405, principal payments due in annual installments beginning October
2024, interest payments due semi-annually at 2.00% to 4.00%, with the final 
payment due October 2051. The bonds were issued to finance the
expansion of UIA's infrastructure within Cedar Hills City. There are no
significant events of default or termination events with finance-related
consequences and no subjective acceleration clauses. 5,965,000       

Total Revenue Bonds 314,480,000    

Less current portion (5,535,000)      

Noncurrent portion 308,945,000$  

Year Principal Interest Total

2023 5,535,000$     13,413,507$    18,948,507$    
2024 7,350,000       13,273,700     20,623,700     
2025 8,620,000       12,949,950     21,569,950     
2026 9,740,000       12,567,850     22,307,850     
2027 10,160,000     12,138,225     22,298,225     
2028-2032 58,385,000     53,101,775     111,486,775    
2033-2037 73,065,000     38,304,744     111,369,744    
2038-2042 84,030,000     20,041,156     104,071,156    
2043-2047 49,050,000     5,821,697       54,871,697     
2048-2052 8,545,000       560,022          9,105,022       

314,480,000$  182,172,626$  496,652,626$  
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NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
Advanced Refunding/Defeasance of Debt 
The net proceeds from the Series 2017A and Series 2017B Bonds (collectively, the Series 2017 
Bonds) used for the advanced refunding of the Series 2011A, Series 2011B, Series 2013, and 
Series 2015 Bonds totaled $64,802,106 and together with an equity contribution from UIA in the 
amount of $1,486,149 were placed in a trust account with Zions Bank, the escrow agent for the 
defeasance.  Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not 
included in UIA’s financial statements.  At June 30, 2022, $29,900,000 of the bonds remained 
outstanding and are considered defeased. 

 
The escrow agent is authorized to purchase direct non-callable obligations of, or obligations 
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America (Government Securities) 
and establish a beginning cash balance for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.  
The escrow agent is not authorized to sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of or make substitutions 
of the Government Securities without UIA’s authorization.  No substitutions were requested as 
of June 30, 2022. 

 
NOTE 5 RELATED PARTY COMMITMENTS AND CONTRACTS 

 
Related Party 
Management has determined that UIA and UTOPIA are related parties.  During the year UTOPIA 
charged UIA a management fee of $2,700,000 for administration, accounting/finance, marketing, 
customer service and outside plant maintenance performed on behalf of UIA.  Since UIA’s 
inception in 2011, UIA has paid a total of approximately $9,700,000 to UTOPIA for management 
services and UTOPIA has donated management services to UIA valued at approximately 
$4,100,000.  UTOPIA did not donate management services to UIA during the year ended June 
30, 2022. 
 
UIA also leases a building to UTOPIA under a cancellable lease agreement entered into on May 
1, 2017.  The term of the lease is five years with a one-year auto renewal.  Payments received 
from UTOPIA for rent totaled $141,600 for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
As of June 30, 2022, UIA had $849,082 in accounts receivable from UTOPIA. 
 
Interlocal Cooperative Agreement 
UIA has entered into an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with UTOPIA, wherein UIA will pay 
UTOPIA for network configuration, operation, and maintenance fees. The amount of the fees is 
determined based on the number of connections, subscribers, and services performed. The 
agreement is renewed annually.  UIA recorded expenditures to UTOPIA of $4,486,316 for the 
year ended June 30, 2022.  Since UIA’s inception in 2010, UIA has paid a total of approximately 
$14,400,000 to UTOPIA for services related to the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement. 
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NOTE 6 PLEDGING MEMBERS LIABILITY AND COMMITTMENTS 
 

The eight Pledging Members of UIA have pledged energy sales and use tax revenues to ensure 
that UIA fulfills its revenue requirement from the bond agreements. UIA is required by the Series 
2017 A & B bond covenants to have revenue equal to the operations and maintenance expenses 
and the capital costs in a fiscal year. In the event there is a shortfall, the pledging cities agree to 
lend its energy sales and use tax revenues in the maximum annual principal allocated to each city 
as set forth below: 
 

 
 
The Second Amended and Restated Interlocal Cooperative Agreement of UIA provides that the 
UIA Board of Directors may establish Working Capital Assessments to the Member Cities, the 
payment of which is subject to the appropriations authority of the governing bodies of the 
Member Cities.  UIA has utilized this mechanism to pay certain operating expenses in order to 
avoid a shortfall under the Communications Services Contracts between UIA and the Member 
Cities.  Under a shortfall scenario, UIA would be obligated to notify the Member Cities of their 
respective obligations to utilize Energy Sales and Use Taxes to replenish the shortfall.  Provided 
enough cities pay their Working Capital Assessments, no shortfall exists and therefore, no 
obligation from Energy Sales and Use Taxes.  For the year ended June 30, 2022, UIA paid a total 
of $1,328,071 back to the cities, which included outstanding accrued interest. 
 
UIA paid an additional amount of $335,283 to the member cities during the year ended June 30, 
2022.  
 
Tremonton City (a pledging member of UTOPIA) was not assessed for UIA working capital, but 
voluntarily paid $167,292 prior to June 30, 2018.  UIA has repaid Tremonton City this amount 
as of year end.  
 
 

 

2022 Share of 2022
Pledging Total Max. Maximum
Member Pledge Pledge *

Brigham City 0.62% 31,831$        
Centerville City 3.63% 186,737        
Layton City 18.20% 937,272        
Lindon City 3.35% 172,516        
Midvale City 6.60% 339,988        
Murray City 13.40% 690,241        
Orem City 23.76% 1,223,786      
West Valley City 30.44% 1,568,781      

100.00% 5,151,152$    

* These amounts are the estimated maximum annual
amount of franchise tax revenue payable by each city.
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NOTE 6 PLEDGING MEMBERS LIABILITY AND COMMITTMENTS (Continued) 
 
The schedule below summarizes the cumulative totals paid by the cities: 

 

 
 
NOTE 7 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

In December 2022, UIA issued $17,680,000 of Telecommunications and Sales Tax Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2022 to fund the acquisition, construction, and installation of a fiber optic network 
in West Haven City.  Principal payments on the bonds are due in annual installments of $370,000 
to $1,255,000 beginning in 2025 through 2049, with interest at 5.00% to 5.50% due semiannually 
beginning in fiscal year 2023.   
 
 

 

2022 OpEx 2022
Assessments Cumulative Payments to Cumulative Cumulative

City Paid Paid Cities Payments Remaining

Brigham City -$             34,824$        -$             (34,824)$      -$           
Centerville City -               221,373        (124,112)       (221,373)      -             
Layton City -               623,750        (186,389)       (623,750)      -             
Lindon City -               118,155        (66,329)         (118,155)      -             
Midvale City -               307,486        (110,311)       (307,486)      -             
Murray City -               141,666        (79,243)         (141,666)      -             
Orem City -               1,099,242      (392,152)       (1,099,242)    -             
Payson City -               242,945        (87,186)         (242,945)      -             
West Valley City -               1,017,276      (282,349)       (1,017,276)    -             

-$             3,806,717$    (1,328,071)$   (3,806,717)$  -$           



[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK][THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



 

 B-1 

APPENDIX B  
EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE 

The following excerpts briefly outline certain provisions contained in the General Indenture and are not to 
be considered as a full statement thereof.  Reference is made to the General Indenture and the Sixth Supplemental 
Indenture, for full details of all of the terms of the Series 2023 Bonds, the security provisions appertaining thereof, 
and the application of the Revenues derived from the Network, and the definition of any terms used but not defined 
in this Official Statement.   

Definitions 

As used in the Indenture, the following terms shall have the following meanings unless the context otherwise 
clearly indicates: 

“Accreted Amount” means, with respect to Capital Appreciation Bonds of any Series and as of the date of 
calculation, the amount representing the initial public offering price, plus the accumulated and compounded interest 
on such Bonds, as established pursuant to the Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Capital Appreciation Bonds. 

“Act” collectively means the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Title 11, Chapter 13, Utah Code, and the Utah 
Refunding Bond Act, Title 11, Chapter 27, Utah Code. 

“Additional Bonds” means all Bonds issued under the Indenture, other than the Initial Bonds, which are 
secured by a pledge of the Net Revenues on a parity with the pledge of Net Revenues for the payment of the Bonds 
and the Security Instrument Repayment Obligations authorized in the Indenture. 

“Administrative Costs” means all Security Instrument Costs and Reserve Instrument Costs. 

“Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement” means the total Debt Service (including any Repayment 
Obligations) for any one Bond Fund Year (or other specific period) on all Series of Bonds Outstanding or any specified 
portion thereof. 

“Authorized Amount” means, with respect to a Commercial Paper Program, the maximum Principal amount 
of commercial paper which is then authorized by the Issuer to be outstanding at any one time pursuant to such 
Commercial Paper Program. 

“Authorized Representative” means the Chair, any Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, Chief Executive Officer 
or any other officer of the Issuer so designated in writing by the Issuer to the Trustee. 

“Available Franchise Tax Revenues” means the maximum Franchise Tax Revenues available under the 
Service Contract and which (i) for purposes of (a)(i) under the heading “Issuance of Additional Bonds” were not used 
in the applicable 12-month period to make the payments due under the Service Contract and (ii) for purposes (a)(ii) 
“Issuance of Additional Bonds” are not projected by the Qualified Consultant to be required to make the payments 
due under the Service Contract during the related Bond Fund Years. 

“Average Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement” means the total of all Aggregate Annual Debt 
Service Requirements divided by the total Bond fund Years of the Bonds Outstanding or any specified portion thereof. 

“Bond Fund” means the UIA Bond Fund created in the Indenture to be held by the Trustee and administered 
pursuant to the Indenture 

“Bond Fund Year” means the 12-month period beginning July 1 of each year and ending on the next 
succeeding June 30, except that the first Bond Fund Year shall begin on the date of delivery of the Initial Bonds and 
shall end on the next succeeding June 30. 
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“Bondholder,” “Bondowner,” “Registered Owner,” or “Owner” means the registered owner of any Bonds 
authorized in the Indenture according to the registration books of the Issuer maintained by the Trustee as Registrar. 

“Bonds” means bonds, notes, commercial paper or other obligations (other than Repayment Obligations) 
authorized by and at any time Outstanding pursuant to the Indenture, including the Initial Bonds and any Additional 
Bonds. 

“Business Day” means any day (a) (i) on which banking business is transacted, but not including any day on 
which banks are authorized to be closed in New York City or in the city in which the Trustee has its Principal Corporate 
Trust Office or, with respect to a related Series of Bonds, in the city in which any Security Instrument Issuer has its 
principal office for purposes of such Security Instrument and (ii) on which the New York Stock Exchange is open, or 
(b) as otherwise provided in a Supplemental Indenture. 

“Capital Appreciation Bonds” means Bonds the interest on which (a) is compounded and accumulated at the 
rates and on the dates set forth in the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of such Bonds and designating 
them as Capital Appreciation Bonds, and (i) is payable upon maturity or prior redemption of such Bonds. 

“Chair” means the Chair of the Issuer or any successor to the duties of such office. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

“Commercial Paper Program” means commercial paper obligations with maturities of not more than two 
hundred seventy (270) days from the dates of issuance thereof which are issued and reissued by the Issuer from time 
to time pursuant to the Indenture and are outstanding up to an Authorized Amount. 

“Connection Services” means the wholesale services provided by the Issuer to each Member pursuant to the 
Service Contract whereby end users within each Member have access to the UIA Network through which they may 
contract with private providers to receive Cable Television Services and Public Telecommunication Services (as those 
terms are defined in the Telecommunications Act) provided through the UTOPIA Network. 

“Construction Fund” means the UIA Construction Fund created in the Indenture to be held by the Trustee 
and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Contracting Members” means those Members who have entered into the Service Contract, namely Brigham 
City, Utah; Centerville City, Utah; Layton City, Utah; Lindon City, Utah; Midvale City, Utah; Murray City, Utah; 
City of Orem, Utah; and West Valley City, Utah. 

“Cost” or “Costs” or “Cost of Completion,” or any phrase of similar import, in connection with a Project or 
with the refunding of any Bonds, means all costs and expenses which are properly chargeable thereto under generally 
accepted accounting principles or which are incidental to the financing, acquisition and construction of a Project, or 
the refunding of any Bonds, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing: 

(a) amounts payable to contractors and costs incident to the award of contracts; 

(b) cost of labor, facilities and services furnished by the Issuer and its employees or others, 
materials and supplies purchased by the Issuer or others and permits and licenses obtained by the Issuer or 
others; 

(c) engineering, architectural, legal, planning, underwriting, marketings, accounting and other 
professional and advisory fees; 

(d) premiums for contract bonds and insurance during construction and costs on account of 
personal injuries and property damage in the course of construction and insurance against the same; 

(e) interest expenses, including interest on the Series of Bonds relating to a Project; 
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(f) printing, engraving and other expenses of financing, fees of financial rating services and 
costs of issuing the Series of Bonds; 

(g) costs, fees, and expenses in connection with the acquisition of real and personal property 
or rights therein, including premiums for title insurance; 

(h) costs of furniture, fixtures, and equipment purchased by the Issuer and necessary to 
construct a Project; 

(i) amounts required to repay moneys advanced by the Member or temporary or bond 
anticipation loans or notes made to finance the costs of a Project; 

(j) cost of site improvements performed by the Issuer in anticipation of a Project; 

(k) moneys necessary to fund the funds created under the Indenture; 

(l) costs of any Operation and Maintenance Expenses and other working capital appertaining 
to any facilities to be acquired for a Project and of any interest on a Series of Bonds for any period not 
exceeding the period estimated by the Issuer to effect the construction of a Project plus one year, as provided 
in the Indenture, of any discount on bonds or other securities, and of any reserves for the payment of the 
principal of and interest on a Series of Bonds, of any replacement expenses and of any other cost of issuance 
of a Series of Bonds or other securities, Security Instrument Costs and Reserve Instrument Costs; 

(m) costs of amending the Indenture or other instrument authorizing the issuance of or 
otherwise appertaining to a Series of Bonds; 

(n) all other expenses necessary or desirable and appertaining to a Project, as estimated or 
otherwise ascertained by the Issuer, including costs of contingencies for a Project; and 

(o) payment to the Issuer of such amounts, if any, as shall be necessary to reimburse the Issuer 
in full for advances and payments theretofore made or costs theretofore incurred by the Issuer for any item 
of Costs. 

In the case of refunding or redeeming any bonds or other obligations, “Cost” includes, without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, the items listed in (c), (e), (f), (i), (k), (1), (m) and (o) above, advertising and other expenses 
related to the redemption of such bonds to be redeemed and the redemption price of such bonds (and the accrued 
interest payable on redemption to the extent not otherwise provided for). 

“Cross-over Date” means with respect to Cross-over Refunding Bonds the date on which the Principal portion 
of the related Cross-over Refunded Bonds is to be paid or redeemed from the proceeds of such Cross-over Refunding 
Bonds. 

“Cross-over Refunded Bonds” means Bonds or other obligations refunded by Cross-over Refunding Bonds. 

“Cross-over Refunding Bonds” means Bonds issued for the purpose of refunding Bonds or other obligations 
if the proceeds of such Cross-over Refunding Bonds are irrevocably deposited in escrow in satisfaction of the 
requirements of Section 11-27-3, Utah Code, to secure the payment on an applicable redemption date or maturity date 
of the Cross-over Refunded Bonds (subject to possible use to pay Principal of the Cross- over Refunding Bonds under 
certain circumstances) and the earnings on such escrow deposit are required to be applied to pay interest on the Cross-
over Refunding Bonds until the Cross-over Date. 

“Current Interest Bonds” means all Bonds other than Capital Appreciation Bonds. Interest on Current Interest 
Bonds shall be payable periodically on the Interest Payment Dates provided therefor in a Supplemental Indenture. 
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“Debt Service” means, unless specified otherwise by Supplemental Indenture for a Series of Bonds, for any 
particular Bond Fund Year and for any Series of Bonds and any Repayment Obligations, an amount equal to the sum 
of (a) all interest payable during such Bond Fund Year on such Series of Bonds plus (b) the Principal Installments 
payable during such Bond Fund Year on (i) such Bonds Outstanding, calculated on the assumption that Bonds 
Outstanding on the day of calculation cease to be Outstanding by reason of, but only by reason of, payment either 
upon maturity or application of any Sinking Fund Installments required by the Indenture, and (ii) such Repayment 
Obligations then outstanding;  

provided, however, for purposes of issuance of Additional Bonds under the Indenture 

(A) when calculating interest payable during such Bond Fund Year for any Series of Variable 
Rate Bonds or Repayment Obligations bearing interest at a variable rate which cannot be ascertained for any 
particular Bond Fund Year, it shall be assumed that such Series of Variable Rate Bonds or related Repayment 
Obligations will bear interest at such market rate of interest applicable to such Series of Variable Rate Bonds 
or related Repayment Obligations as shall be established for this purpose in the opinion of the Issuer’s 
financial advisor, underwriter or similar agent (which market rate of interest may be based upon a recognized 
comparable market index, an average of interest rates for prior years or otherwise); 

(B) when calculating interest payable during such Bond Fund Year with respect to any 
Commercial Paper Program, Debt Service shall include an amount equal to the sum of all principal and 
interest payments that would be payable during such Bond Fund Year assuming that the Authorized Amount 
of such Commercial Paper Program is amortized on a level debt service basis over a period of 30 years 
beginning on the date of calculation or, if later, the last day of the period during which obligations can be 
issued under such Commercial Paper Program, and bearing interest at such market rate of interest applicable 
to such Commercial Paper Program as shall be established for this purpose in the opinion of the Issuer’s 
financial advisor, underwriter or similar agent (which market rate of interest may be based upon a recognized 
comparable market index, an average of interest rates for prior years or otherwise); and 

(C) when calculating interest payable on Bonds that are Paired Obligations, the interest rate on 
such Bonds shall be the resulting linked rate or effective fixed interest rate to be paid by the Issuer with 
respect to such Paired Obligations; 

and further provided, that there shall be excluded from Debt Service (x) interest on Bonds (including Cross-over 
Refunding Bonds or Cross-over Refunded Bonds) to the extent that Escrowed Interest or capitalized interest is 
available to pay such interest, (y) Principal on Cross-over Refunded Bonds to the extent that the proceeds of Cross-
over Refunding Bonds are on deposit in an irrevocable escrow in satisfaction of the requirements of Section 11-27-3, 
Utah Code, as amended, and such proceeds or the earnings thereon are required to be applied to pay such Principal 
(subject to the possible use to pay the Principal of the Cross-over Refunding Bonds under certain circumstances) and 
such amounts so required to be applied are sufficient to pay such Principal, and (z) Repayment Obligations to the 
extent that payments on Pledged Bonds relating to such Repayment Obligations satisfy the Issuer’s obligation to pay 
such Repayment Obligations. 

“Debt Service Reserve Fund” means the UIA Debt Service Reserve Fund created in the Indenture to be held 
by the Trustee and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Debt Service Reserve Requirement” means with respect to each Series of Bonds issued pursuant to the 
Indenture, the definition set forth in the Supplemental Indenture relating to such Series of Bonds. 

“Direct Obligations” means noncallable Government Obligations. 

“Escrowed Interest” means amounts irrevocably deposited in escrow in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 11-27-3, Utah Code, in connection with the issuance of Refunding Bonds or Cross-over Refunding Bonds 
secured by such amounts or earnings on such amounts which are required to be applied to pay interest on such Cross-
over Refunding Bonds or the related Cross-over Refunded Bonds. 
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“Event of Default” means with respect to any default or event of default under the Indenture any occurrence 
or event specified in and defined in the Indenture. 

“Fiscal Year” means the 12-month period beginning July 1 of each year and ending on the next succeeding 
June 30. 

“Fitch” means Fitch Ratings. 

“Franchise Tax Revenues” means proceeds of loans or payments of franchise tax revenues received by the 
Issuer from Contracting Members pursuant to the Service Contract. 

“Governing Body” means the Board of Directors of the Issuer.  

“Government Obligations” means solely one or more of the following: 

(a) State and Local Government Series issued by the United States Treasury (“SLGS”); 

(b) United States Treasury bills, notes and bonds, as traded on the open market; 

(c) Zero Coupon United States Treasury Bonds; and 

(d) Any other direct obligations of or obligations unconditionally guaranteed by, the United 
States of America (including, without limitation, obligations commonly referred to as “REFCORP strips”). 

“Indenture” means the General Indenture of Trust as from time to time amended or supplemented by 
Supplemental Indentures in accordance with the terms of the Indenture. 

“Initial Bonds” means the first Series of Bonds issued under the Indenture.  

“Interest Payment Date” means the stated payment date of an installment of interest on the Bonds. 

“Issuer” or “UIA” means the Utah Infrastructure Agency and its successors.  

“Member” means a member city of the Issuer as evidenced by the execution by said member city of the 
Interlocal Agreement which created the Issuer. 

“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. 

“Net Revenues” means all Revenues after payment of all Operation and Maintenance Expenses. 

“Operation and Maintenance Expenses” means all expenses reasonably incurred by UIA in connection with 
the operation and maintenance of the UIA Network, whether incurred by UIA or paid to any other entity, including 
UTOPIA or any Member, pursuant to contract or otherwise, necessary to keep the UIA Network in efficient operating 
condition, including cost of audits  required by the Indenture, payment of promotional and marketing expenses and 
real estate brokerage fees, payment of premiums for insurance and, generally all expenses, exclusive of depreciation 
(including depreciation related expenses of any joint venture) which under generally accepted accounting practices 
are properly allocable to operation and maintenance; provided, however, only such expenses as are reasonably and 
properly necessary to the efficient operation and maintenance of the UIA Network shall be included. 

“Outstanding” or “Bonds Outstanding” means at any date all Bonds which have not been canceled which 
have been or are being authenticated and delivered by the Trustee under the Indenture, except: 

(a) Any Bond or portion thereof which at the time has been paid or deemed paid pursuant to 
Article X of the Indenture; and 
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(b) Any Bond in lieu of or in substitution for which a new Bond shall have been authenticated 
and delivered under the Indenture, unless proof satisfactory to the Trustee is presented that such Bond is held 
by a bona fide holder in due course. 

“Paying Agent” means the Trustee, appointed as the initial paying agent for the Bonds pursuant to the 
Indenture and any additional or successor paying agent appointed pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Pledged Bonds” means any Bonds that have been (a) pledged or in which any interest has otherwise been 
granted to a Security Instrument Issuer as collateral security for Security Instrument Repayment Obligations or (b) 
purchased and held by a Security Instrument Issuer pursuant to a Security Instrument. 

“Principal” means (a) with respect to any Capital Appreciation Bond, the Accreted Amount thereof (the 
difference between the stated amount to be paid at maturity and the Accreted Amount being deemed unearned interest), 
except as used in connection with the authorization and issuance of Bonds and with the order of priority of payment 
of Bonds after an Event of Default, in which case “Principal” means the initial public offering price of a Capital 
Appreciation Bond (the difference between the Accreted Amount and the initial public offering price being deemed 
interest), and (b) with respect to any Current Interest Bond, the principal amount of such Bond payable at maturity. 

“Principal Corporate Trust Office” means, with respect to the Trustee, the office of the Trustee at One South 
Main, 12th floor, Salt Lake City, Utah 84133 or such other or additional offices as may be specified by the Trustee. 

“Principal Installment” means, as of any date of calculation, (a) with respect to any Series of Bonds, so long 
as any Bonds thereof are Outstanding, (i) the Principal amount of Bonds of such Series due on a certain future date 
for which no Sinking Fund Installments have been established, or (ii) the unsatisfied balance of any Sinking Fund 
Installment due on a certain future date for Bonds of such Series, plus the amount of the sinking fund redemption 
premiums, if any, which would be applicable upon redemption of such Bonds on such future date in a Principal amount 
equal to such unsatisfied balance of such Sinking Fund Installment and (b) with respect to any Repayment Obligations, 
the principal amount of such Repayment Obligations due on a certain future date. 

“Project” means the acquisition, construction, installation, and equipping of communications facilities, 
additions, extensions, facilities, equipment, buildings, furnishings, and improvements for the UIA Network including 
the acquisition of access rights to and capacity in the UTOPIA Network. 

“Put Bond” means any Bond which is part of a Series of Bonds which is subject to purchase by the Issuer, 
its agent or a third party from the Owner of the Bond pursuant to provisions of the Supplemental Indenture authorizing 
the issuance of the Bond and designating it as a “Put Bond.” 

“Qualified Consultant” means any firm, corporation, company or any other organization or person generally 
recognized as having expertise in matters relating to telecommunications or fiber optic systems, selected and paid by 
the Issuer, who shall not have any substantial interest, direct or indirect with the Issuer, but who may be regularly 
retained to make annual or other periodic reports to the Issuer. 

“Qualified Investments” means any of the following securities: 

(a) Government Obligations; 

(b) Obligations of any of the following federal agencies which obligations represent full faith 
and credit obligations of the United States of America including: the Export-Import Bank of the United 
States; the Government National Mortgage Association; the Federal Financing Bank; the Farmer’s Home 
Administration; the Federal Housing Administration; the Maritime Administration: General Services 
Administration, Small Business Administration; or the Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(PHA’s); 
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(c) Money market funds rated “AAAm” or “AAAm-G” or better by S&P and/or the equivalent 
rating or better of Moody’s (if so rated), including money market funds from which the Trustee or its affiliates 
derive a fee for investment advisory services to the fund; 

(d) Commercial paper which is rated at the time of purchase in the single highest classification, 
P-1 by Moody’s or A-1+ by S&P, and which matures not more than 270 days after the date of purchase; 

(e) Bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness rated “AAA” by S&P and “Aaa” by 
Moody’s issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation with remaining maturities not exceeding three years; 

(f) U.S. dollar denominated deposit accounts, federal funds and banker’s acceptances with 
domestic commercial banks, including the Trustee and its affiliates, which have a rating on their short-term 
certificates of deposit on the date of purchase of “A-1” or “A-1+” by S&P and “P-1” by Moody’s and 
maturing no more than 360 days after the date of purchase (ratings on holding companies are not considered 
as the rating of the bank); 

(g) The fund held by the Treasurer for the State of Utah and commonly known as the Utah 
State Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund; and 

(h) Any other investments or securities permitted for investment of public funds under the 
State Money Management Act of 1974, Title 51, Chapter 7, Utah Code, including investments contracts 
permitted by Section 51-7-17(2)(d) thereof. 

“Rating Agency” means Fitch, Moody’s, or S&P and their successors and assigns, but only to the extent such 
rating agency is then providing a rating on a Series of Bonds issued under the Indenture at the request of the Issuer.   
If either such Rating Agency ceases to act as a securities rating agency, the Issuer may designate any nationally 
recognized securities rating agency as a replacement. 

“Rating Category” or “Rating Categories” mean one or more of the generic rating categories of a Rating 
Agency, without regard to any refinement or gradation of such rating category or categories by a numerical modifier 
or otherwise. 

“Rebatable Arbitrage” means with respect to any Series of Bonds where the interest thereon is intended to 
be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the amount (determinable as of each Rebate 
Calculation Date) of rebatable arbitrage payable to the United States at the times and in the amounts specified in 
Section 148(t)(3) of the Code and Section 1.148-3 of the Regulations. 

“Rebate Calculation Date” means, with respect to any Series of Bonds where the interest thereon is intended 
to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the Interest Payment Date next preceding the 
fifth anniversary of the issue date of such Series of Bonds, each fifth anniversary of the initial Rebate Calculation Date 
for such Series of Bonds, and the date of retirement of the last Bond for such Series. 

“Rebate Fund” means the UIA Rebate Fund created in the Indenture to be held by the Trustee and 
administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Registrar” means the Trustee (or other party designated as Registrar by Supplemental Indenture), appointed 
as the registrar for the Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, and any additional or successor registrar appointed pursuant 
to the Indenture. 

“Regular Record Date” means, unless otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture for a Series of Bonds, 
the fifteenth day immediately preceding each Interest Payment Date. 

“Remarketing Agent” means a remarketing agent or commercial paper dealer appointed by the Issuer 
pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture. 
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“Repair and Replacement Fund” means the UIA Repair and Replacement Fund created in the Indenture to 
be held by the Issuer and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement” means the amount or amounts from time to time required 
under each Supplemental Indenture to be on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund. 

“Repayment Obligations” means, collectively, all Outstanding Security Instrument Repayment Obligations 
and Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations. 

“Reserve Instrument” means a device or instrument issued by a Reserve Instrument Provider to satisfy all or 
any portion of the Debt Service Reserve Requirement applicable to a Series of Bonds with the prior written approval 
of the Security Instrument Issuer, if any. The term “Reserve Instrument” includes, by way of example and not of 
limitation, letters of credit, bond insurance policies, surety bonds, standby bond purchase agreements, lines of credit, 
and other devices. 

“Reserve Instrument Agreement” means any agreement entered into by the Issuer and a Reserve Instrument 
Provider pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture (including the applicable portions of a Supplemental Indenture) and 
providing for the issuance by such Reserve Instrument Provider of a Reserve Instrument. 

“Reserve Instrument Costs” means all fees, premiums, expenses, and similar costs, other than Reserve 
Instrument Repayment Obligations, required to be paid to a Reserve Instrument Provider pursuant to a Reserve 
Instrument Agreement. Each Reserve Instrument Agreement shall specify the fees, premiums, expenses, and costs 
constituting Reserve Instrument Costs. 

“Reserve Instrument Coverage” means, as of any date of calculation, the aggregate amount available to be 
paid to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture under all Reserve Instruments. 

“Reserve Instrument Fund” means the UIA Reserve Instrument Fund created pursuant to the Indenture to be 
held by the Trustee and administered pursuant the Indenture. 

“Reserve Instrument Limit” means, as of any date of calculation and with respect to any Reserve Instrument, 
the maximum aggregate amount available to be paid under such Reserve Instrument into the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund assuming for purposes of such calculation that the amount initially available under each Reserve Instrument has 
not been reduced or that the amount initially available under each Reserve Instrument has only been reduced as a 
result of the payment of principal of the applicable Series of Bonds. 

“Reserve Instrument Provider” means any bank, savings and loan association, savings bank, thrift institution, 
credit union, insurance company, surety company, or other institution issuing a Reserve Instrument, which at the time 
of issuance of the Reserve Instrument, is rated in one of the four highest Rating Categories by a Rating Agency. 

“Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations” means, as of any date of calculation and with respect to any 
Reserve Instrument Agreement, those outstanding amounts payable by the Issuer under such Reserve Instrument 
Agreement to repay the Reserve Instrument Provider for payments previously made by it pursuant to a Reserve 
Instrument. There shall not be included in the calculation of Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations any Reserve 
Instrument Costs. 

“Revenue Fund” means the UIA Revenue Fund created in the Indenture to be held by the Issuer and 
administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Revenues” means all revenues, fees, income, rents, sale proceeds, and receipts received or earned by the 
Issuer from or attributable to the ownership or operation of the UIA Network, including moneys received from the 
imposition of fees and charges to providers and end users and all payments received pursuant to the Service Contract, 
including any Franchise Tax Revenues, together with all interest earned by and profits derived from the sale of 
investments in the related funds thereof. Revenues do not include gifts or grants received by UIA. 
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“S&P” means S&P Global Ratings, a business unit of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC. 

“Secretary” means the Secretary of the Issuer or any successor to the duties of such office. 

“Security Instrument” means an instrument or other device issued by a Security Instrument Issuer to pay, or 
to provide security or liquidity for, a Series of Bonds. The term “Security Instrument” includes, by way of example 
and not of limitation, letters of credit, bond insurance policies, standby bond purchase agreements, lines of credit and 
other security instruments and credit enhancement or liquidity devices (but does not include a Reserve Instrument); 
provided, however, that no such device or instrument shall be a “Security Instrument” for purposes of the Indenture 
unless specifically so designated in a Supplemental Indenture authorizing the use of such device or instrument. 

“Security Instrument Agreement” means any agreement entered into by the Issuer and a Security Instrument 
Issuer pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture (including the applicable portions of a Supplemental Indenture) providing 
for the issuance by such Security Instrument Issuer of a Security Instrument. 

“Security Instrument Costs” means, with respect to any Security Instrument, all fees, premiums, expenses 
and similar costs, other than Security Instrument Repayment Obligations, required to be paid to a Security Instrument 
Issuer pursuant to a Security Instrument Agreement or the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the use of such Security 
Instrument. Such Security Instrument Agreement or Supplemental Indenture shall specify any fees, premiums, 
expenses, and costs constituting Security Instrument Costs. 

“Security Instrument Issuer” means any bank or other financial institution, insurance company, surety 
company, or other institution issuing a Security Instrument. 

“Security Instrument Repayment Obligations” means, as of any date of calculation and with respect to any 
Security Instrument Agreement, any outstanding amounts payable by the Issuer under the Security Instrument 
Agreement or the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the use of such Security Instrument to repay the Security 
Instrument Issuer for payments previously or concurrently made by the Security Instrument Issuer pursuant to a 
Security Instrument. There shall not be included in the calculation of the amount of Security Instrument Repayment 
Obligations any Security Instrument Costs. 

“Series” means all of the Bonds authenticated and delivered on original issuance and identified pursuant to 
the Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Bonds as a separate Series of Bonds, and any Bonds thereafter 
authenticated and delivered in lieu thereof or in substitution therefor. 

“Service Contract” means that certain Service Contract dated as of May 1, 2011, entered into between the 
Issuer and the Contracting Members identified in that Service Contract, as such contract may be amended and 
supplemented from time to time. 

“Sinking Fund Account” means the UIA Sinking Fund Account of the Bond Fund created in the Indenture 
to be held by the Trustee and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Sinking Fund Installment” means the amount of money which is required to be deposited into the Sinking 
Fund Account in each Bond Fund Year for the retirement of Term Bonds as specified in the Supplemental Indenture 
authorizing said Term Bonds (whether at maturity or by redemption), and including the redemption premium, if any. 

“Special Record Date” means such date as may be fixed for the payment of defaulted interest on the Bonds 
in accordance with the Indenture. 

“State” means the State of Utah. 

“Supplemental Indenture” means any indenture between the Issuer and the Trustee entered into pursuant to 
and in compliance with the provisions of the Indenture. 
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“Telecommunications Act” means the Municipal Cable Television and Public Telecommunications Service 
Act, Title 10, Chapter 18, Utah Code. 

“Term Bonds” means the Bonds which shall be subject to retirement by operation of mandatory sinking fund 
redemptions from the Sinking Fund Account. 

“Trustee” means ZB, National Association, One South Main, 12th floor, Salt Lake City, Utah 84133 or any 
successor corporation resulting from or surviving any consolidation or merger to which it or its successors may be a 
party and any successor trustee at any time serving as successor trustee under the Indenture. 

“UIA Network” means fiber optic lines, connection lines and related improvements and facilities acquired, 
constructed and owned by UIA, together with the acquisition by UIA of access rights and capacity in the UTOPIA 
Network and access rights and capacity in other networks. 

Utah Code” means Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. 

“UTOPIA Network” means UTOPIA’s wholesale telecommunications network, together with any additions, 
repairs, renewals, replacements, expansions, extensions and improvements to said network. 

“Variable Rate Bonds” means, as of any date of calculation, Bonds, the interest on which for any future 
period of time, is to be calculated at a rate which is not susceptible to a precise determination. 

“Year” means any twelve consecutive month period. 

Indenture to Constitute Contract 

In consideration of the purchase and acceptance from time to time of any and all of the Bonds authorized to 
be issued under the Indenture by the Registered Owners thereof, the issuance from time to time of any and all Security 
Instruments by Security Instrument Issuers, and the issuance from time to time of any and all Reserve Instruments by 
Reserve Instrument Providers pursuant to the Indenture, the Indenture shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a 
contract between the Issuer and the Owners from time to time of the Bonds, the Security Instrument Issuers and the 
Reserve Instrument Providers; and the pledge made in the Indenture and the covenants and agreements set forth in the 
Indenture to be performed by or on behalf of the Issuer shall be, FIRST, for the equal benefit, protection and security 
of the Owners of any and all of the Bonds and the Security Instrument Issuers of any and all of the Security Instruments 
all of which, regardless of the time or times of their issuance, delivery, maturity or expiration, shall be of equal rank 
without preference, priority or distinction of any of the Bonds or Security Instrument Repayment Obligations over 
any others, except as expressly provided in or permitted by the Indenture, and SECOND, for the equal benefit, 
protection and security of the Reserve Instrument Providers of any and all of the Reserve Instruments which, regardless 
of the time or times of their issuance, delivery or termination, shall be of equal rank without preference, priority or 
distinction of any Reserve Instrument over any other thereof. 

Perfection of Security Interest 

(a) The Indenture creates a valid and binding pledge and assignment of security interest in all of the Net 
Revenues pledged under the Indenture in favor of the Trustee as security for payment of the Bonds, enforceable by 
the Trustee in accordance with the terms thereof. 

(b) Under the laws of the State, such pledge and assignment and security interest is automatically 
perfected by Section 11-14-501, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended, and is and shall have priority as against all 
parties having claims of any kind in tort, contract, or otherwise hereafter imposed on the Net Revenues. 

(c) The Issuer and the Trustee covenant and agree to take such action (including, as applicable, filing 
of UCC financing statements and continuations thereof) as is necessary from time to time to preserve the priority of 
the pledge of the Trust Estate under applicable law. 
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Authentication and Delivery of Bonds 

(a) The Issuer shall deliver executed Bonds of each Series to the Trustee for authentication. Subject to 
the satisfaction of the conditions for authentication of Bonds set forth in the Indenture, the Trustee shall authenticate 
such Bonds, and deliver them upon the order of the Issuer to the purchasers thereof (or hold them on their behalf) 
upon the payment by the purchasers to the Trustee for the account of the Issuer of the purchase price therefor. Delivery 
by the Trustee shall be full acquittal to the purchasers for the purchase price of such Bonds, and such purchasers shall 
be under no obligation to see to the application thereof. The proceeds of the sale of such Bonds shall, however, be 
disposed of only as provided in the Indenture and in the related Supplemental Indenture. 

(b) No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or entitled to any security or benefit under the 
Indenture, unless and until a certificate of authentication on such Bond substantially in the form set forth in the 
Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Bond shall have been duly executed by the Trustee, and such executed 
certificate of the Trustee upon any such Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been authenticated and 
delivered under the Indenture. The Trustee’s certificate of authentication on any Bond shall be deemed to have been 
executed by it if signed by an authorized officer of the Trustee, but it shall not be necessary that the same officer sign 
the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds issued under the Indenture. 

(c) Prior to the authentication by the Trustee of each Series of Bonds there shall have been filed with 
the Trustee: 

(i) A copy, duly certified by the Secretary, of the Indenture (to the extent not theretofore so 
filed) and the Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Series of Bonds. 

(ii) A copy, certified by the Secretary, of the proceedings of the Issuer’s Governing Body 
approving the execution and delivery of the instruments specified the Indenture and the execution and 
delivery of such Series of Bonds, together with a certificate, dated as of the date of authentication of such 
Series of Bonds, of the Secretary that such proceedings are still in force and effect without amendments 
except as shown in such proceedings. 

(iii) A request and authorization to the Trustee of the Issuer to authenticate such Series of Bonds 
in the aggregate principal amount therein specified and deliver them to purchasers therein identified upon 
payment to the Trustee, for account of the Issuer, of the sum specified therein. 

(iv) An opinion of bond counsel dated the date of authentication of such Series of Bonds to the 
effect that (a) the Issuer has authorized the execution and delivery of the Indenture and such Series of Bonds 
and the Indenture has been duly executed and delivered by the Issuer and is a valid and binding and 
enforceable agreement of the Issuer; (b) the Indenture creates the valid pledge which it purports to create of 
the Net Revenues; and (c) the Bonds of such Series are valid and binding obligations of the Issuer, entitled 
to the benefits and security hereof, provided that such opinion may contain limitations acceptable to the 
purchaser of such Series of Bonds. 

(e) The Issuer may provide by Supplemental Indenture for the delivery to the Trustee of one or more 
Security Instruments with respect to any Series of Bonds and the execution and delivery of any Security Instrument 
Agreements deemed necessary in connection therewith. 

(f) Subject to any limitations contained in a Supplemental Indenture, the Issuer may provide a Security 
Instrument for any Series of Bonds (or may substitute one Security Instrument for another). 

(g) The Issuer may provide by Supplemental Indenture for the issuance and delivery to the Trustee of 
one or more Reserve Instruments and the execution and delivery of any Reserve Instrument Agreements deemed 
necessary in connection therewith. 

(h) The Issuer may authorize by Supplemental Indenture the issuance of Put Bonds; provided that any 
obligation of the Issuer to pay the purchase price of any such Put Bonds shall not be secured by a pledge of Net 
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Revenues on a parity with the pledge contained in the Indenture.  The Issuer may provide for the appointment of such 
Remarketing Agents, indexing agents, tender agents or other agents as the Issuer may determine. 

(i) The Issuer may include such provisions in a Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of a 
Series of Bonds secured by a Security Instrument as the Issuer deems appropriate, including: 

(i) So long as the Security Instrument is in full force and effect, and payment on the Security 
Instrument is not in default, (A) the Security Instrument Issuer shall be deemed to be the Owner of the 
Outstanding Bonds of such Series (1) when the approval, consent or action of the Bondowners for such Series 
of Bonds is required or may be exercised under the Indenture and (2) following an Event of Default and (B) 
the Indenture may not be amended in any manner which affects the rights of such Security Instrument Issuer 
without its prior written consent. 

(ii) In the event that the Principal and redemption price, if applicable, and interest due on any 
Series of Bonds Outstanding shall be paid under the provisions of a Security Instrument, all covenants, 
agreements and other obligations of the Issuer to the Bondowners of such Series of Bonds shall continue to 
exist and such Security Instrument Issuer shall be subrogated to the rights of such Bondowners in accordance 
with the terms of such Security Instrument. 

(iii) In addition, such Supplemental Indenture may establish such provisions as are necessary 
to provide relevant information to the Security Instrument Issuer and to provide a mechanism for paying 
Principal Installments and interest on such Series of Bonds from the Security Instrument. 

Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds 

In the event any Bond is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Issuer may execute and the Trustee may 
authenticate a new Bond of like date, Series, maturity and denomination as that mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed; 
provided that, in the case of any mutilated Bond, such mutilated Bond shall first be surrendered to the Trustee, and in 
the case of any lost, stolen or destroyed Bond, there shall be first furnished to the Trustee evidence of such loss, theft 
or destruction satisfactory to the Trustee, together in all cases with indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee and the Issuer. 
In the event any such Bond shall have matured, instead of issuing a duplicate Bond, the Trustee may pay the same 
without surrender thereof upon compliance with the foregoing. The Trustee may charge the Registered Owner of such 
Bond with its reasonable fees and expenses in connection therewith. Any Bond issued pursuant to the Indenture shall 
be deemed part of the Series of Bonds in respect of which it was issued and an original additional contractual obligation 
of the Issuer. 

Cancellation 

All Bonds which have been surrendered for payment, redemption or exchange, and Bonds purchased from 
any moneys held by the Trustee under the Indenture or surrendered to the Trustee by the Issuer, shall be canceled and 
cremated or otherwise destroyed by the Trustee and shall not be reissued; provided, however, that one or more new 
Bonds shall be issued for the unredeemed portion of any Bond without charge to the Registered Owner thereof. 

Nonpresentation of Bonds 

Unless otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture, in the event any Bond shall not be presented for 
payment when the principal thereof becomes due, either at maturity or otherwise, or at the date fixed for redemption 
thereof, if funds sufficient to pay such Bond shall have been made available to the Trustee, all liability of the Issuer 
to the Registered Owner thereof for the payment of such Bond shall forthwith cease, terminate and be completely 
discharged, and thereupon it shall be the duty of the Trustee to hold such fund or funds, without liability to the 
Registered Owner of such Bond for interest thereon, for the benefit of the Registered Owner of such Bond who shall 
thereafter be restricted exclusively to such fund or funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part under the 
Indenture or on, or with respect to, said Bond. If any Bond shall not be presented for payment within four years 
following the date when such Bond becomes due, whether by maturity or otherwise, the Trustee shall, to the extent 
permitted by law, repay to the Issuer the funds theretofore held by it for payment of such Bond, and such Bond shall, 
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subject to the defense of any applicable statute of limitation, thereafter be an unsecured obligation of the Issuer, and 
the Registered Owner thereof shall be entitled to look only to the Issuer for payment, and then only to the extent of 
the amount so repaid, and the Issuer shall not be liable for any interest thereon and shall not be regarded as a trustee 
of such money. The provisions of the Indenture are subject to the provisions of Title 67, Chapter 4a, Utah Code. 

Additional Bonds 

No additional indebtedness, bonds or notes of the Issuer payable from Net Revenues or any portion thereof 
on a priority basis senior to the Bonds or the Security Instrument Repayment Obligations authorized in the Indenture 
shall be created or incurred. The Issuer may issue Additional Bonds and other parity obligations if the following 
requirements have been met: 

(a) (i) A certificate, based upon the most recent audited financial statements of the Issuer or a report prepared 
by the Issuer’s auditor, shall be delivered to the Trustee by an Authorized Representative to the effect that the sum of 
the Net Revenues and any Available Franchise Tax Revenues for any Year within the 24 months immediately 
preceding the issuance of the Additional Bonds was at least 150% of the maximum Aggregate Annual Debt Service 
for any Bond Fund Year on all of the Bonds that will be Outstanding upon the issuance of such Additional Bonds; or  

(ii) An Authorized Representative shall have delivered to the Trustee a certificate from a Qualified 
Consultant: 

(1) setting forth projected Available Franchise Tax Revenues, and the Estimated Net Revenues as 
described in the Indenture (assuming, if applicable, the completion of any contemplated additions, improvements, 
extensions, replacements or repairs to the UIA Network (collectively, the “Improvements”) financed with proceeds of 
the Additional Bonds) either: 

(i) for each of the two Bond Fund Years succeeding the latest estimated date of completion of 
the Improvements, if proceeds of the Additional Bonds are used to fund interest during the construction 
period, or 

(ii) if (i) is not the case, for the then current Bond Fund Year and the next succeeding Bond 
Fund Year; and 

(2) verifying that the sum of the projected Available Franchise Tax Revenues and the Estimated Net 
Revenues as shown in (1) above for each Bond Fund Year during which Bonds are Outstanding is not less than 150% 
of the maximum annual debt service requirement for each of such Bond Fund Years with respect to all of the Bonds 
which would then be Outstanding upon the issuance of such Additional Bonds so proposed to be issued. 

For purposes of subsection (ii) above “Estimated Net Revenues” shall be determined by the Qualified 
Consultant as follows: 

(A) The Net Revenues for any Year in the 24 months immediately preceding the delivery of 
the Additional Bonds shall first be determined.  Net Revenues may be adjusted to give full effect to rate 
increases implemented prior to the issuance of the Additional Bonds. 

(B) Next, the additional Net Revenues, if any, resulting from the Improvements financed with 
proceeds of the Additional Bonds will be estimated by the Qualified Consultant for the applicable Bond Fund 
Years as determined in (ii)(1)(i) or (ii) above. 

(C) The Estimated Net Revenues will be the sum of the Net Revenues as calculated in (A) 
above, plus 75% of the estimated additional Net Revenues as calculated in (B) above. 

(b) All payments required by the Indenture to be made into the Bond Fund must have been made in full, 
and there must be in the Debt Service Reserve Fund the full amount required by the Indenture to be accumulated at 
such time, taking into account any Reserve Instrument Coverage. 
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(c) The coverage test set forth in (a)(i) and (a)(ii) above shall not apply to the issuance of any Additional 
Bonds to the extent such Bonds are issued for the purpose of refunding Bonds issued  under the Indenture and the 
Average Aggregate Annual Debt Service for such Additional Bonds does not exceed the then remaining Average 
Aggregate Annual Debt Service for the Bonds being refunded therewith. 

(d) All Repayment Obligations then due and owing shall have been paid. 

(e) All payments required by the Indenture to be made into the Bond Fund must have been made in full, 
and there must be on deposit in each account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund (taking into account any Reserve 
Instrument Coverage) the full amount required by the Indenture to be accumulated therein. 

(f) The proceeds of the Additional Bonds, less costs of issuance and funding of reserves, must be used 
in connection with (i) the refunding of Bonds issued under the Indenture or any borrowing of the Issuer, (ii) the 
financing of a Project or (iii) any other lawful purpose. 

(g) No Event of Default is existing under the Indenture on the date of authentication of such Additional 
Bonds, unless (i) the Security Instrument Issuers, Reserve Instrument Issuers and Owners of all Outstanding Bonds 
(subject to the consent authorized by (h)(i) have each consented to the issuance of such Additional Bonds or (ii) upon 
the issuance of such Additional Bonds and the application of the proceeds thereof, all such Events of Default will be 
cured. 

Coverage against Creating or Permitting Liens 

Except for the pledge of Net Revenues to secure payment of the Bonds and Repayment Obligations under 
the Indenture, the Net Revenues are and shall be free and clear of any pledge, lien, charge or encumbrance thereon or 
with respect thereto; provided, however, that nothing contained in the Indenture shall prevent the Issuer from issuing, 
if and to the extent permitted by law, indebtedness having a lien on Net Revenues subordinate to that of the Bonds 
and Repayment Obligations.  Nothing in the Indenture shall be construed to limit the Issuer from incurring additional 
obligations which are payable from or secured by a source of revenues that is different from the Revenues pledged in 
the Indenture. 

Special Funds and Accounts 

Use of Construction Fund.   

(a) So long as an Event of Default shall not have occurred and be continuing and except as otherwise 
provided by Supplemental Indenture, moneys deposited in the appropriate account in the Construction Fund shall be 
disbursed by the Trustee to pay the Costs of a Project, in each case within three Business Days (or within such longer 
period as is reasonably required to liquidate investments in the Construction Fund if required to make such payment) 
after the receipt by the Trustee of a written requisition approved by an Authorized Representative of the Issuer, stating 
that the Trustee shall disburse sums in the manner specified by and at the direction of the Issuer and by the Security 
Instrument Issuer, if any, to the person or entity designated in such written requisition, and that the amount set forth 
therein is justly due and owing and constitutes a Cost of a Project based upon audited, itemized claims substantiated 
in support thereof. 

(b) Upon receipt of such requisition, the Trustee shall pay the obligation set forth in such requisition 
out of moneys in the applicable account in the Construction Fund. In making such payments the Trustee may rely 
upon the information submitted in such requisition.  Such payments shall be presumed to be made properly and the 
Trustee shall not be required to verify the application of any payments from the Construction Fund or to inquire into 
the purposes for which disbursements are being made from the Construction Fund. 

(c) The Issuer shall deliver to the Trustee, within 90 days after the completion of a Project, a certificate 
executed by an Authorized Representative of the Issuer stating: 
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(i) that such Project has been fully completed in accordance with the plans and specifications 
therefor, as amended from time to time, and stating the date of completion for such Project; and 

(ii) that the Project has been fully paid for and no claim or claims exist against the Issuer or 
against such Project out of which a lien based on furnishing labor or material exists or might ripen; provided, 
however, there may be excepted from the foregoing certification any claim or claims out of which a lien 
exists or might ripen in the event the Issuer intends to contest such claim or claims, in which event such claim 
or claims shall be described to the Trustee. 

(d) In the event the certificate filed with the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture shall state that there is a 
claim or claims in controversy which create or might ripen into a lien, an Authorized Representative of the Issuer shall 
file a similar certificate with the Trustee when and as such claim or claims shall have been fully paid or otherwise 
discharged. 

(e) The Trustee and the Issuer shall keep and maintain adequate records pertaining to each account 
within the Construction Fund and all disbursements therefrom. 

(f) Unless otherwise specified in a Supplemental Indenture, upon completion of a Project and payment 
of all costs and expenses incident thereto and the filing with the Trustee of documents required by the Indenture, any 
balance remaining in the applicable account in the Construction Fund relating to such Project shall, as directed by an 
Authorized Representative of the Issuer, be deposited in the Bond Fund, to be applied, (i) toward the redemption of 
the Series of Bonds issued to finance such Project or (ii) to pay principal and/or interest next falling due with respect 
to such Series of Bonds. 

(g) The Trustee shall, to the extent there are no other available funds held under the Indenture, use the 
remaining funds in the Construction Fund to pay principal and interest on the Bonds at any time in the event of a 
payment default. 

Application of Revenues 

(a) All Revenues shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund and accounted for by the Issuer separate and 
apart from all other moneys of the Issuer.   

(b) As a first charge and lien on the Revenues, the Issuer shall cause to be paid from the Revenue Fund 
from time to time as the Issuer shall determine, all Operation and Maintenance Expenses of the Issuer as the same 
become due and payable, and thereupon such expenses shall be promptly paid. 

(c) So long as any Bonds are Outstanding, as a second charge and lien on the Revenues, i.e. from Net 
Revenues, the Issuer shall, on or before the first Business Day of each month, transfer to the Trustee for deposit into 
the Bond Fund from the Revenue Fund an amount equal to: 

(i) one sixth (1/6) of the interest falling due on the Bonds on the next succeeding Interest 
Payment Date established for the Bonds (provided, however, that so long as there are moneys representing 
capitalized interest on deposit with the Trustee to pay interest on the Bonds next coming due, the Issuer need 
not allocate to the Revenue Fund to pay interest on the Bonds); plus 

(ii) one twelfth (1/12) of the principal and premium, if any, falling due on the next succeeding 
principal payment date established for the Bonds; plus 

(iii) one twelfth (1/12) the Sinking Fund Installments, if any, falling due on the next succeeding 
Sinking Fund Installment payment date; 

(iv) the sum of which shall be sufficient, when added to the existing balance in the Bond Fund, 
to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds promptly on each such Interest Payment 
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Date as the same become due and payable. The foregoing provisions may be revised by a Supplemental 
Indenture for any Series of Bonds having other than semiannual Interest Payment Dates. 

(d) As a third charge and lien on the Revenues (on a parity basis), the Issuer shall make the following 
transfers to the Trustee on or before the fifteenth day of each month of each year: 

(i) To the extent the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any, is not funded with a Reserve 
Instrument or Instruments, (A) to the accounts in the Debt Service Reserve Fund any amounts required hereby 
and by any Supplemental Indenture to accumulate therein the applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement 
with respect to each Series of Bonds at the times and in the amounts provided described in the Indenture and 
in any Supplemental Indenture and (B) if funds shall have been withdrawn from an account in the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund or any account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund is at any time funded in an amount 
less than the applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement, the Issuer shall deposit Revenues in such 
account(s) in the Debt Service Reserve Fund sufficient in amount to restore such account(s) within one year 
with twelve (12) substantially equal payments during such period (unless otherwise provided for by the 
Supplemental Indenture governing the applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement); or a ratable portion 
(based on the amount to be transferred pursuant to the Indenture of remaining Revenues if less than the 
amount necessary; and 

(ii) Equally and ratably to the accounts of the Reserve Instrument Fund with respect to all 
Reserve Instruments which are in effect and are expected to continue in effect after the end of such month, 
such amount of the remaining Revenues, or a ratable portion (based on the amount to be transferred pursuant 
to the Indenture) of the amount so remaining if less than the amount necessary, that is required to be paid, on 
or before the next such monthly transfer or deposit of Revenues into the Reserve Instrument Fund, to the 
Reserve Instrument Provider pursuant to any Reserve Instrument Agreement, other than Reserve Instrument 
Costs, in order to cause the Reserve Instrument Coverage to equal the Reserve Instrument Limit within one 
year from any draw date under the Reserve Instrument. 

(e) As a fourth charge and lien on the Revenues, the Issuer shall deposit in the Repair and Replacement 
Fund any amount required hereby and by any Supplemental Indenture to accumulate therein the Repair and 
Replacement Reserve Requirement. In the event that the amount on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund shall 
ever be less than the Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement for the Bonds then Outstanding (or, after the 
issuance of Additional Bonds, the amount required to be on deposit therein), from time to time, the Issuer shall deposit 
to the Repair and Replacement Fund from the Revenue Fund all remaining Revenues of the UIA Network after 
payments required by the Indenture have been made until there is on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund an 
amount equal to the Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement. Subject to the provisions of the Indenture, this 
provision is not intended to limit, and shall not limit, the right of the Issuer to deposit additional moneys in the Repair 
and Replacement Fund from time to time as the Issuer may determine. 

(f) Subject to making the foregoing deposits, the Issuer may use the balance of the Revenues accounted 
for in the Revenue Fund for any of the following: 

(i) redemption of Bonds; 

(ii) refinancing, refunding, or advance refunding of any Bonds; 

(iii) any amounts owing from the Issuer to any Contracting Member under the Service Contract; 
or 

(iv) for any other lawful purpose, including any intergovernmental transfers, including but not 
limited to transfers to UTOPIA. 

Use of Bond Fund.  The Issuer may direct the Trustee, pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture, to create an 
account within the Bond Fund for a separate Series of Bonds under the Indenture. 
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(a) The Trustee shall make deposits to the Bond Fund, as and when received, as follows: 

(i) accrued interest received upon the issuance of any Series of Bonds; 

(ii) all moneys payable by the Issuer as specified in the Indenture; 

(iii) any amount in the Construction Fund to the extent required by or directed pursuant to the 
Indenture upon completion of a Project; 

(iv) all moneys transferred from the Debt Service Reserve Fund or from a Reserve Instrument 
or Instruments then in effect as provided in the Indenture; and 

(v) all other moneys received by the Trustee under the Indenture when accompanied by 
directions from the person depositing such moneys that such moneys are to be paid into the Bond Fund. 

(b) Except as provided in the Indenture and except as otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture, 
moneys in the Bond Fund shall be expended solely for the following purposes and in the following order of priority: 

(i) on or before each Interest Payment Date for each Series of Bonds, the amount required to 
pay the interest due on such date; 

(ii) on or before each Principal Installment due date, the amount required to pay the Principal 
Installment due on such due date; and 

(iii) on or before each redemption date for each Series of Bonds, the amount required to pay 
the redemption price of and accrued interest on such Bonds then to be redeemed. 

Such amounts shall be applied by the Paying Agent to pay Principal Installments and redemption price of, 
and interest on the related Series of Bonds. 

The Trustee shall pay out of the Bond Fund to the Security Instrument Issuer, if any, that has issued a Security 
Instrument with respect to such Series of Bonds an amount equal to any Security Instrument Repayment Obligation 
then due and payable to such Security Instrument Issuer. Except as otherwise specified in a related Supplemental 
Indenture all such Security Instrument Repayment Obligations shall be paid on a parity with the payments to be made 
with respect to principal and interest on the Bonds; provided that amounts paid under a Security Instrument shall be 
applied only to pay the related Series of Bonds. If payment is so made on Pledged Bonds held for the benefit of the 
Security Instrument Issuer, a corresponding payment on the Security Instrument Repayment Obligation shall be 
deemed to have been made (without requiring an additional payment by the Issuer) and the Trustee shall keep its 
records accordingly. 

The Issuer authorizes and directs the Trustee to withdraw sufficient funds from the Bond Fund to pay 
principal of and interest on the Bonds and on Security Instrument Repayment Obligations as the same become due 
and payable and to make said funds so withdrawn available to the Trustee and any Paying Agent for the purpose of 
paying said Principal and interest. 

(c) After payment in full of the Principal of and interest on (i) all Bonds issued under the Indenture (or 
after provision has been made for the payment thereof as provided in the Indenture so that such Bonds are no longer 
Outstanding); (ii) all agreements relating to all outstanding Security Instrument Repayment Obligations and Reserve 
Instrument Repayment Obligations in accordance with their respective terms; and (iii) the fees, charges, and expenses 
of the Trustee, the Paying Agent and any other amounts required to be paid under the Indenture or under any 
Supplemental Indenture and under any Security Instrument Agreement and under any Reserve Instrument Agreement; 
all amounts remaining in the Bond Fund shall be paid to the Issuer. 
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Use of Sinking Fund Account. 

(a) The Trustee shall apply moneys in the Sinking Fund Account to the retirement of any Term Bonds 
required to be retired by operation of the Sinking Fund Account under the provisions of and in accordance with the 
Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of such Term Bonds, either by redemption in accordance with such 
Supplemental Indenture or, at the direction of the Issuer, purchase of such Term Bonds in the open market prior to the 
date on which notice of the redemption of such Term Bonds is given pursuant to the Indenture, at a price not to exceed 
the redemption price of such Term Bonds (plus accrued interest which will be paid from moneys in the Bond Fund 
other than those in the Sinking Fund Account). 

(b) On the maturity date of any Term Bonds, the Trustee shall apply the moneys on hand in the Sinking 
Fund Account for the payment of the principal of such Term Bonds. 

Use of Debt Service Reserve Fund.  Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture or by Supplemental 
Indenture, and subject to the immediately following sentence, moneys in each account in the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund shall at all times be maintained in an amount not less than the applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if 
any. In calculating the amount on deposit in each account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, the amount of any Reserve 
Instrument Coverage will be treated as an amount on deposit in such account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund. Each 
Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of a Series of Bonds shall specify the Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement, if any, applicable to such Series which amount shall, unless otherwise specified by the respective 
Supplemental Indenture, either be (a) deposited immediately upon the issuance and delivery of such Series from (i) 
proceeds from the sale thereof or from any other legally available source, or (ii) by a Reserve Instrument or 
Instruments, or (iii) any combination thereof, (b) deposited from available Net Revenues over the period of time 
specified therein, or (c) deposited from any combination of (a) and (b) above; provided however, the foregoing 
provisions shall be subject to the requirements of any Security Instrument Issuer set forth in the related Supplemental 
Indenture. If at any time the amount on deposit in any account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund is less than the 
minimum amount to be maintained therein, the Trustee is required on behalf of the Issuer to exercise the Issuer’s 
remedies under the Service Contract to collect amounts payable under the Service Contract, including the advance of 
Franchise Tax Revenues, sufficient to replenish the Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, all amounts deposited in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall 
be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purpose of making transfers to the Bond Fund in the event of any 
deficiency at any time in the Bond Fund of the amount then required for payment of the principal and interest on the 
Bonds or, in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture, for the purpose of redeeming Bonds.  Transfers shall be 
made from the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the Bond Fund in the event of a deficiency in the Bond Fund, in 
accordance the Indenture.   

In the event funds on deposit in an account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund are needed to make up any 
deficiencies in the Bond Fund as aforementioned, and there is insufficient cash available in such account of the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund to make up such deficiency and Reserve Instruments applicable to such Series are in effect, the 
Trustee shall immediately make a demand for payment on such Reserve Instruments, to the maximum extent 
authorized by such Reserve Instruments, in the amount necessary to make up such deficiency, and immediately deposit 
such payment upon receipt thereof into the Bond Fund. Thereafter, the Issuer shall be obligated to reinstate the Reserve 
Instrument as provided in the Indenture. 

No Reserve Instrument shall be allowed to expire or terminate while the related Series of Bonds are 
Outstanding unless and until cash has been deposited into the related account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund, or a 
new Reserve Instrument has been issued in place of the expiring or terminating Reserve Instrument, or any 
combination thereof in an amount or to provide coverage, as the case may be, at least equal to the amount required to 
be maintained in the related account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

Except as otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture, moneys at any time on deposit in the account of 
the Debt Service Reserve Fund in excess of the amount required to be maintained therein (taking into account the 
amount of related Reserve Instrument Coverage) shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Bond Fund at least once 
each year. 
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Moneys on deposit in any account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be used to make up any deficiencies 
in the Bond Fund only for the Series of Bonds secured by said account and any Reserve Instrument shall only be 
drawn upon with respect to the Series of Bonds for which such Reserve Instrument was obtained. 

Whenever the balance in an account the Debt Service Reserve Fund exceeds the amount required to redeem 
or pay the related Series of Outstanding Bonds, including interest accrued to the date of payment or redemption and 
premium, if any, due upon redemption, the Trustee shall, upon receipt of a written direction of the Issuer, transfer the 
amount in the related account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the Bond Fund to be applied, on the next succeeding 
Interest Payment Date to the payment and redemption of all of the related Series of Outstanding Bonds. 

Use of Reserve Instrument Fund.  There shall be paid into the Reserve Instrument Fund the amounts required 
by the Indenture and by a Supplemental Indenture to be so paid.  The amounts in the Reserve Instrument Fund shall, 
from time to time, be applied by the Trustee on behalf of the Issuer to pay the Reserve Instrument Repayment 
Obligations which are due and payable to any Reserve Instrument Provider under any applicable Reserve Instrument 
Agreement.   

Use of Repair and Replacement Fund.  All moneys in the Repair and Replacement Fund may be drawn on 
and used by the Issuer for the purpose of (a) paying the cost of unusual or extraordinary maintenance or repairs of the 
UIA Network; (b) paying the costs of any renewals, renovation, improvements, expansion or replacements to the UIA 
Network; and (c) paying the cost of any replacement of buildings, lines, equipment and other related facilities, to the 
extent the same are not paid as part of the ordinary and normal expense of the operation of the UIA Network. 

Funds shall be deposited monthly from available Revenues in such amounts as may be required from time to 
time by each Supplemental Indenture until the Repair and Replacement Fund has an amount equivalent to the Repair 
and Replacement Requirement. Any deficiencies below the Repair and Replacement Requirement shall be made up 
from Revenues of the UIA Network available for such purposes. Funds at any time on deposit in the Repair and 
Replacement Fund in excess of the amount required to be maintained therein may, at any time, be used by the Issuer 
for any lawful purpose. 

Use of Rebate Fund.   

(a) If it becomes necessary for the Issuer to comply with the rebate requirements of the Code and the 
Regulations, the Trustee shall establish and thereafter maintain, so long as the Bonds which are subject to said rebate 
requirements are Outstanding, a Rebate Fund, which shall be held separate and apart from all other funds and accounts 
established under the Indenture and from all other moneys of the Trustee. 

(b) All amounts in the Rebate Fund, including income earned from investment of the fund, shall be held 
by the Trustee free and clear of the lien of the Indenture.  In the event the amount on deposit in the Rebate Fund 
exceeds the aggregate amount of Rebatable Arbitrage for one or more Series of Bonds, as verified in writing by an 
independent public accountant or other qualified professional at the time the Rebatable Arbitrage is determined, the 
excess amount remaining after payment of the Rebatable Arbitrage to the United States shall, upon the Issuer’s written 
request accompanied by the determination report, be paid by the Trustee to the Issuer. 

(c) The Issuer shall determine the amount of Rebatable Arbitrage and the corresponding Required 
Rebate Deposit with respect to each Series of Bonds on each applicable Rebate Calculation Date and take all other 
actions necessary to comply with the rebate requirements of the Code and the Regulations.  The Issuer shall deposit 
into the Rebate Fund the Required Rebate Deposit, if any, with respect to each Series of Bonds (or instruct the Trustee 
to transfer to the Rebate Fund moneys representing such Required Rebate Deposit from the Funds and Accounts held 
under the Indenture other than the Rebate Fund) or shall otherwise make payment of the rebate to be paid to the United 
States at the times required by the Code and the Regulations.  If applicable, the Issuer shall instruct in writing the 
Trustee to withdraw from the Rebate Fund and pay any rebate over to the United States.  The determination of 
Rebatable Arbitrage made with respect to each such payment date and with respect to any withdrawal and payment to 
the Issuer from the Rebate Fund pursuant to the Indenture must be verified in writing by an independent public 
accountant or other qualified professional.  The Trustee may rely conclusively upon and shall be fully protected from 
all liability in relying upon the Issuer’s determinations, calculations and certifications required by the Indenture and 
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the Trustee shall have no responsibility to independently make any calculations or determination or to review the 
Issuer’s determinations, calculations and certifications required by the Indenture. 

(d) The Trustee shall, at least 60 days prior to each Rebate Calculation Date, notify the Issuer of the 
requirements of the Indenture.  By agreeing to give this notice, the Trustee assumes no responsibility whatsoever for 
compliance by the Issuer with the requirements of Section 148 of the Code or any successor.  The Issuer expressly 
agrees that (notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture) any failure of the Trustee to give any such notice, 
for any reason whatsoever, shall not cause the Trustee to be responsible for any failure of the Issuer to comply with 
the requirements of said Section 148 or any successor thereof. 

(e) The provisions of the Indenture may be amended or deleted without Bondowner consent or notice, 
upon receipt by the Issuer and the Trustee of an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that such amendment 
or deletion will not adversely affect the excludability from gross income of interest on the Bonds or the status of the 
Bonds as entitled to Direct Payments, if applicable. 

  Investment of Funds.  Unless provided otherwise by Supplemental Indenture, any moneys in the Bond Fund, 
the Construction Fund, the Reserve Instrument Fund, the Rebate Fund, the Debt Service Reserve Fund, or the Repair 
and Replacement Fund shall, at the discretion and authorization of the Issuer, be invested by the Trustee in Qualified 
Investments; provided, however, that moneys on deposit in the Bond Fund, the Debt Service Reserve Fund and the 
Reserve Instrument Fund may only be invested in Qualified Investments having a maturity date of one year or less. If 
no written authorization is given to the Trustee, moneys shall be held uninvested. Such investments shall be held by 
the Trustee, and when the Trustee determines it necessary to use the moneys in the Funds for the purposes for which 
the Funds were created, it shall liquidate at prevailing market prices as much of the investments as may be necessary 
and apply the proceeds to such purposes. All income derived from the investment of the Construction Fund, the Bond 
Fund, the Reserve Instrument Fund and the Rebate Fund shall be maintained in said respective Funds and disbursed 
along with the other moneys on deposit therein as provided in the Indenture. All income derived from the investment 
of the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be disbursed in accordance with the Indenture, except as otherwise provided 
by Supplemental Indenture. All moneys in the Revenue Fund may, at the discretion of the Issuer, be invested by the 
Issuer in Qualified Investments. 

The Trustee shall have no liability or responsibility for any loss resulting from any investment made in 
accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. The Trustee shall be entitled to assume that any investment, which 
at the time of purchase is a Qualified Investment, remains a Qualified Investment thereafter, absent receipt of written 
notice or information to the contrary. 

The Trustee may, to the extent permitted by the State Money Management Act of 1974, Title 51, Chapter 7, 
Utah Code, make any and all investments permitted by the provisions of the Indenture through its own or any of its 
affiliate’ s investment departments. 

The Issuer acknowledges that to the extent regulations of the comptroller of the currency or any other 
regulatory entity grant the Issuer the right to receive brokerage confirmations of the security transactions as they occur, 
the Issuer specifically waives receipt of such confirmations to the extent permitted by law. The Trustee will furnish 
the Issuer periodic cash transaction statements which include the detail for all investment transactions made by the 
Trustee under the Indenture. 

The Issuer may invest the amounts on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund as permitted by applicable 
law. 

Trust Funds.  All moneys and securities received by the Trustee under the provisions of the Indenture shall 
be trust funds under the terms of the Indenture and shall not be subject to lien or attachment of any creditor of the 
State or any political subdivision, body, agency, or instrumentality thereof or of the Issuer and shall not be subject to 
appropriation by any legislative body or otherwise.  Such moneys and securities shall be held in trust and applied in 
accordance with the provisions of the Indenture.  Except as provided otherwise in the Indenture, unless and until 
disbursed pursuant to the terms of the Indenture, all such moneys and securities (and the income therefrom) shall be 
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held by the Trustee as security for payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and the fees 
and expenses of the Trustee payable under the Indenture. 

Method of Valuation and Frequency of Valuation.  In computing the amount in any fund or account, Qualified 
Investments shall be valued at market, exclusive of accrued interest.  With respect to all funds and accounts, valuation 
shall occur annually, except in the event of a withdrawal from the Debt Service Reserve Fund, whereupon securities 
shall be valued immediately after such withdrawal. 

Covenants 

General Covenants.  The Issuer covenants and agrees with each and every Registered Owner of the Bonds 
issued under the Indenture, Security Instrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument Provider as follows: 

(a) While any of the principal of and interest on the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, or any 
Repayment Obligations are outstanding, any resolution or other enactment of the Governing Body of the Issuer, 
applying the Revenues for the payment of the Bonds and the Repayment Obligations shall be irrevocable until the 
Bonds and/or any Repayment Obligations have been paid in full as to both principal and interest, and is not subject to 
amendment in any manner which would impair the rights of the holders of those Bonds or the Repayment Obligations 
which would in any way jeopardize the timely payment of principal or interest when due. Furthermore, the Revenues, 
for all services of the UIA Network including to the Members under the Service Contract and to all end users within 
the boundaries of said Members, shall be sufficient to pay the Operation and Maintenance Expenses, and to provide 
moneys for each Bond Fund Year sufficient to meet the Issuer’s payment obligations under the Indenture. The Issuer 
agrees that should its annual financial statement made in accordance with the provisions the Indenture disclose that 
during the period covered by such financial statement the Revenues were not at least equal to the above requirement, 
the Issuer may modify its rates, fees and charges. 

(b) The Issuer will maintain the UIA Network in good condition and operate the same in an efficient 
manner. 

(c) Each Registered Owner, Security Instrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument Provider shall have a 
right, in addition to all other rights afforded it by the laws of the State, to apply to and obtain from any court of 
competent jurisdiction such decree or order as may be necessary to require the Issuer to charge or collect reasonable 
rates for services supplied by the UIA Network sufficient to meet all requirements of the Indenture and of any 
applicable Reserve Instrument Agreement. 

(d) So long as any principal and interest payments of the Bonds are Outstanding, or any Repayment 
Obligations are outstanding, proper books of record and account will be kept by the Issuer separate and apart from all 
other records and accounts, showing complete and correct entries of all transactions relating to the UIA Network. Each 
Registered Owner, Security Instrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument Provider, or any duly authorized agent or agents 
thereof shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect all records, accounts and data relating thereto and to 
inspect the UIA Network. Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, the Issuer further agrees that it will within 
two hundred and ten (210) days following the close of each Bond Fund Year cause an audit of such books and accounts 
to be made by an independent firm of certified public accountants, showing the receipts and disbursements for account 
of the Revenues and the UIA Network, and that such audit will be available for inspection by each Registered Owner, 
Security Instrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument Provider. 

All expenses incurred in compiling the information required by the Indenture shall be regarded and paid as 
an Operation and Maintenance Expense 

First Lien of Bonds; Equality of Liens.  The Bonds and any Security Instrument Repayment Obligations 
constitute an irrevocable lien upon the Net Revenues. The Issuer covenants that the Bonds and Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligations hereafter authorized to be issued and from time to time outstanding are equitably and ratably 
secured by a lien on the Net Revenues and shall not be entitled to any priority one over the other in the application of 
the Net Revenues regardless of the time or times of the issuance of the Bonds or delivery of Security Instruments, it 
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being the intention of the Issuer that there shall be no priority among the Bonds or the Security Instrument Repayment 
Obligations regardless of the fact that they may be actually issued and/or delivered at different times. 

Any assignment or pledge from the Issuer to a Reserve Instrument Provider of (a) proceeds of the issuance 
and sale of Bonds, (b) Net Revenues, or (c) Funds established hereby, including investments, if any, thereof, is and 
shall be subordinate to the assignment and pledge effected hereby to the Registered Owners of the Bonds and to the 
Security Instrument Issuers. 

Payment of Principal and Interest.   The Issuer covenants that it will punctually pay or cause to be paid the 
Principal of and interest on every Bond issued under the Indenture, any Security Instrument Repayment Obligations 
and any Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations, in strict conformity with the terms of the Bonds, the Indenture, 
any Security Instrument Agreement and any Reserve Instrument Agreement, according to the true intent and meaning 
hereof and thereof. The Principal of and interest on the Bonds, any Security Instrument Repayment Obligations and 
any Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations are payable solely from the Net Revenues (except to the extent paid 
out of moneys attributable to Bond proceeds or other funds created under the Indenture or the income from the 
temporary investment thereof), which Net Revenues are hereby specifically pledged and assigned to the payment 
thereof in the manner and to the extent specified in the Indenture, and nothing in the Bonds, the Indenture, any Security 
Instrument Agreement or any Reserve Instrument Agreement should be considered as pledging any other funds or 
assets of the Issuer for the payment thereof. 

Performance of Covenants; Issuer.  The Issuer covenants that it will faithfully perform at all times any and 
all covenants, undertakings, stipulations and provisions contained in the Indenture, and in any and every Bond, 
Security Instrument Agreement and Reserve Instrument Agreement.  The Issuer represents that it is duly authorized 
under the Constitution of the State to issue the Bonds authorized hereby and to execute the Indenture, that all actions 
on its part for the issuance of the Bonds and the execution and delivery of the Indenture have been duly and effectively 
taken, and that the Bonds in the hands of the Registered Owners thereof are and will be valid and enforceable 
obligations of the Issuer according to the import thereof. 

List of Bondholders.  The Trustee will keep on file at its Corporate Trust Office a list of the names and 
addresses of the Registered Owners of all Bonds which are from time to time registered on the registration books in 
the hands of the Trustee as Registrar for the Bonds.  At reasonable times and under reasonable regulations established 
by the Trustee, said list may be inspected and copied by the Issuer or by the Registered Owners (or a designated 
representative thereof) of 10% or more in Principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding, such ownership and the 
authority of any such designated representative to be evidenced to the satisfaction of the Trustee. 

Management of Assets.  The Issuer, in order to assure the efficient management and operation of its assets 
and to assure each Registered Owner, Security Instrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument Provider from time to time 
that the Issuer’s assets will be operated on sound business principles, will employ competent and experienced 
management for said assets, will use its best efforts to see that said assets are at all times operated and maintained in 
first-class repair and condition and in such manner that the operating efficiency thereof shall be of the highest 
character. 

Use of Legally Available Moneys.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Indenture, nothing in the 
Indenture shall be construed to prevent the Issuer from (a) paying all or any part of the Operation and Maintenance 
Expenses from any funds available to the Issuer for such purpose, (b) depositing any funds available to the Issuer for 
such purpose in any account in the Bond Fund for the payment of the interest on, premium, if any, or the principal of 
any Bonds issued under provisions of the Indenture or for the redemption of any such Bonds, or  (c) depositing any 
funds available to the Issuer for such purpose in the Reserve Instrument Fund for the payment of any amounts payable 
under any applicable Reserve Instrument Agreement. 

Payment of Taxes and Other Charges. The Issuer covenants that all taxes and assessments or other municipal 
or governmental charges lawfully levied or assessed upon the UIA Network or upon any part thereof or upon any 
income therefrom will be paid when the same shall become due, that no lien or charge upon the UIA Network or any 
part thereof or upon any Revenues thereof, except for the lien and charge thereon created under the Indenture and 
securing the Bonds, will be created or permitted to be created ranking equally with or prior to the Bonds (except for 
the parity lien thereon of Additional Bonds issued from time to time under the Indenture and under Supplemental 
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Indentures to the Indenture), and that all lawful claims and demands for labor, materials, supplies or other objects 
which, if unpaid, might by law become a lien upon the UIA Network or any part thereof or upon the Revenues thereof 
will be paid or discharged, or adequate provision will be made for the payment or discharge of such claims and 
demands within 60 days after the same shall accrue; provided, however, that nothing in the Indenture shall require any 
such lien or charge to be paid or discharged or provision made therefor so long as the validity of such lien or charge 
shall be contested in good faith and by appropriate legal proceeding . 

Insurance.  The Issuer, in its operation of the System, will self-insure or carry insurance, including, but not 
limited to, workmen’s compensation insurance and public liability insurance, in such amounts and to such extent as 
is normally carried by others operating public utilities of the same type.  The cost of such insurance shall be considered 
an Operation and Maintenance Expense of the System.  In the event of loss or damage, insurance proceeds shall be 
used first for the purpose of restoring or replacing the property lost or damaged.  Any remainder shall be paid into the 
Bond Fund. 

Covenant Not to Sell.  The Issuer will not sell, lease, mortgage, encumber, or in any manner dispose of the 
UIA Network or any substantial part thereof, including any and all extensions and additions that may be made thereto, 
until all principal of and interest on the Bonds, and all Repayment Obligations, have been paid in full, except as 
follows: 

(a) The Issuer may sell any portion of said property (i) which shall have been replaced by other property 
of at least equal value, (ii) which shall cease to be necessary for the efficient operation of the UIA Network and the 
disposition of which will not, as determined by the governing body of the Issuer, result in a material reduction in 
Revenues in any year; or (iii) the value, as determined by the governing body of the Issuer, of the property to be sold, 
leased, abandoned, mortgaged, or otherwise disposed of (together with any other property similarly disposed of within 
the 12 calendar months preceding the proposed disposition) does not exceed five percent (5%) of the value of the UIA 
Network assets, as determined by the governing body of the Issuer, provided, however, that in the event of any sale 
as aforesaid, the proceeds of such sale not needed to acquire other UIA Network property shall be paid into the Bond 
Fund. 

(b) The Issuer may lease or make contracts or grant licenses for the operation of, or make arrangements 
for the use of, or grant easements or other rights with respect to, any part of the UIA Network, provided that any such 
lease, contract, license, arrangement, easement or right does not impede the operation of the UIA Network; and any 
payment received by the Issuer under or in connection with any such lease, contract, license, arrangement, easement 
or right in respect of the UIA Network or any part thereof shall constitute Revenues. 

Default Provisions 

Events of Default.  Each of the following events is declared an “Event of Default”: 

(a) if payment of any installment of interest on any of the Bonds shall not be made by or on behalf of 
the Issuer when the same shall become due and payable, or 

(b) if payment of the principal or Sinking Fund Installment or the redemption premium, if any, on any 
of the Bonds shall not be made by or on behalf of the Issuer when the same shall become due and payable, either at 
maturity or by proceedings for redemption in advance of maturity or through failure to fulfill any payment to any fund 
under the Indenture or otherwise; or 

(c) if the Issuer shall for any reason be rendered incapable of fulfilling its obligations under the 
Indenture; or 

(d) if an order or decree shall be entered, with the consent or acquiescence of the Issuer, appointing a 
receiver or custodian for any of the Revenues of the Issuer, or approving a petition filed against the Issuer seeking 
reorganization of the Issuer under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other similar law or statute of the United States 
of America or any state thereof, or if any such order or decree, having been entered without the consent or acquiescence 
of the Issuer shall not be vacated or discharged or stayed on appeal within 30 days after the entry thereof; or 
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(e) if any proceeding shall be instituted, with the consent or acquiescence of the Issuer, for the purpose 
of effecting a composition between the Issuer and its creditors or for the purpose of adjusting the claims of such 
creditors pursuant to any federal or state statute now or hereafter enacted, if the claims of such creditors are or may be 
under any circumstances payable from Revenues; or 

(f)  if (i) the Issuer is adjudged insolvent by a court of competent jurisdiction, or (ii) an order, judgment 
or decree be entered by any court of competent jurisdiction appointing, without the consent of the Issuer, a receiver, 
trustee or custodian of the Issuer or of the whole or any part of the Issuer’s property and any of the aforesaid 
adjudications, orders, judgments or decrees shall not be vacated or set aside or stayed within 60 days from the date of 
entry thereof; or 

(g) if the Issuer shall file a petition or answer seeking reorganization, relief or any arrangement under 
the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law or statute of the United States of America or any state thereof; 
or  

(h) if, under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors, any court of competent 
jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Issuer or of the whole or any substantial part of the property of the 
Issuer, and such custody or control shall not be terminated within 30 days from the date of assumption of such custody 
or control; or 

(i) if the Issuer shall default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the covenants, 
conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds, or in the Indenture  or any Supplemental Indenture on 
the part of the Issuer to be performed, other than as set forth in the Indenture, and such Default shall continue for 30 
days after written notice specifying such Event of Default and requiring the same to be remedied shall have been given 
to the Issuer by the Trustee, which may give such notice in its discretion and shall give such notice at the written 
request of the Registered Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate Principal amount of the 
Bonds then Outstanding under the Indenture; or 

(j)  any event specified in a Supplemental Indenture as constituting an Event of Default 

Remedies; Rights of Registered Owners.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Trustee, upon 
being indemnified pursuant to the Indenture, may pursue any available remedy by suit at law or in equity to enforce 
the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds then Outstanding or to enforce any 
obligations of the Issuer under the Indenture; provided however, that nothing in the Indenture shall be construed to 
grant to the Bondholder, the Trustee, any Security Instrument Issuer or any Reserve Instrument Issuer, any right of 
acceleration of the payment of the Principal of or interest or premium on the Bonds. 

If an Event of Default shall have occurred, and if requested so to do by (a) Registered Owners of not less 
than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate Principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, (b) Security Instrument 
Issuers at that time providing Security Instruments which are in full force and effect and not in default on any payment 
obligation and which secure not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the 
time Outstanding, or (c) any combination of Registered Owners and Security Instrument Issuers described in (a) and 
(b) above representing not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time 
Outstanding, and indemnified as provided in the Indenture, the Trustee shall be obligated to exercise such one or more 
of the rights and powers conferred by the Indenture as the Trustee, being advised by counsel, shall deem most 
expedient in the interest of the Registered Owners and the Security Instrument Issuers. 

No remedy by the terms of the Indenture conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee (or to the Registered 
Owners or to the Security Instrument Issuers) is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each and every such 
remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to any other remedy given to the Trustee, the Registered Owners 
or the Security Instrument Issuers or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. 

No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any Event of Default shall impair any 
such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any Event of Default or acquiescence therein; and every 
such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. 
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No waiver of any Event of Default under the Indenture, whether by the Trustee or by the Registered Owners 
or the Security Instrument Issuers, shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent Event of Default or shall impair any 
rights or remedies consequent thereon 

Right of Registered Owners to Direct Proceedings.  Anything in the Indenture to the contrary 
notwithstanding, unless a Supplemental Indenture provides otherwise, either (i) the Registered Owners of a majority 
in aggregate Principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, (ii) the Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing 
Security Instruments which are in full force and effect and not in default on any payment obligation and which secure 
not less than 50% in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding, or (iii) any combination of 
Registered Owners and Security Instrument Issuers described in (i) and (ii) above representing not less than 50% in 
aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding, shall have the right, at any time, by an instrument or 
instruments in writing executed and delivered to the Trustee, to direct the time, method and place of conducting all 
proceedings to be taken in connection with the enforcement of the terms and conditions of the Indenture, or for the 
appointment of a receiver or any other proceedings under the Indenture; provided, that such direction shall not be 
otherwise than in accordance with the provisions of law and of the Indenture. 

Application of Moneys.  All moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to any right given or action taken under 
the provisions of the Indenture shall, after payment of Trustee’s fees and expenses including the fees and expenses of 
its counsel for the proceedings resulting in the collection of such moneys and of the expenses and liabilities and 
advances incurred or made by the Trustee and any other outstanding fees and expenses of the Trustee relating to its 
duties under the Indenture, be deposited in the Bond Fund and all moneys so deposited in the Bond Fund shall be 
applied in the following order: 

(a) To the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest then due and payable on the Bonds 
and the Security Instrument Repayment Obligations as follows: 

(i) Unless the Principal of all the Bonds shall have become due and payable, all such moneys 
shall be applied: 

FIRST—To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest then 
due on the Bonds and the interest component of any Security Instrument Repayment Obligations 
then due, in the order of the maturity of the installments of such interest and, if the amount available 
shall not be sufficient to pay in full any particular installment, then to the payment ratably, according 
to the amounts due on such installment, to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination 
or privilege; and 

SECOND—To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid Principal of and 
premium, if any, on the Bonds which shall have become due (other than Bonds called for redemption 
for the payment of which moneys are held pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture), in the order 
of their due dates, and the Principal component of any Security Instrument Repayment Obligations 
then due, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full all the Bonds and the 
Principal component of any Security Instrument Repayment Obligations due on any particular date, 
then to the payment ratably, according to the amount of Principal due on such date, to the persons 
entitled thereto without any discrimination or privilege. 

(ii) If the principal of all the Bonds shall have become due and payable, all such moneys shall 
be applied to the payment of the Principal and interest then due and unpaid upon the Bonds and Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligations, without preference or priority of Principal over interest or of interest 
over Principal, or of any installment of interest over any other installment of interest, or of any Bond or 
Security Instrument Repayment Obligation over any other Bond or Security Instrument Repayment 
Obligation, ratably, according to the amounts due respectively for Principal and interest, to the persons 
entitled thereto without any discrimination or privilege. 

(iii) To the payment of all obligations owed to all Reserve Instrument Providers, ratably, 
according to the amounts due without any discrimination or preference under any applicable agreement 
related to any Reserve Instrument Agreement. 
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Whenever moneys are to be applied pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture, such moneys shall be applied 
at such times, and from time to time, as the Trustee shall determine, having due regard to the amounts of such moneys 
available for such application and the likelihood of additional moneys becoming available for such application in the 
future.  Whenever the Trustee shall apply such funds, it shall fix the date upon which such application is to be made 
and upon such date interest on the amounts of principal paid on such dates shall cease to accrue. 

Remedies Vested in Trustee.  All rights of action (including the right to file proof of claims) under the 
Indenture or under any of the Bonds may be enforced by the Trustee without the possession of any of the Bonds or 
the production thereof in any trial or other proceedings related thereto and any such suit or proceedings instituted by 
the Trustee shall be brought in its name as Trustee without the necessity of joining as plaintiffs or defendants any 
Registered Owners of the Bonds, and any recovery of judgment shall be for the equal benefit of the Registered Owners 
of the Outstanding Bonds. 

Rights and Remedies of Registered Owners.  Except as provided in the Indenture, no Registered Owner of 
any Bond or Security Instrument Issuer shall have any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding in equity or at 
law for the enforcement of the Indenture or for the execution of any trust thereof or for the appointment of a receiver 
or any other remedy under the Indenture, unless an Event of Default has occurred of which the Trustee has been 
notified as provided in the Indenture, or of which by the Indenture it is deemed to have notice, nor unless also 
Registered Owners of 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or Security Instrument Issuers 
at the time providing Security Instruments which are in full force and effect and are not in default on any payment 
obligation and which secure not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding shall 
have made written request to the Trustee and shall have offered reasonable opportunity either to proceed to exercise 
the powers granted in the Indenture or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name, nor unless also they 
have offered to the Trustee indemnity as provided in the Indenture nor unless the Trustee shall thereafter fail or refuse 
to exercise the powers granted in the Indenture, or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name or names.  
Such notification, request and offer of indemnity are hereby declared in every case at the option of the Trustee to be 
conditions precedent to the execution of the powers and trust of the Indenture, and to any action or cause of action for 
the enforcement of the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or for any other remedy under the Indenture; it 
being understood and intended that no one or more Registered Owner of the Bonds or Security Instrument Issuer shall 
have any right in any manner whatsoever to affect, disturb or prejudice the lien of the Indenture by its action or to 
enforce any right under the Indenture except in the manner provided in the Indenture, and that all proceedings at law 
or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner provided in the Indenture and for the equal benefit 
of the Registered Owners of all Bonds then Outstanding and all Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing 
Security Instruments.  Nothing contained in the Indenture shall, however, affect or impair the right of any Registered 
Owner or Security Instrument Issuer to enforce the covenants of the Issuer to pay the principal of, premium, if any, 
and interest on each of the Bonds issued under the Indenture held by such Registered Owner and Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligations at the time, place, from the source and in the manner in said Bonds or Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligations expressed. 

Termination of Proceedings.  In case the Trustee, any Registered Owner or any Security Instrument Issuer 
shall have proceeded to enforce any right under the Indenture by the appointment of a receiver, or otherwise, and such 
proceedings shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been determined adversely to 
the Trustee, the Registered Owner, or Security Instrument Issuer, then and in every such case the Issuer and the Trustee 
shall be restored to their former positions and rights under the Indenture, and all rights, remedies and powers of the 
Trustee shall continue as if no such proceedings had been taken. 

Waivers of Events of Default.  Subject to the Indenture, the Trustee may in its discretion, and with the prior 
written consent of all Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security Instruments, waive any Event of 
Default under the Indenture and its consequences and shall do so upon the written request of the Registered Owners 
of (a) a majority in aggregate Principal amount of all the Bonds then Outstanding or Security Instrument Issuers at the 
time providing Security Instruments which are in full force and effect and are not in default on any payment obligation 
and which secure not less than 50% in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding in respect of 
which an Event of Default in the payment of principal and interest exist, or (b) a majority in aggregate principal 
amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security Instruments which 
are in full force and effect and are not in default on any payment obligation and which secure not less than 50% in 
aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding in the case of any other Event of Default; provided, 
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however, that there shall not be waived (i) any default in the payment of the principal of any Bonds at the date that a 
Principal Installment is due, or (ii) any default in the payment when due of the interest on any such Bonds, unless 
prior to such waiver or rescission, all arrears of interest, with interest (to the extent permitted by law) at the rate borne 
by the Bonds in respect of which such Event of Default shall have occurred on overdue installments of interest and all 
arrears of payments of principal and premium, if any, when due and all expenses of the Trustee, in connection with 
such Event of Default shall have been paid or provided for, and in case of any such waiver or rescission, or in case 
any proceeding taken by the Trustee on account of any such Event of Default shall have been discontinued or 
abandoned or determined adversely, then and in every such case the Issuer, the Trustee, the Registered Owners and 
the Security Instrument Issuers shall be restored to their former positions and rights under the Indenture, respectively, 
but no such waiver or rescission shall extend to any subsequent or other Event of Default, or impair any right 
consequent thereon. 

Cooperation of Issuer.  In the case of any Event of Default under the Indenture, the Issuer shall cooperate 
with the Trustee and use its best efforts to protect the Registered Owners, Reserve Instrument Providers and the 
Security Instrument Issuers. 

Trustee Provisions 

Acceptance of the Trusts.  The Trustee accepts the trusts imposed upon it under the Indenture, and agrees to 
perform said trusts as a corporate trustee ordinarily would perform said trusts under a corporate indenture, but no 
implied covenants or obligations shall be read into the Indenture against the Trustee. 

(a) The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers thereof and perform any of its duties by or 
through attorneys, agents, receivers, or employees and the Trustee shall not be responsible for any misconduct or 
negligence on the part of any agent or attorney appointed with due care and shall be entitled to advice of counsel 
concerning all matters of trusts hereof and the duties under the Indenture, and may in all cases pay such reasonable 
compensation to all such attorneys, agents, receivers and employees as may reasonably be employed in connection 
with the trusts under the Indenture. The Trustee may act upon the opinion or advice of counsel. The Trustee shall not 
be responsible for any loss or damage resulting from any action or non-action in good faith in reliance upon such 
opinion or advice. 

(b) The Trustee shall not be responsible for any recital under the Indenture, or in the Bonds (except in 
respect to the certificate of the Trustee endorsed on the Bonds), or collecting any insurance moneys, or for the validity 
of the execution by the Issuer of the Indenture or of any supplements thereto or instruments of further assurance, or 
for the sufficiency of the security for the Bonds issued under the Indenture or intended to be secured hereby; and the 
Trustee shall not be bound to ascertain or inquire as to the performance or observance of any covenants, conditions or 
agreements on the part of the Issuer; but the Trustee may require of the Issuer full information and advice as to the 
performance of the covenants, conditions and agreements aforesaid and as to the condition of the property conveyed 
by the Indenture.  The Trustee shall not be responsible or liable for any loss suffered in connection with any investment 
of funds made by it in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. The Trustee shall have no responsibility with 
respect to any information, statement, or recital in any offering memorandum or other disclosure material prepared or 
distributed with respect to the Bonds. 

(c) The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use of any Bonds authenticated or delivered under the 
Indenture, except as specifically set forth in the Indenture. The Trustee may become the owner of Bonds secured 
hereby with the same rights which it would have if not Trustee. 

(d) The Trustee shall be protected in acting upon any notice, request, consent, certificate, order, 
affidavit, letter, telegram or other paper or document believed to be genuine and correct and to have been signed or 
sent by the proper person or persons. Any action taken by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture upon the request or 
authority or consent of any person who at the time of making such request or giving such authority or consent is the 
Registered Owner of any Bond, shall be conclusive and binding upon all future Owners of the same Bond and upon 
Bonds issued in exchange therefor or in place thereof. 

(e) As to the existence or nonexistence of any fact or as to the sufficiency or validity of any instrument, 
paper or proceeding, the Trustee shall be entitled to rely upon a certificate signed on behalf of the Issuer by an 
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Authorized Representative as sufficient evidence of the facts therein contained and prior to the occurrence of an Event 
of Default of which the Trustee has been notified as provided in the Indenture, or of which by said Paragraph it is 
deemed to have notice, shall also be at liberty to accept a similar certificate to the effect that any particular dealing, 
transaction or action is necessary or expedient, but may at its discretion secure such further evidence deemed necessary 
or advisable, but shall in no case be bound to secure the same. The Trustee may accept a certificate of an Authorized 
Representative of the Issuer under its seal to the effect that a resolution in the form therein set forth has been adopted 
by the Issuer as conclusive evidence that such resolution has been duly adopted, and is in full force and effect. 

(f) The permissive right of the Trustee to do things enumerated in the Indenture shall not be construed 
as a duty and the Trustee shall not be answerable for other than its negligence or willful misconduct. 

(g) The Trustee shall not be required to take notice or be deemed to have notice of any Event of Default 
under the Indenture, except an Event of Default described in the Indenture, unless the Trustee shall be specifically 
notified in writing of such Default by the Issuer, a Security Instrument Issuer or by the Registered Owners of at least 
twenty-five percent (25%) in the aggregate principal amount of any Series of the Bonds then Outstanding and all 
notices or other instruments required hereby to be delivered to the Trustee must, in order to be effective, be delivered 
at the Principal Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, and in the absence of such notice so delivered, the Trustee may 
conclusively assume there is no Event of Default except as aforesaid. 

(h) At any and all reasonable times and upon reasonable prior written notice, the Trustee, and its duly 
authorized agents, attorneys, experts, engineers, accountants and representatives, shall have the right fully to inspect 
all books, papers and records of the Issuer pertaining to the Bonds, and to take such memoranda from and in regard 
thereto as may be desired. 

(i) The Trustee shall not be required to give any bond or surety in respect of the execution of the said 
trusts and powers or otherwise in respect of the premises. 

(j) Notwithstanding anything elsewhere contained in the Indenture, the Trustee shall have the right, but 
shall not be required, to demand, in respect of the authentication of any Bonds, the withdrawal of any cash, the release 
of any property, or any action whatsoever within the purview hereof, any showing, certificates, opinions, appraisals, 
or other information, or corporate action or evidence thereof, in addition to that by the terms hereof required as a 
condition of such action by the Trustee, deemed desirable for the authentication of any Bonds, the withdrawal of any 
cash, or the taking of any other action by the Trustee. 

(k) All moneys received by the Trustee or any Paying Agent shall, until used or applied or invested as 
provided in the Indenture, be held in trust for the purposes for which they were received but need not be segregated 
from other funds except to the extent required by law. Neither the Trustee nor any Paying Agent shall be under any 
liability for interest on any moneys received under the Indenture except such as may be agreed upon. 

(l) If any Event of Default under the Indenture shall have occurred and be continuing, the Trustee shall 
exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it hereby and shall use the same degree of care as a prudent man 
would exercise or use in the circumstances in the conduct of his own affairs. 

(m) The Trustee shall be under no obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers vested in it by the 
Indenture at the request, order or direction of any of the Registered Owners, Security Instrument Issuers or Reserve 
Instrument Providers, pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture, unless such Registered Owners, Security Instrument 
Issuers or Reserve Instrument Providers shall have offered to the Trustee security or indemnity satisfactory to it against 
the costs, expenses and liabilities which may be incurred therein or thereby. 

(n) The Trustee shall not be required to expend, advance, or risk its own funds or incur any financial 
liability in the performance of its duties or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers if it shall have reasonable 
grounds for believing that repayment of such funds or satisfactory indemnity against such risk or liability is not assured 
to it. 
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Fees, Charges and Expenses of Trustee.  The Trustee shall be entitled to payment and/or reimbursement for 
reasonable fees for its services rendered as Trustee under the Indenture and all advances, counsel fees and other 
expenses reasonably and necessarily made or incurred by the Trustee in connection with such services.  The Trustee 
shall be entitled to payment and reimbursement for the reasonable fees and charges of the Trustee as Paying Agent 
and Registrar for the Bonds as provided in the Indenture.  Upon an Event of Default, but only upon an Event of 
Default, the Trustee shall have a right of payment prior to payment on account of interest or principal of, or premium, 
if any, on any Bond for the foregoing advances, fees, costs and expenses incurred.  The Trustee’s rights under the 
Indenture will not terminate upon its resignation or removal or upon payment of the Bonds and discharge of the 
Indenture. 

Notice to Registered Owners if Event of Default Occurs.  If an Event of Default occurs of which the Trustee 
is by the Indenture required to take notice or if notice of an Event of Default be given to the Trustee as in said Section 
provided, then the Trustee shall give written notice thereof by registered or certified mail to all Security Instrument 
Issuers or to Registered Owners of all Bonds then Outstanding shown on the registration books of the Bonds kept by 
the Trustee as Registrar for the Bonds. 

Intervention by Trustee.  In any judicial proceeding to which the Issuer is a party and which in the opinion 
of the Trustee and its counsel has a substantial bearing on the interest of Registered Owners of the Bonds, the Trustee 
may intervene on behalf of such Owners and shall do so if requested in writing by the Registered Owners of at least 
twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding. The rights and obligations 
of the Trustee under the Indenture are subject to the approval of a court of competent jurisdiction. 

Successor Trustee.  Any corporation or association into which the Trustee may be converted or merged, or 
with which it may be consolidated, or to which it may sell or transfer its corporate trust business and assets as a whole 
or substantially as a whole, or any corporation or association resulting from any such conversion, sale, merger, 
consolidation or transfer to which it is a party, ipso facto, shall be and become successor Trustee under the Indenture 
and vested with all of the title to the whole property or trust estate and all the trusts, powers, discretions, immunities, 
privileges and all other matters as was its predecessor, without the execution or filing of any instrument or any further 
act, deed of conveyance on the part of any of the parties to the Indenture, anything in the Indenture to the contrary 
notwithstanding. 

Resignation by the Trustee.  The Trustee and any successor Trustee may at any time resign from the trusts 
created in the Indenture by giving written notice to the Issuer, served personally or by registered or certified mail, and 
by registered or certified mail to each Reserve Instrument Issuer, Security Instrument Issuer and Registered Owner of 
Bonds then Outstanding, and such resignation shall take effect upon the appointment of and acceptance by a successor 
Trustee appointed in the manner set forth in the Indenture; provided, however that if no successor Trustee has been 
appointed within sixty (60) days of the date of such notice of resignation, the resigning Trustee may petition any court 
of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor Trustee, and such court may thereupon, after such notice, 
if any, as it deems proper and prescribes, appoint a successor Trustee. 

Removal of the Trustee.  The Trustee may be removed at any time, by an instrument or concurrent instruments 
(a) in writing delivered to the Trustee, and signed by the Issuer, unless there exists any Event of Default, or (b) in 
writing delivered to the Trustee and the Issuer, and signed by the Registered Owners of a majority in aggregate 
Principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding if an Event of Default exists; provided that such instrument or instruments 
concurrently appoint a successor Trustee meeting the qualifications set forth in the Indenture. No removal of a Trustee 
shall become effective under the Indenture unless and until a successor Trustee has been appointed; provided, however 
that if no successor Trustee has been appointed within 60 days of the date of such notice of resignation, the resigning 
Trustee may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor Trustee, and such court 
may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it deems proper and prescribes, appoint a successor Trustee. 

Appointment of Successor Trustee; Temporary Trustee. In case the Trustee under the Indenture shall resign 
or be removed, or be dissolved, or shall be in course of dissolution or liquidation, or otherwise become incapable of 
acting under the Indenture, or in case it shall be taken under the control of any public officer or officers, or of a receiver 
appointed by a court, a successor may be appointed by the Issuer (or, if an Event of Default exists, by the Registered 
Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding, by an instrument or concurrent 
instruments in writing signed by such Owners, or by their attorneys in fact, duly authorized; provided, nevertheless, 
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that in case of such vacancy the Issuer by an instrument executed by an Authorized Representative under its seal, may 
appoint a temporary Trustee to fill such vacancy until a successor Trustee shall be appointed by the Registered Owners 
in the manner above provided; and any such temporary Trustee so appointed by the Issuer shall immediately and 
without further act be superseded by the Trustee so appointed by such Registered Owners).  Every successor Trustee 
appointed pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture or otherwise shall be a trust company or bank in good standing 
having a reported capital and surplus of not less than $50,000,000. 

Each Reserve Instrument Provider and Security Instrument Issuer shall be notified immediately upon the 
resignation or termination of the Trustee and provided with a list of candidates for the office of successor Trustee. 

Concerning Any Successor Trustee.  Every successor Trustee appointed under the Indenture shall execute, 
acknowledge and deliver to its predecessor and also to the Issuer an instrument in writing accepting such appointment 
under the Indenture, and thereupon such successor, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall become fully 
vested with all the estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of its predecessor; but such 
predecessor shall, nevertheless, on the written request of the Issuer, or of the successor Trustee, execute and deliver 
an instrument transferring to such successor Trustee all the estates, properties, rights, powers and trusts of such 
predecessor under the Indenture; and every predecessor Trustee shall deliver all securities and moneys held by it as 
Trustee under the Indenture to its successor. Should any instrument in writing from the Issuer be required by any 
successor Trustee for more fully and certainly vesting in such successor the estates, rights, powers and duties hereby 
vested or intended to be vested in the predecessor, any and all such instruments in writing shall, on request, be 
executed, acknowledged and delivered by the Issuer. The resignation of any Trustee and the instrument or instruments 
removing any Trustee and appointing a successor under the Indenture, together with all other instruments provided 
for in Article VIII of the Indenture shall be filed or recorded by the successor Trustee in each recording office, if any, 
where the Indenture shall have been filed and/or recorded. 

Trustee Protected in Relying Upon Indenture, Etc.  The indentures, opinions, certificates and other 
instruments provided for in the Indenture may be accepted by the Trustee as conclusive evidence of the facts and 
conclusions stated in the Indenture and shall be full warrant, protection, and authority to the Trustee for the release of 
property and the withdrawal of cash under the Indenture. 

Successor Trustee as Trustee, Paying Agent and Bond Registrar. In the event of a change in the office of 
Trustee, the predecessor Trustee which has resigned or been removed shall cease to be Trustee under the Indenture 
and Registrar for the Bonds and Paying Agent for principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, and the 
successor Trustee shall become such Trustee, Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bonds. 

Trust Estate May Be Vested in Separate or Co-Trustee.  It is the purpose of the Indenture that there shall be 
no violation of any law of any jurisdiction (including particularly the laws of the State) denying or restricting the right 
of banking corporations or associations to transact business as Trustee in such jurisdiction. It is recognized that in case 
of litigation under the Indenture, and in particular in case of the enforcement of remedies on Event of Default, or in 
case the Trustee deems that by reason of any present or future law of any jurisdiction it may not exercise any of the 
powers, rights, or remedies granted under the Indenture to the Trustee or hold title to the trust estate, as granted in the 
Indenture, or take any other action which may be desirable or necessary in connection therewith, it may be necessary 
that the Trustee appoint an additional individual or institution as a separate or co-trustee. The following provisions of 
the Indenture are adapted to these ends. 

In the event that the Trustee appoints an additional individual or institution as a separate or co-trustee, each 
and every remedy, power, right, claim, demand, cause of action, immunity, estate, title, interest and lien expressed or 
intended hereby to be exercised by or vested in or conveyed to the Trustee with respect thereto shall be exercisable by 
and vested in such separate or co-trustee, but only to the extent necessary to enable the separate or co-trustee to exercise 
such powers, rights and remedies, and every covenant and obligation necessary to the exercise thereof by such separate 
or co- trustee shall run to and be enforceable by either of them. 

Should any deed, conveyance or instrument in writing from the Issuer be required by the separate trustee or 
co-trustee so appointed by the Trustee for more fully and certainly vesting in and confirming to it such properties, 
rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations, any and all such deeds, conveyances and instruments in writing shall, on 
request of such trustee or co-trustee, be executed, acknowledged and delivered by the Issuer. In case any separate 
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trustee or co-trustee, or a successor to either, shall die, become incapable of acting, resign or be removed, all the 
estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of such separate trustee or co-trustee, so far as 
permitted by law, shall vest in and be exercised by the Trustee until the appointment of a new trustee or successor to 
such separate trustee or co-trustee. 

Annual Accounting.  The Trustee shall prepare an annual accounting for each Bond Fund Year by the end of 
the month following each such Bond Fund Year showing in reasonable detail all financial transactions relating to the 
funds and accounts held by the Trustee under the Indenture during the accounting period and the balance in any funds 
or accounts created by the Indenture as of the beginning and close of such accounting period, and shall mail the same 
to the Issuer, and to each Reserve Instrument Provider requesting the same. The Trustee shall also make available for 
inspection by any Registered Owner a copy of said annual accounting (with the names and addresses of Registered 
Owners receiving payment of debt service on the Bonds deleted therefrom) and shall mail the same if requested in 
writing to do so by Registered Owners of at least twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of Bonds 
then Outstanding to the designee of said Owners specified in said written request at the address therein designated. 
On or before the end of the month following each Bond Fund Year, the Trustee shall, upon written request, provide 
to the Issuer and the Issuer’s independent auditor representations as to the accuracy of the facts contained in the 
financial reports concerning the transactions described in the Indenture that were delivered by the Trustee during the 
Bond Fund Year just ended. 

Indemnification.  To the extent permitted by law and subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Issuer 
shall indemnify and save Trustee harmless against any liabilities it may incur in the exercise and performance of its 
powers and duties under the Indenture, other than those due to its own negligence or willful misconduct. 

Trustee’s Right to Own and Deal in Bonds.  The bank or trust company acting as Trustee under the Indenture, 
and its directors, officers, employees or agents, may in good faith buy, sell, own, hold and deal in any of the Bonds 
issued under the Indenture and secured by the Indenture, and may join in any action which any Bondholder may be 
entitled to take with like effect as if such bank or trust company were not the Trustee under the Indenture. 

Supplemental Indentures 

Supplemental Indentures Not Requiring Consent of Registered Owners, Security Instrument Issuers and 
Reserve Instrument Providers.The Issuer and the Trustee may, without the consent of any of the Registered Owners, 
or Reserve Instrument Providers, but with the consent of the Security Instrument Issuer and with notice to all Reserve 
Instrument Providers, enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture, as shall not be inconsistent 
with the terms and provisions of the Indenture, for any one or more of the following purposes: 

(a) To provide for the issuance of Additional Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture; 

(b) To cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in the Indenture; 

(c) To grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the Registered Owners, any Security 
Instrument Issuers and any Reserve Instrument Providers any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that 
may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the Registered Owners or any of them which shall not adversely affect 
the interests of any Reserve Instrument Providers or Security Instrument Issuers without its consent; 

(d) To subject to the Indenture additional Revenues or other revenues, properties, collateral or security; 

(e) To provide for the issuance of the Bonds pursuant to a book-entry system or as uncertificated 
registered public obligations pursuant to the provisions of the Registered Public Obligations Act, Title 15, Chapter 7 
of the Utah Code, or any successor provisions of law; 

(f) To make any change which shall not materially adversely affect (determined as if there were no 
Security Instrument in place) the rights or interests of the Owners of any Outstanding Bonds, any Security Instrument 
Issuers or any Reserve Instrument Provider, requested or approved by a Rating Agency in order to obtain or maintain 
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any rating on the Bonds or requested or approved by a Security Instrument Issuer or Reserve Instrument Provider in 
order to insure or provide other security for any Bonds;  

(g) If the Bonds affected by any change are rated by a Rating Agency, to make any change which does 
not result in a reduction of the rating applicable to any of the Bonds so affected, provided that if any of the Bonds so 
affected are secured by a Security Instrument, such change must be approved in writing by the related Security 
Instrument Issuer; 

(h) If the Bonds affected by any change are secured by a Security Instrument, to make any change 
approved in writing by the related Security Instrument Issuer, provided that if any of the Bonds so affected are rated 
by a Rating Agency, such change shall not result in a reduction of the rating applicable to any of the Bonds so affected; 

(i) Unless otherwise provided by a Supplemental Indenture authorizing a Series of Bonds, the 
designation of the facilities to constitute a Project by such Supplemental Indenture may be modified or amended if the 
Issuer delivers to the Trustee (1) a Supplemental Indenture designating the facilities to comprise the Project, (2) an 
opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such amendment will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status (if 
applicable) or validity of the Bonds and (3) a certificate of the Issuer to the effect that such amendment will not 
adversely affect the Issuer’s ability to comply with the provisions of the Indenture; and 

(j) To correct any references contained in the Indenture to provisions of the Act, the Code or other 
applicable provisions of law that have been amended so that the references in the Indenture are correct. 

Supplemental Indentures Requiring Consent of Registered Owners, Security Instrument Issuers and Reserve 
Instrument Providers; Waivers and Consents by Registered Owners. Exclusive of Supplemental Indentures covered 
by the Indenture and subject to the terms and provisions contained in the Indenture, and not otherwise, the Registered 
Owners of 66 2/3% in aggregate Principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall have the right, from time to 
time, anything contained in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, to (i) consent to and approve the execution 
by the Issuer and the Trustee of such other indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture as shall be deemed 
necessary and desirable by the Issuer for the purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescinding, in any 
particular, any of the terms or provisions contained in the Indenture or in any Supplemental Indenture, or (ii) waive 
or consent to the taking by the Issuer of any action prohibited, or the omission by the Issuer of the taking of any action 
required, by any of the provisions of the Indenture or of any indenture supplemental to the Indenture; provided, 
however, that nothing in the Indenture contained shall permit or be construed as permitting (a) an extension of the 
date that a Principal Installment is due at maturity or mandatory redemption or reduction in the principal amount of, 
or reduction in the rate of or extension of the time of paying of interest on, or reduction of any premium payable on 
the redemption of, any Bond, without the consent of the Registered Owner of such Bond, or (b) a reduction in the 
amount or extension of the time of any payment required by any Fund established under the Indenture applicable to 
any Bonds without the consent of the Registered Owners of all the Bonds which would be affected by the action to be 
taken, or (c) a reduction in the aforesaid aggregate principal amount of Bonds, the Registered Owners of which are 
required to consent to any such waiver or Supplemental Indenture, or (d) affect the rights of the Registered Owners of 
less than all Bonds then outstanding, without the consent of the Registered Owners of all the Bonds at the time 
Outstanding which would be affected by the action to be taken.  In addition, no supplement to the Indenture shall 
modify the rights, duties or immunities of the Trustee, without the written consent of the Trustee.  If a Security 
Instrument or a Reserve Instrument is in effect with respect to any Series of Bonds Outstanding and if a proposed 
modification or amendment would affect such Series of Bonds, then, except as provided in the Indenture, neither the 
Indenture nor any Supplemental Indenture with respect to such Series of Bonds shall be modified or amended at any 
time without the prior written consent of the related Security Instrument Issuer or Reserve Instrument Provider, as 
applicable. 

Trustee Authorized to Join in Amendments and Supplements; Reliance on Counsel.  The Trustee is 
authorized to join with the Issuer in the execution and delivery of any Supplemental Indenture or amendment permitted 
by of the Indenture and in so doing shall be fully protected by an opinion of Counsel that such Supplemental Indenture 
or amendment is so permitted and has been duly authorized by the Issuer and that all things necessary to make it a 
valid and binding agreement have been done. 
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Opinion of Counsel for Supplemental Indentures. Before the Issuer and the Trustee shall enter into any 
Supplemental Indenture pursuant to the Indenture, there shall have been delivered to the Trustee an opinion of Counsel 
stating that such Supplemental Indenture is authorized under the Indenture, and that such Supplemental Indenture will, 
upon the execution and delivery thereof, be valid and binding upon the Issuer in accordance with its terms. 

Discharge of Indenture 

If the Issuer shall pay or cause to be paid, or there shall be otherwise paid or provision for payment made, to 
or for the Registered Owners of the Bonds, the principal of and interest due or to become due thereon at the times and 
in the manner stipulated therein, and shall pay or cause to be paid to the Trustee all sums of moneys due or to become 
due according to the provisions of the Indenture, and to all Security Instrument Issuers and all Reserve Instrument 
Providers all sums of money due or to become due according to the provisions of any Security Instrument Agreements, 
Reserve Instrument Agreements, as applicable, then these presents and the estate and rights hereby granted shall cease, 
terminate and be void, whereupon the Trustee shall cancel and discharge the lien of the Indenture, and release, assign 
and deliver unto the Issuer any and all the estate, right, title and interest in and to any and all rights assigned or pledged 
to the Trustee, held by the Trustee, or otherwise subject to the lien of the Indenture, except moneys or securities held 
by the Trustee for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, the payment of amounts pursuant to any 
Security Instrument Agreements or the payment of amounts pursuant to any Reserve Instrument Agreements. 

Any Bond shall be deemed to be paid within the meaning of the Indenture when payment of the principal of 
such Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due date be by reason of maturity or upon 
redemption as provided in the Indenture, or otherwise), either (a) shall have been made or caused to have been made 
in accordance with the terms thereof, or (b) shall have been provided by irrevocably depositing with or for the benefit 
of the Trustee, in trust and irrevocably setting aside exclusively for such payment, (i) moneys sufficient to make such 
payment, or (ii) Direct Obligations, maturing as to principal and interest in such amount and at such times as will 
insure the availability of sufficient moneys to make such payment, and all necessary and proper fees, compensation 
and expenses of the Trustee and any paying agent pertaining to the Bond with respect to which such deposit is made 
shall have been paid or the payment thereof provided for to the satisfaction of the Trustee.  At such times as a Bond 
shall be deemed to be paid under the Indenture, as aforesaid, it shall no longer be secured by or entitled to the benefits 
of the Indenture, except for the purposes of any such payment from such moneys or Direct Obligations. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of Bonds, which by their terms may be redeemed prior to their 
stated maturity, no deposit under the immediately preceding Paragraph shall be deemed a payment of such Bonds as 
aforesaid until the Issuer shall have given the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, irrevocable instructions: 

(a) stating the date when the principal of each such Bond is to be paid, whether at maturity or on a 
redemption date (which shall be any redemption date permitted hereby); 

(b) directing the Trustee to call for redemption pursuant to the Indenture any Bonds to be redeemed 
prior to maturity pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture; and 

(c) if the Bonds to be redeemed will not be redeemed within 90 days of such deposit, directing the 
Trustee to mail, as soon as practicable, in the manner prescribed by the Indenture, a notice to the Registered Owners 
of such Bonds and to each related Security Instrument Issuer that the deposit required by the Indenture has been made 
with the Trustee and that such Bonds are deemed to have been paid in accordance with the Indenture and stating the 
maturity or redemption date upon which moneys are to be available for the payment of the principal or redemption 
price, if applicable, on said Bonds as specified in Subparagraph 0 above. 

Any moneys so deposited with the Trustee as provided the Indenture may at the direction of the Issuer also 
be invested and reinvested in Direct Obligations, maturing in the amounts and times as set forth in the Indenture, and 
all income from all Direct Obligations in the hands of the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture which is not required for 
the payment of the Bonds and interest thereon with respect to which such moneys shall have been so deposited, shall 
be deposited in the Bond Fund as and when realized and collected for use and application as are other moneys 
deposited in that fund; provided, however, that before any excess moneys shall be deposited in the Bond Fund, the 
Trustee shall first obtain a written verification from a certified public accountant that the moneys remaining on deposit 
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with the Trustee and invested in Direct Obligations after such transfer to the Bond Fund shall be sufficient in amount 
to pay principal and interest on the Bonds when due and payable. 

If the Bonds to be defeased pursuant to the Indenture are Variable Rate Bonds, the Issuer must receive a prior 
written confirmation from the Rating Agency to the effect that such defeasance will not result in a downgrade or 
withdrawal of the rating on the Bonds. 

Notwithstanding any provision of any other Article of the Indenture which may be contrary to the provisions 
of the Indenture, all moneys or Direct Obligations set aside and held in trust pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture 
for the payment of Bonds (including interest thereon) shall be applied to and used solely for the payment of the 
particular Bonds (including interest thereon) with respect to which such moneys or Direct Obligations have been so 
set aside in trust. 

Anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, if moneys or Direct Obligations have been 
deposited or set aside with the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture for the payment of Bonds and such Bonds shall not 
have in fact been actually paid in full, no amendment to the provisions of the Indenture shall be made without the 
consent of the Registered Owner of each Bond affected thereby. 

Applicable Law   

The Indenture shall be governed exclusively by the applicable laws of the State. 
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COMMONICATIONS SBR.VJCE CONTRACT . . . . 
1'hla Comrnunlcatiou Sonice Contract (tho .CSmvioe C<xt1rlot") is entwod Into ea 

ofthts 1• day of May, 2011, by and 1mon11ho UtalflllffJltl:UCtln Apnoy (11U1A"). 11ft 
lnterlocal cooperative and separate JopJ entity, body polHlo and corpon1e and a poffdcal 
subdlYllloa of the Sta1e of Ublh, ~ under tho lntulooal Cooporatfon Act, TltJe I J • 
Cbapt.cr 13, Utah Code Arinotalod t 9,3, as amended. and Brigham City, Centerville City, 
Layton City. Lindon a~. Midvale City, Murta)'. City. City or Oran. and West Valley 
Cky. (lndMdually tho "City," and cotlectlvoly, the "Ciliel"), each a muiofpal ~on 
and a political subdivlsfon of' the S1mD of Utah (UlA md Che Cities arc sometimes 
nsforred to indlvJdually u • •JParty" and ooll.ctively II stPartle.s" hcnin), 

RECITALS 

1. Pursuant to ~tion lo-8•1-4. Utah C.odc Annotated 195.3, 11 amended, 
oitfea may construct, maintain, 8lld operate tDlecommunioatlon llnes and oable. television 
lines. 

2. Pw'luant &o the i,nm,ions of 1hc, Jnterlocel Cooperation Act. Title 11, 
Chapt.or 13, Utah Code Annotated 1953, 11 mncndod (the "InterlocaJ Act"), citiea may 
oxercisc and enjoy jointly with other oltlet any jm.tlr, prMJcsc,s Dr autharhy exerotaed or 
capable of exarcile by a city. 

3, The lnterlocal Aot permits cities to makc·1ho most efficient uso Qf thcJr 
power by enabling Cbeal to eoopend'c whh other cities. on the ba!iis ot mutual advantage 
and thcucby to provido scrvlcea and ficllltles in a maamor and under forms of. 
govemmcmal orpnlzallon that will accord - with goographk\ IIClOnoJniC, popul.tion 
and other flCIOrS ioflucneing tho aoc,ds of dcnlopmont of local commuolties and will 
provide the bonoflt of .ooonomy of scale. economic development,,, and uttliution of 
naturil resoun;c:s 1br 1be OYcnlJ promotion of the pcral wet fire of~ St,au, of Utah. 

4, Pursuant to tho lntortooal Ave die Cities orpniold UIA to provid.o fbr die 
acquisition, conatructlon. and installation af toleoommunkadonl lines and cable 
tolevl1lon linos together wJlb relllllxl Jmprovomonta and taollldoa (die "Jmprovemcnt1"') 
fbr the purpoao of GOnnocting properties Wlthlll the Cldoa to tho Network (IS hcsrcin 
defined). all otwbiuh aball ~tly or Indirect!)' hcmofit cach oflhe Cltic:s. 

;i • . 
5. UIA. ts a separate legal entity. body politic and corporate and • politice.l 

111bdMslon of' 111e Stall of Ufal1 regularly created, elblbRshcd, orpnfzod. llnd exllllng 
under and by virtue of1he provlllona of the Jmerkicel Act and ofihe Con&titution ofdle 
~of'Utah. 

. 6. Throu&h UlA,. lhe Cities are del~us to work togcthc:r coopentivoly to 
provide their rosldenta wi1h the opporlUnfty to ~DC1 to the Network aod each City has 
dcterminod that thm, is a new within that City to provido tho Connection Scnricos (u 
herein defined), Baaed on 1ho Pealllbillty Report (u lum:in defined), tho Citic:a antlclpm: 
1hlll the Semco· Fees (11 hmtln defined) charpl ~ the Cities to the end uscn through 

1 
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their Communications Enterprises (as herein defiood) wm be sufficient lo satisfy ~ir 
obliptlons hereunder. • 

7. Section 1 l-13■21S of the lnterlooal Act provides that tbe Cities may share 
Choir tun or other revenues with one anoahet 1br lho purpose_ of aecompUshlog their 
objc,ctlves u Nt forth In an interlocal ap:en,c,nt. provided that CIWb of tho C1des 
CIOPlPlies with the rcquinnncntaofSeclfon J l•l.J-202.S of the lntcrtocal Act. 

8. In order to murc that rho Citk:s ooJJeotl.vely ·meet their obligations 
llcl'Cllnder to UJA. eac:b City cksires to pledp Its Prancf\iso Tix R.ovenl&CS to the lirn~ 
ex&ent provided herein. to aceon.,plish 1he Cfties• mutual . objedivc: • of ~ivinl 
Conncc:tfon Sorvfc:er (u bm:in dcfincsd). 

9. It LI tho lutention of the httiU that tho Improvements to provide the 
Connocdon Scrvtces bo opol'IUHI and managed for the mutual benefit ol 1hc Panies 11nd 
dmt fhe Cities wJll s-, ScrvieG Pees~ UIA calcula&cd In aecotdtm,e whh Section 3,2 of 
thla Service Contraot. Tho mnounta paid by the Chiaa hereunder de not oonltftue; a 
purchuc of any._ o, 6o.ilitfe1 c'Wd8d by UIA, ud an, made solely in consideration 
for the Connections Services provided by UIA to Ibo Cities. 

10. The: Conuetlon1 Scnric;e;s pnwklod under this Sc:rvica Contraet 8l'C not 
Cable Tolevl1lon Service:11 or Public TclCIOClfflDlunJoattons Services as doftnld in the 
M1miclpal Cable Television ar Public. TckoommUJ1i~s Servites Act, Tide: -10. 
Chapb:r 18, Utan Codo Annotab=d l 9S3. as amended (the! -Telceommunicadons ~cf'). 

DMWBST #7632944 vI 1 
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AGREEMENT 
In conridemlon of the Con~ Scrvico JJereld provided.the bonofif the Cities 

lhall receive mdlvldually and as a src,up 111 connectlna end users within k Cides to the 
Network and the mutual oovonants containod h~n. ,he Parties asrcc u follOWt: 

DMWBST#7632944 vl I 
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ARTICLBI 

D.EFINITIONS 

The following terma, whether i11. tho singular or ht lho pluralt whoo ullOd hmln 
and' in tho exhibits bereso, lhatl have dto nanlnp 901 forth b1:low: 

14Annual 8udsef' moans the budget adopted by UlA. 

"Capi1al Co81Sn means all capital costs rclalcd ·10 lhe lmprov,ements incum:ld by 
UlA In any particular Fisoal Year or period to ~ieh 111d a,rrn 11 applicable or chlll'ges 
made therefor durins such Plscal Year or period.inoludin111D1ounts Ht.aside fn relel'YCl5 
for ihc payment of Qapi1al CD5tl~ Capi1al Casis lnoJud~ wtthwt duptica:ti.on, (a} the 
payment of any obligations incunod • by UIA to ffnlll100 or roftnuoe 1hc costs of 1he 
lmpnm:men~ (I,) •~ounts required to be dcpo81Cld ft'om time m tune Into ~fred 
reserve,. and (c) all other ~pltal coats (detennined IP IICQOl'dance witb gaendl)r e;cepted 
aocountlng prineiplc:1) of 1hc lmpn,vcme11C1. 

"Cities" moans collooii'Vely all cltics that aro patticlpants in UIA and b have 
cntl'lred into 1his Sorvicc Contract. 

UC.Ommunications En1=prisc• means lhe cinlaprise established by each City 
plll'l\lllllt to the Unifonn Fiscal Procedure, Act for Utab Cftlea. ndo 10, Chapr.er 6, Utah 
Code Annotatc:d -l 9S3, u amended. to flmilimio ihe provldfhg of ,high apoad 
communie&llons .-vioea through lhc Ndwork to .,ow end users within 1he City pum1ant 
to this St\l'Yice Connot. 

"Conneetion Serviaes" means dllt wholesale services provided by UIA to eium 
011 pursuant to lhis semce COD~ whoreby end uars within OICh City ,haw acceu to 
VIA lmprovomcnu through wbieh 1hoy may cxmtraet whh private provlm to rocotve the 
Cablo Telawitlon Sc:rvlca and Public Tcler.xmunun~ Selvicel (u thOIO tonna me 
defined In thD Telc,commun.ioations Act) ptOVidod 1hroqh tho Network. ThD k1rm 
Connection. Serviocs includoa Connactlon 8crvlcu c.paoky -1 i8 more partio,ilarl:, 
deteribod in Elbibit A daclted hcra and~ hrmin, 

"Connection 8""""' Clpaeity" means lhe ac:cua rights to lU.ld capacity In the 
Network. 

1"Peui_bllfty ~• mean1 She feulblllly nport prepared by Dcsip :Ntne and 
clued O=ber ,. 2010. wkh reapec.t to the eOllllr\lCtlml of the Improvements and JbD 
suffloicnoy of du, Sorvk:e Pees to mec:t annually the 1..1.fA Rovcnue Req~nt. 

"'Flaoal Yoer" mNJU a period oommoncina on. July I and ending on the naxt 
suc:cc,~fng lune 30. • 

11Fnnc:hilc Tax R.ovenues" fflCIIIJIS all fianohlso tax ievenu"8 received by a City 
pursuant·to TitJe 10. Chapter 1, Part 3» l:Jtah Code: Ar.motlted t 953 •. as am=dcd. 

DMWBST #7632944 vl 1 
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"lmprovemenu" means 1hoae facHllie9, lmprovemcmu. and ~► lease, use. 
and/or eapacity rights acqulred, con.savcted, and/or ln.staDed, operated and maintafned by 
UIA to prqvkle Connection Si;rvioes to the: Cidos purunt 10 this Sorvfco Contrac:t,, as 
more Allly closeribed fn 'E',icbll!ft B attached homo, and Incorporated herein, 

"Net:worlc" moans the l1J'OPJA advuc:cd oommunicatiobs fiber optic to the 
premises open acoess communications netymrk. 

''Opnting Contlogenoy" mc.ns an unplanned event or clrcumstanot, a series of 
events or c{l'CUlllstadcca, nr Ill)' roslriedon or COlldltkJll imposed by any govermnontal 
audtorfty which roductll and materially -,nely afleots ~ to the hnprovc:naonts. 

"Operation and Mafntmancc ~ means 1J1 upensu .reasonably incarred 
by UlA ln COIIDeQdon with Ibo opetadon and n11lmenanoe of tllo !mpiovements. whet.her 
incurred by UIA or paid to ll!Y other entity pursuant to comract or otherwise. neccaary 
to lccop the Improvements in c.ff'wicat opcratlnt ·condition, including. COit of a1'1fits 
hereinafter required, payment of prolhOtionaJ and markcttns expenses and .,,., estB1lt 
brokerage fees, payment of pmnia11111 fbr inswanoe. and1 generally all expenses., 
ex.elusive of depreciation (Including depn,ciation ~lllled npcnses of any joint VOl'duro) 
which under generally .ccepted accounUns practices are properly allocable 10 operation 
and maintenance: however, only such eXpelllCI u are J'CIIOllably and properly necessary 
to the officle11t operation ~ rnaintenuaae of 1ho lmproverncnis shall be fnc1uded. 

"Revenues" mq all Scrvioc Fees .net ulha- revenu., feea, lncotne, rents. and 
receipts received or camcd by U1A under Chis Service Colmact, together with all Interest 
earned by and motleys derived fi'om tho sale of lov~ ~n tho related ftmds thereof. 

"Senfce Contract" ~ ~is Communieatipns Service COl'ltrlOt datal as of 
Ooto~ 1, 2010, as It may he ameadod tom limo to dmo in aocardimo widl Seatioo S.lS 
heroin . 

.. Service Pees•• moans all fees clwaed by lllf;b of tho Cities te 1he ODd uscn 
wilhin the l,oundllries of• IUCh City. A dos1,na1'd portion of the ~ica Pecs of 
each City shall bo payable to UIA in consideration for the Conneot!on Services provided 
• by lJIA to 1h11 CJty pursuant to thllS Sc,ntlcc, Coniract Tho dui,natcd portion of tho 
Ser\'lce Pas shall be aalolalatod and pmd pursuant to Atdclc m of thir. Sc,rvicci Contract. 
Service Fees do not Include any FIIIIOhiJre TIDC Reveriuea. 

''UIA" meais die Utah InfhlstruclUre Agnsy, a s,:parale logal ondty, body, polldc 
and corporaie and• polidoaJ subdMsfon of tho S.. otUtah. created under ahe lntcrl~ 
Act. U1A Is separate fi'om • of the Cities that created \L •• 

.. UIA Rovonuo Requirement" mean, the IUD'I otihe Operation and ~ 
Bxpemes and~ Capllal Coats of UlA during each Pilcal Year or~ appliolble 
period. • 

.. Uncontrollable, Forces'• fflClln8 any causo beyond 1he control or the Party 
affocted. iqeluding. but not limited to, ftdlure of f~illdea, flood. Cll1hquakc. storm. 
DMWEST #7632944 vi I • 
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Uptenin,r. ~ epldrmlo. war, riot. civil dlllWbanocsJ ·labor disturbanott lllbotqQ, and 
restraint by court or public authority. 

OMWBS'f #7632944 '¥11 
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ARTICLBfI 

CONNBCTION SER.VICES 

Seotfon 2.1 Connpctign Sffi'IQp. UV. shaU • provid~ to the Chics and the 
Cities shall receive from ~ Connection Scrvioel, includiq •~eotion Semce 
~pacity, Sltfliciont to allow not m dmn the total number of end 1,1-=ra wicbfn each City 
as Rt fol1h In :gxhibit C IUIOhod hno and IDCOrpQJllOd herein. to ciotmnr-t to tho 
Network. In the event I City detcrinlnos to prmldo Comcotion Scrvicoa: 10 ftlO~ than the 
nuanbcr of ead users allOGttod to it u set for(b in· NibUi ~ ii shall submit to UIA a 
written propoal, requudng addilion1l Connection Sarvioe Capacity &om uiA. Said 
propoa[ shall apeoi~ the total additional number of end UIKl'II to be pravided ~ncc:tion 
Services and the dalo on which the City' requf$ll sud.1 capacity to bo eff~c. UTA !hall 
acoept or n,jcet said proposal Within fifteen (15) days ftom the da1e tt received die 
pn,poaL 

Scctlan 2.2 AV81]l!lliHty. UIA shall provide continuous Omnection Serviees 
barrina only emerpnc:,y or acheduled downtime. carrailmenta. 1md Operating 
Contlngencles. 

DMWBST#7632944 vl l 
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ARTICLBIII 

PAYMHNT FOR CONNECMON SBRVICBS 

Sccdon 3.1 PeJprminatJpn, ofPaymcpt. lh .consideration fiJr the providing of 
Connection Services by UJ.A, -.fl City' sh&R pi)' fO Ul.A. fb.r eaeh Fi.sea.I Yeari if dlen due 
and owing. 95% of i1'i Service Pees cMl'gCd by the City during said Fiscal Year. to be 
paid and remitted to UIA on e momhly basis in ICCOftlan11e WISh Section 3.3. Such 
Scmc:e F~ shall only be dae 10 UlA from each Cll)r if NICI when IIIIICh City ls provided 
with ConnccUon Sorvk.ea and the City has aotual1y oharpd Son-Jee Fem to end iaon. 
Rach City shall cbar&o all and ars Service Pees thro111h ib Commimioatlona Bnterprlsc 
and shall •rnit aaid Service Fees ta UIA on a monthly bull and in aceordamie with 
Sec.Uon 5.12. 

Section 3.2 Ql11igtjpn Is Absgl!!f!. Subjoct to the- pnwl1tons of 8ectlon 3J 
hereof llmltina 1ho so-.m:,ea of payment hinundor, aach City's obligations to pay Service 
Fees to UIA for Connection ServlceB punuam, to this Article )JJ &haU be frrevOC'lble; 
ablolute and unconditional and ntl not bo .object to any iedUGtlon, whither by dcrlinso, 
rt,COUpmcnt, counterc[alm or omet or Olherwise. and shall not be conditioned upon tho· 
~~ pcrformanoo or nw-~ of the !rnprqvemonas or UJA, .the rc,mmy 
for non-porforn,aqct bclna limited to mandamus, spi,cifi~ pcrfcnmancc or equitable 
nm,.edy. Notwkh811UldlnB tbe rarepng. It ls not intended d14t the Citlos by thili ~arvioo 
Comraot assume any abtiplion or liabUity as• guarantor, endorser. surel)'. or otherwise 
wk& respect to any oblipfions incum,d b)' UlA with respect io the Improvements. 

S=tian 3.3 Spmial Lintm;d OWlgion. Bach City qn,es to pay .the Savi~ 
Pees due to UIA for Connecdon Services in monthly installrnents. Subject t.o 8cotion 3.S 
herein, eaoh City's obllptions to make ntandlly payments pursuant to this Secilon 3J 
shall c::onstltQte an Dbllflllon p1111blc: solely fi'oln Sc:rvloc Fees. In. no evont shall the 
obligations of a CLt.y hnunder be conslnlad II a pnera1 obllp&ion or illdc:btednoss or 
dllt City within cite mo•lfnc of..uy~al or ltalUb)' HmltlfJon.ot provialon,f)f' 
payable &om ad ~lW'l propor&y llxCI of1hat Ckf. The Patties aclcnowlcdp and qroe 
that aueb payments lhall ba fflllde out or the entaprile fimd cstlblilhld with ~ to 
each Cit>'J• Communtcationl Botelpriso. Bacb mmdhly fnsbdlmeat lhlti be duo and 
payable by du, Citiciai to UJA aoi lmr tban 1he fit\Qlnth day of 1hc ncx.t 1uoceedlng 
month, A final aoaauadng o£ .U 1nltlACdoas betwllon UIA llld 1bc Clli$8 In each FISCf.1 
Year 1hall be ratderlld to the Cfda; by UlA on or bofOJe Ibo 90th day of tho succoeding 
Ff•rYear. 7he final ~'II .sblll lplCJfy lho mnaunt, If any, which Cities must pay 
to UlA to reconcito t.otal monthly PIJ)'fflenbl wllb ICtU8l DQUnts cha UIA whh Slll'\lloe 
Pees lndioated by an undcxpaymont or ovctplYIIHIDt t.o bG _. by the Cltios or UIA 
respcdively, whfch amount shgll be payable 10 UIA no * than 30 dayi at1c the rceaipt 
afdac: final ICODU.nt~n,. 

Section 3.4 PFfi,11h 1n Paymegt. If a City•, Smlco Fem are not paid In ftdf on 
or bcf'oro the oJol6 of buanc,u on the fifteenth day of tho month in which •ld Fees are 
duo, an interest charp will be made at 1hc na or= percent (!<$ii) p1r annum or 1he 
maximum • of interest qa11y chupablo, )Vhlcbc:ver is lellS. If all or , pord011 of'lhe 
DMWBST #7632944 vl 1 , 
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Setvico Foes remain 1111paJd subsequent to die ~• day of the month in whioh the 
Fees are due. UIA may, upon sivfnr thirty (30) clay.' lld\lace wri1tm,, ~ oalecalatt,d 
&om the • of receipt of such notice by lhe applloablc CJty, discondnuo Cannc:c:tion 
ScrYJces ro said Cit)' unlm. and may refiMe to resume said servioes to said City until, the 
dc:libqucnt installment bu been paid. P1'om and • the etreodve di.le of sllCII notice. 
UIA shall not PfOYido CoQDCCtlon Savka 1018ld City. 

Section 3.5 Uso offtlpchise Tax Revenues, 

. (a) ~ Cltlca enppd Design Nln~ lo prepare, the Fea.ibi11ty, Rcpon 
with respoot to Cho oonstruc:don of the lrnp,ovomente -Ind the suffigleney of the 
Service Foes of aU of the Cities to moot dia- VIA Revenue Requirement. The 
Feasibility lleport demonstrates 1hu the combined City Rcw1mues of all Cities ue 
expected to equal not Jess th.an the UIA Jb:vcnue ~uhmem. However. in the 
event ~ to the extent there Iha.ti be • staortfa,lt in such City Ravmuc:a (the 
"'Shont'IIP'). such th.t UIA 1hal1 not have sufficient moneys ro pay the UlA 
~enue Requhenwnt wbDn dtic, ciaoll City h=ny plodau and rer- to lend its 
Pr,nchisc Tax Ro\'onucs . in tJl8 maximum .,..., principal 1m0Ut1t all~ to 
CIQh Cify u sot forth m Exhibit D attached hereto and inocq,orated herein. On or 
prior co eecb 1•uary 1 and July l ClOfflmenolng 1PUBI)' .I, 2012, UIA shall 
de«ermine: 

(i) the UIA Rovcnue &quircnlcnC due on tho nclf succaecUng 
Man:,h 15 or Sopaiber.15. 15 tpplioible, and 

(ii) the IRIOIHd of die ~-UlA nuonably believel will 
be avaltablc mr paymcat of Ule UJA. Reve11uc .Reqlllmnut on laid 
March tS or kptcmber 15. In addldon., UlA wU, on or prior to CIOh 
IIIUlat)' 15 or Jury 15, ., applk=abk. 11.1llnft • n,qaea to e1eh City• fi:lr 
F1:anchlse Tax .Revenues cqaal to that City's ~ntqe oflhe Shortfall aet 
tbrth In f,gh~lt D -.c1md hereto 111d lncorporaled hcnin, bat in no event 
n1orc chin dte maximum prlacJpal amount Id for1b In Exhibit D. Bldl 
City ap,c:s ta pay its perceldlge of the Shortfall to UIA no later dian the 
next sw=clinl ~ 15 or Sepllmber I!.• appHcablo. VIA ccmnants 
IO uke web otbcr ICtioll II lt lawfidly may tab io au& that each Clty 
remhl to UIA ltom Ptanehllo Tax Rovcnuea hs shaR of tlld Shortf,11 
purllUUlt to 'lhls Sl:l'Ylcc Con~ 

(b) Baoh City lhlll bo oDlipk:d to pay hi pc,ror,ntap of the Short&ll . 
as provided in Exhibit D &om Pnlshlle 1'IJt Rm:nucs regardlus of Cho amount 
of Servlce Poca pqable by 1hat Cit)' purlUlnt to SectionJ.l heroin. 

(c) Bach Cffr may oreate or inour additlona.l dot on • parity with 1111y 
oUUluldm, debt IICCUJCCI by • priority Jtc,n pledge af that City's Franchlse Tll 
Revenues or on parity •ilh tho pJodp created pursuant eo this Section 3.5 so Ions 
M the pledpd FNIIChfli= Tu R.ovenlml reoelved by dJlt City durlq the fbeal 
Year lmmedlaely praoedins 1he Pllcal \'ear in which 1bc additloaal priority or 
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parity debt 11 to bo iMued is not less 1111111 ISO% of the mqxlmum annual debt 
service on the sum of (i) the lldditimt11l priority or parity debt plus (ii) any debt 
previously iuucd and outstanding plus (ifi) dlo tor.al maximum anqual amount 
pledpd by tho applicable City hereundor. tested tbr .the period of such addltional 
priority or parity debt. 

(d) AU Franddse Tax Rovcnues paid by a City to UIA or its dcslgnee 
pursuant to this Section 3.S shall eonltitute • )OA' by that City to UIA wbich aball 
be paid by UIA at tho dnie and In tho m111111or a provided In the fonn of a 
promi!ISOI)' note ditched hereto u Jabilpit B fi'om ·Its. futw,, UIA Rownuca. Bach 
City shall be entitled to interest on each loan advance ttom the dato aid advance 
Is made by dlat City to UIA or Its d1S&ignee. at a rate of six pment {6%) per 
,umwn, unleu a I..- Interest rate la aet tbrth in the fll(eeufed pn,miasory note for 
said loan. Bach City ackDowlcdgCB 1hat tbe loan obligation incUmid by UIA 
herein shall be 1ubordlnate and junior to lJIA •s otJier payment ob.ligations. 

Sc:otion 3.6 Stw95ign Ptocx,c,dlnp. VIA at hs deslgneo shall bow tho right 
fi-om tidlt to time to begin and malnuain sucoosalvo proceedings aplnst • City ror the 
recovery of aH Scrvlae Fees or Shortfal la tequired to be anade under this Service Conll'act 
by that Ctty and to recover tho smne upon tho liability of that City herein PftWided. 
Nothing ~cln contained shaU be deemod to _require UlA to defer commoncement of any 
stn;;,h prococdlng until the end of the:: term ofthla Service Connet. 

Secdon 3. 7 pJaqontirn1,a Termination. No dlscontinuanco of. any or all of 
the rights of a City to the Connecdon Services 1haJI bo oonstrued as an clcctkm on 1hc . 
part of UIA or ill dcsier- to tmnlnatc the interest of chat CJty under 1bis Service 
Contract unless a notice of intartion be given to that City or unleu IIIIOh tmnainaaion be 
dec:roed at the fns1lnce of IDA or its designce by a r.ourt of compmmjurisdictlan. 

Scx;tlon 3.8 • Jempdlp. UlA or ils dcsipcc may tab whalovcr-acdon at law or 
in equity may appear noc:eaary or desirable to collcet the amOllffll payable by each Chy 
~or, 1hea due ud tMrcaft:er to become due, or to onfbrce performance and 
observaftee of any obllption. qrc:cment or oovontUtt of cacll City unclerche provlllOal of" 
this Service · Contract.. Each Ci.tr may take whatever action at law or In oqulty may 
appear• rtooosa,, or dcs.il'lbJo to enforoe performlnN and obJervanct of any obllptioa. 
agreement, or covenant of UJA under the provlslone ofdlll Senloe Connet 

SectJon 3.9 Np lxPJuJJve ·1m1sid.Y. No riaht or nmedy heroin conferred upon 
or l'Cllel"Ycd to UIA or its dNignee ·or any City Is in-.... .to be mcclulive of any. other 
ript or remedy. and each and every right IUld n,mcdy shall be oumu~ and in addition 
io any o1her right or remedy given herellnder, or now or h~ loplly ~. The 
&Ihm, of UIA or it1 dc&lgm;c or_ any City to insist at any time upon the strict absemzt,ce 
or pcrformam;e by tho other parties to this Service Contraot of 8lly of the p&'(Wlalon, of 
this Service Contract. or to eicrcl~ any rip! or remedy provldad ill' in thi1 Service 
Contract. shall not impair any such riaht or remady nor .be construed as a Mlver or 

• relinqulshment1heniotfbr d1I 1\mn. RDcdpt by UJA or lta deslpee ofiny" ~ervke Focss 
ieqund to be made under thlt Service Contract with knowledge of the breach of ay 
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provisions of this Scmce Contraef. shall not bo deemed a waiver of such brcaoh. In 
addition to 111 oibcr .remedies provide.cf in this Servico Cootraet. UIA or its doflignec or 
any City shall be Cbtltlod. to 1Jle cx=tt pennttted by applicable law, to injuncilvo relief in 
case of iho violation.,, or a.tlenJP-tod or tb.rcatmod vi.olatkm. of any of Che provilions of dds 
Servlcc Contract. or co a dcarco conoemlng perf.brmanc:,o or any of lhc provisions of thfs 
Scnico Contract, .or to UI)' other remedy legally allowed. If any proceeding Iba.II be 
brought for the enforc:cmcnt of any rllht or remedy provided far ln this ~ice Contraot 
ln·whlch It shall be detcnnined th.t a Cliy shall have tailed and eontinuccf 10 fall to mlko 
a ptl)'MDRt of San,fae Fees due under this Sorvfoe Contraet at the tima of oommcmcement 
1hereof, said City shall pay UIA or its .deslp• an expenses \ncum,d in con~tt 
therewith including. without Hmfcation. reuonabl_c altbmeys' fees and expenses. In lite 
manner. ifit should become necessary for a Chy to bring legal procoedfnp apinst UIA 
or ltB desiancc to enfcm,c any rfeht glvea It hnundcr, tho City thalJ ha\le dH, right. If It Is 
succcaaftll in such proec,cdlnss, to the P•~ b;y UTA of 1111 c,xpcme5 lncumxl in 
oonnoctlDD therewhh Including, wlthoul limitation. rr:asonablat attornoya' -. 111d 
O)LJ)Onlel, 

Section 3,J0 Rird,t of Deslgee to lJIA tQ Exelclse Remedjg. At any tJmo tho 
UTA or Its desipee la entitled to onfon,e any of tho rights or remedi01 provided for in 1h11 
Service Contract. and tfae designee may proceed, ehher in its own name and ai truateo of 
any express Crust or oiherwise, to pro1ect 111d cnforee Ill rlgftts and th~ of UlA I.IUir,r 
dais Service Contfaet. wlwfher or not UlA shall havo complied with any af thc provisions 
horcof or prococdod to tlko any aotian aud10rizcd gr permitted under applicable law. 
Such rights and rent«fies as are given UJA hereunder ahall aJso ext.cmd to hi detigneo 111d 
the deslgnee ahlll be entitled 10 the boheftt of all wvenants and ~ in this 
Servioc .Canaact contaJned. • 

Seotlon 3.11 Alfa ngt Oblipu,d fqr Ul6 DeJzt. All obtlpdons of UIA arc 
payable solely by UJA Ind. irt 1CtA>rdanuo with tho provisions of me Act."' not a·dobt or 
odJc.r obUsation of'any of the Cities. 

DMWBST #7632944 vl 1 
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ARTICLRIV 

APPROVAL AND PUBLICATION REQUIRBMRNTS 

Section 4, l SubmluioaJo Audaorlzcd AlfmDm'. This Sclvle.e Contrael sbaH 
001t1titmc ,m aarccmant for joint and goopcndivc acdcwn pwsuant to the lnterk>cal AQl, In 
acoordanoo with the n,qllirmnentl of Scotion l l-13~202.5 of Ula Imerlocal Aot a 
amended, this Serv1ce·eon1raet 1111111! be submitted fot approval to the governing bodi• of 
UIA and aach Cit)' and ID an autharim. attamcy for UIA and for each City who shall 
tpp!OVO this Servloo COA\18Ct if SIICb lttom~ dctcrmlus thal h ls in proper tbmt and 
compatible widr ~c, laws of Ile State of Utah, 

Section 4.2. . Pyblipation, In acoordlhec with the requirements 'or Section 11· 
13•219 of lhc lntmlocal Act, as amended, the ,ovcming body or U1A shall provide f'or 
the publication of tho roeolution adapted-by It pursuant to the requlrcmCllltl ofSccdon 11-
13-202 of.the lnterlocal Act. ~ amended. In the offlclaJ newspaper or thD nDWs,aper 
puhHlhed within llS boundvics. or If no ncw,p11per is so publiabcd, then tn· a •~I' 
having pncral circulation t:hen:,in. 

Section-4.3 ImPtPYtmlPll Owl)cd by UIA. In acoonlance with the 
requirements of the lntcr1ooal Acr, a, ,uncncbJ. it Is fJgrced and understood that all read 
and penonal property oonsdtudns the lmprovemC'.l\ts shall be "CJUircd, owned. hold, 
malmaincd, and dispoeod of by UJA. 

PMWEST#7632944 vl l 
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ARTlCLBV 

GENBRAL PROVISIONS 

Section s .1 Acgyisltion pd • Co~ pf the .lrnprpvenprts. UIA 
represents th.ist it will aoqu~ or CGIO to be acquired all peimhl, Uccnacs. rights and 
privilege&, structures, aqqlptnmt, and kiJitlea whh respect to tho aoqulsitiOR and 
C(>IIAW)tion of the lrnprmemaits ne0ellll')' tbr the performucc by UIA of this Scrvk:c 
Connet. UIA shall maimain and defend IIICh permits, licenses. and rights and privilege.a 
md shall not volunlarlly permit 1111)' ohango therein lhat would rosult In impairment of the 
perfbl"lllllice by UIA of k1 obllption under thla Scrvioc C.Ontract. 

Section S,2 Risk of Loa, Each Pll1)' Is aolely respon1lble for the ~ of loss 
of; or, damap to, e,qutprn• of that Party (~lea of where locitc,d). unless the loss or 
damage rc11dt1 ftom cbe negligence or fault of Che othi=r Party. 

Seodon S.3 S§nral Qhl,-qp1. Bxaept where speoif~ly IC8ted in tbi1 
Service Conhet to be oth~ise. the dudes, obllptlons, and liabilities of the Parties uo 
intended to bCI sewraJ and not joint or. oollective. Nodafn& oontained ln this Service. 
Contract shall ever be construod 10 cnaae an 1S10Clation. trust. partnership, or Joint 
vonture at imposo a trust or partnership duly, obligation, or JJability Oft or with rc,ard to 
e~ Party. Bach Party shall ba individually and acworally liable mr ita own obliptiona 
under tbJs Service Coniraor, and lhalJ not be liable for any obligation of the other Citim 
hereunder~ -. 

Section 5,4 LiabiJm PaQ;atim,. . Nothing in this Scmco Contract shall be · 
construed co cnate aay duty-co., ariy andml of cm wiih reforenoo &o. or any liability to 
my pnon not a party to thia Service Contract. 

~on S,S Bqob and Rgrdi. U(A qrees ihat It shall malnlllin sepnte 
books and rocords rcllting to the lmpaoYGmantl and that propor uad equkablo alloamions 
of rcvenllOI and ~ wilt be made widl· res,-ct so the c,perations . of the 
Improvements.· UIA shall submit tb eaoh Ctty suoh supporting data with resp= to all 
Annual Budaiets and yearly acoouatina reconolHadonl a, are • nrasonabfy neceuar.y ta 
enable cadt Chy to ctlbot propar 10COUDtinJ thonfbr. AU books of acc:ount and 
accoundn, n,cordl of VIA lball' bo nlilabfo for iupedion and udlmtion lly a duly 
autborb:ild officer or dalignco of each City at Ill reuonablc dmea. UIA shall e111SC1 such 
boob of ICCOUDt of the lmprcwemm11 to be auclited annually b)' lbdepanc,ent public 
ICCOUD1mds experienced In m!lity IICCOUD1tng. A Cop)' of C80h such annual audit. 
fncludln1 any nmmmondaiions otthe ICCOUD1IIIIII with roapeot then,to, 9hall be pmmptly 
rude .a\lallabJo by UlA to each City. • 

SICtion 5.6 Rgtiqmbip tg Oll\s ba:Pmsird!, lt Is n:copized flat 1JJA must 
ocrnply with all Ileen-. pennf&I and rea1.dalDI')' 'IJPl'C)vals tlOCC8SII')' fbr the ownership, 
aoquiaitfon, eonsln1Ctlon and operation of the l111provementl, and it I$. ~fore, a8f'OCld 
tt&at this Servloc Contract is made tabject to tho 11:nn1 11\d provision• of suoh liccnles, 
pcrmhl and replatory approvals, maiept ibat' oac,12 City shaH not be bound I?)' any tenn or 
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provision of any llccn8c.· permft. or regulllory approval, which may contradict or vary th~ 
la'qls hereof unleas It cxprossly consent& In writing 1o be so boulld. Each Cfty 81fCC1 that 
It w.11 not revise ur amend its Service Fees charpd to end usm under ics 
Comm~k:atlom Bntetpria, in any mlllUIDI' lhlt would ldvll'ICJy aftbct the priority of or 
the -=arity for the paynients to bo made dtareunder to UlA without ol,taiJllng tho prior 
~ conaani of'UlA. 

Soction 5.7 UabHbia, P.ao!i City, Its o:fflocrs, dosipces. and employee,. or 
tn)' of diem. shall ~ be Hable 1bt 111)' claims. daNncf1, 001Cs. losses. cwa of action. 
damages or Jiabllit)' of ~atlloever kind at aature wtns out of or n:sultlns tiam the 
ownership, acquisition, conattuotlqn and operation by UI"- of· tho hnprovemmds or 
arflJna out of any obllptlom of cho other Cf:del h«clllder. UIA. i11 offloera, desfenccs, 
and employees. or.., of thtm, shall nos be 11ablc fbr my claims, demands. COllS, losses. 
aall8N of· IICtlon, damqc, or Habilil:)' of w~er kind or nature erisinl out of or 
rosulting from the perfbrmance by each City under 1hii Sorvlce Colltrlel. 

Seclfon S,8 Agjprncnt. Bxcopt fbr toOUrlty purposes in connection wllh any 
obliptions lneurrod by UIA, nclchar thia Scrvfae Conlract nor any pen dlmeof .shall be 
.usipod ·by any Party without priot' writtoa coment of tho others. 

. ' 

Seodon .5.9 fJKDial!JDc &ml.Ro 1o OShpn. UJA. b)' enterlfli into 1hls Service 
~ docs not hold itsalf out to provide the Improvements or ,imilllt servfce to any 
other penon or entity. • • 

Seetion ,.10 Upcpn!J9Ulblo f'9Da No Party lbaH be considered to be in 
dcftlUlt in rqpegt &o any o(>Hpdon haeunder, ocher chan Wider Article m, if pm,mtcd 
1tcm fillfilllng-auoh obliption by _roac,n or an Uncontrollable F~ If a Party is 
ronderod unab'° to filffill 111y obHplion by n,amq of an UnoonCmHable Porco such Party 
lhall exercise due dfligebgc to remove suoh ~illty with all NIIOmbJe dispatoh and 
&ball bep tho odaer Pm1feic fully infonned of changel and conditions u far In advuc;c as 
posd,~ • 

Secdon 5,11 Cqnmuppdgps 6J8rl!dB, BRh City will apento and malntai~ 
itl Communbdim11 Ento,prue in auod ope11flna o,c1a- and wm flx. oharse, and collect 
ma,,. fees, ,nd chirps In ~anoo with Secdon ,.12 heroin. 

Section 5.12 CHie, tpJ.:line pd Collecg Cl,\y &ftpmas. Btl~ City htrlb)' 
..,_ to create I C,omm1aticadoal P.nterprlJc and 1D charp all ond UlalS within 1hat City 
throuJh Its CaDlll'lunicatlans Bnttrpd1e montl\Jy tees in the amount set f'ol1h In Bxblbit C 
au,ehod hereto and ineorpcn&ed hcnill tbr each 00111WCCfon to the Network in 
consldmtion fbr tho Connection Service provided by lhD City. Bach City all ostablllh 
auc:h cnforcelbet\t prooo,.bns II may be I\OOCIIIJY to collect suob fees. Said foes, when 
QOllectod, shall bo used by each Ofty to pay Its Scrvico Feesi under this Smice Confnlct. 

· Sccrion s. 13 Qmtp f.merlsion Sgyiffl Md PpbliQ Is:JscmnJDVPic:adW 
Sprvk;q. The Nttft, --ckMwlqo and repfMld lhat neither puty. t,y entering 
into dds Servioe ~ IQII provide or be required to provide Cable ToleYllioa 
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Servicca or Public Tdecon11nunlcations Scrvioos II doftnod in the TeJocommunJcation& 
Act, nor is either pal1f capable of providing said sorvicoa. Furthermore, the Pvtfes 
hereby aeknowJedgc, and repmia,faiat to the bes« of dicir knowledge, each City is paying 
for the tbH cost of providirlg the Conni=etJon. Services rGCeived by It pqrsuant to Ulls 
Service Contract. • 

Se0Uon S.14 Bntlre Agrpement. 'This Ser\lloo Qmll'aCt consdtutea ·Che entire 
qreement unons the Parties wtth rapc:ct to the subjoot mmter hereof. No_ chanp, 
variation. termination. or attempted waiv• of any of the provisions of Chl5 Service 
Contract Shall be binding on the Parties unlca CXCCllfcd In writbtg by the Olhcr Party. 
This Service Connet shall not be modill~ 111pplemon1m, or otherwilc affected by 
COWBC of deallna, • 

Seclion 5.15 Agndrnent1. This Sarvioo Contraet lhall not be amonded, 
modiflc,d, or otherwise all'enld tn any manner wlthol.lt the CONflRt' of the parties hereto, 
which conaont shall not be unreasonably wldlheld. 

Socdon s.16 Bfl)ptjyq Qa IQd Pdailwf Ta,. 'Ibis Service Contract shall be 
e~ve as of tho date bem,f and shall condnve in e1flct until April I, 2041. 

Section 5.17 ~- Any notice, clcman4, or n:quost provided for in this 
Sorvicic Comnct shall be ln wr1tiD1 and shall be deemed j,rapcrly acrvcd. IPt'OII, or made 
if doliVC'l'lld in person or - by 11Slltered ar cerdfled. mail. postap pMPaid, to d1c 
peraons spocitled bolow: 

BrlghamCJor 
20Norch~ 
FOBox u,o, 

UIA: 

Bri&htm City, Utah 84302 
Attn: Mayor 

Centerville City 
250 North Main 
Centcrvil" Uab 840 I 4 
Atffl: Mayor 

Layton City 
437 North Waat1:1h Drive 
Layton. Utah 84041 
Ann: M.)or 

LindonCity 
100 North State Stta:4 
Lindon, Utah M042 
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UTOPIA 
2175 s. Rodwaod Rold 
West Valley City. UT .84119 

Midvale City 
655 WCSI. Center Street 
MJdvale. Utah 84047 
AUn:Mayvr 

MunayCity 
S02S SOUth Stale Street 
POBoxS7j20 
Murray, Utah 84157 
Attn: Mayor 

Cit)'ofOmn 
56 North State Street 
CMm~U1ah 8405'7 
Attn:Mayor 

Weat Valloy City 
3600 Cobthulion Avonue 
Wost Valley City, U1Bh 84119 

IS 
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.• 

Ann: Mayar Aun: Mayor 

The Panics may, at any tlmOs by notice to the other designate different or 
.,mo.rial person, or dlfthrmt addmses for the JlviPI of notice hereunder. 

_ Sc:ction S. t & 'lbird Pl[W Bgflciarfes. Tho terms and provisions of thia 
Seniice Contraet shall be binding upon and inure to d,o benefit of the Penia hercto1 and 
their rcspeetlWJ sucoesson and anipa. and is made solely and speoffioally for dlcfr 
bcnofit No other pnoli lhal1 have any ri&ht8t inUR8t. or olaims hcmmdc, or be entidod 
to any benefits under or on 110COL1nt ofdd1 Service Contraet a a ddrd-pazty ~ or 
o1hcrwlH. • 

Sootion 5.19 Goypigg yw, _ This Service Contract shall be lntmpreted, 
governed by, and construed under~ laWB of die Stace of Utah. 

Section 5.~o · Bq,outlgn ill 9>Y0tmllrU• Thts Setvioe Contract 1111)' be 
simultaneously executed in~ gounterpans, each of which lhall be an original and 
all of which shall conatttutc but one and the same instnnnent. 

Section 5.21 Severabflfty. 1f any pravisloa ofthi1 Sorviac Conllaet shaJJ be hcJd 
or bo deemed to be or shall, in fact. be ilJogal, • inoperlllve, or unenforceable. the 111me 
shall not affect any other provision or provisions herein contained or render the same­
lnvalld, Inoperatlve1 or uncmfotceJble to any~ whataoevcr. 
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APPENDIX D 
FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

 
Upon the issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds, Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Bond Counsel to UIA, proposes to issue 

its approving opinion in substantially the following form. 

[Date of Issuance] 
 
Utah Infrastructure Agency 
Murray, Utah 
 
Zions Bancorporation, National Association 
Corporate Trust Department 
Salt Lake City, Utah  
 

Re: Utah Infrastructure Agency $35,630,000 Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue Bonds,  
Series 2023 

We have acted as bond counsel to the Utah Infrastructure Agency (the “Issuer”), in connection with the 
issuance by the Issuer of its $35,630,000 Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 2023 (the “Series 
2023 Bonds”).  The Series 2023 Bonds are being issued pursuant to (a) a resolution of the Issuer adopted on August 
14, 2023, and (b) a General Indenture of Trust dated as of December 1, 2017 (the “General Indenture”), as heretofore 
supplemented and amended and as further as supplemented by a Sixth Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated as of 
October 1, 2023 (the “Sixth Supplemental Indenture” and together with the General Indenture, the “Indenture”), each 
between the Issuer and Zions Bancorporation, National Association, as trustee.  The Series 2023 Bonds are being 
issued to (i) finance the acquisition, construction, and installation of advanced communication lines, equipment and 
improvements, refreshment of major electronics, and related improvements and facilities as part of a fiber optic 
advanced communications network; (ii) fund capitalized interest with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds; (iii) fund a 
debt service reserve account for the Series 2023 Bonds; and (iv) pay for costs of issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds.   

We have examined the law and such certified proceedings and other documents as we deem necessary to 
render this opinion.  As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied upon the certified proceedings and 
other certifications of public officials furnished to us without undertaking to verify the same by independent 
investigation.  Our opinion is limited to the matters expressly set forth herein, and we express no opinion concerning 
any other matters.   

Based on our examination and the foregoing, we are of the opinion as of the date hereof and under existing 
law, as follows: 

1. The Indenture has been authorized, executed and delivered by the Issuer, constitutes a valid and 
binding obligation of the Issuer and creates a valid lien on the Revenues (as defined in the Indenture) and the other 
amounts pledged thereunder for the security of the Series 2023 Bonds. 

2. The Series 2023 Bonds are valid and binding special obligations of the Issuer payable solely from 
the Revenues and other amounts pledged therefor in the Indenture, and the Series 2023 Bonds do not constitute a 
general obligation indebtedness of the Issuer within the meaning of any State of Utah constitutional provision or 
statutory limitation, nor a charge against the general credit of the Issuer. 

3. The interest on the Series 2023 Bonds (including any original issue discount properly allocable to 
an owner thereof) (i) is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes and (ii) is not an item of tax 
preference for purposes of computing the federal alternative minimum tax.  The opinions set forth in this paragraph 
are subject to the condition that the Issuer complies with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended, that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds in order that interest thereon be, 
or continue to be, excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  The Issuer has covenanted to comply 
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with all of these requirements.  Failure to comply with certain of these requirements may cause the interest on the 
Series 2023 Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance 
of the Series 2023 Bonds.   

4. The interest on the Series 2023 Bonds is exempt from State of Utah individual income taxes.   

We express no opinion herein regarding the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of the Official Statement 
or any other offering material relating to the Series 2023 Bonds.   

The rights of the holders of the Series 2023 Bonds and the enforceability thereof and of the documents 
identified in this opinion may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent 
conveyance, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent 
applicable, and their enforcement may be subject to the application of equitable principles and the exercise of judicial 
discretion in appropriate cases.   

This opinion is given as of its date, and we assume no obligation to revise or supplement this opinion to 
reflect any facts or circumstances that may come to our attention or any changes in law that may occur after the date 
of this opinion.   

Respectfully submitted,   
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APPENDIX E  
FORM OF THE CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the “Disclosure Undertaking”), is executed and delivered by the 
Utah Infrastructure Agency (the “Agency”), in connection with the issuance by the Agency of its $35,630,000 
Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 2023 (the “Series 2023 Bonds”).  The Series 2023 Bonds 
are being issued pursuant to a General Indenture of Trust dated as of December 1, 2017 (the “General Indenture”), as 
heretofore supplemented and amended and as further as supplemented by a Sixth Supplemental Indenture of Trust 
dated as of October 1, 2023 (the “Sixth Supplemental Indenture” and together with the General Indenture, the 
“Indenture”), each between the Agency and Zions Bancorporation, National Association, as trustee.  In connection 
with the aforementioned transaction, the Agency covenants and agrees as follows: 

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Undertaking.  This Disclosure Undertaking is being executed 
and delivered by the Agency for the benefit of the Bondholders of the Series 2023 Bonds and in order to assist the 
Underwriter in complying with the Rule (as each such term is defined below). The Agency represents that it will be 
the only obligated person with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds at the time the Series 2023 Bonds are delivered to the 
Underwriter and that no other person is expected to become so committed at any time after issuance of the Series 2023 
Bonds. 

Section 2. Definitions.  In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenture or parenthetically 
defined herein, which apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Undertaking unless otherwise defined in 
this Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 

“Annual Report” means the Annual Report provided by the Agency pursuant to, and as described in Sections 
3 and 4 of this Disclosure Undertaking.   

“Dissemination Agent” shall mean any person or entity engaged by the Agency to provide the reports and 
notices required hereunder and which has been designated in writing by the Agency as the Dissemination Agent.  
Written notice of the engagement and designation of a Dissemination Agent shall be filed by the Agency with the 
Trustee. The initial Dissemination Agent shall be the Agency. 

“Financial Obligation” means a (a) debt obligation, (b) derivative instrument entered into in connection with, 
or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation, or (c) guarantee of (a) or (b) 
in this definition; provided however, the term Financial Obligation shall not include municipal securities as to which 
a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5 of this Disclosure Undertaking. 

“MSRB” shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, the address of which is currently 1300 I 
Street, NW, Suite 1000, Washington D.C. 20005; Telephone (202) 838-1500; the current website address of which is 
www.msrb.org and www.emma.msrb.org (for municipal disclosures and market data). 

“Official Statement” shall mean the Official Statement of the Agency dated September 28, 2023, relating to 
the Series 2023 Bonds.   

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

“Underwriter” shall mean KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc., as the original underwriter of the Series 2023 Bonds 
and required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the Series 2023 Bonds. 

Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports. 

(a) The Agency shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent, not later than 210 days after the end of 
each fiscal year of the Agency (presently June 30) commencing with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, provide to 
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the MSRB in electronic format an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this 
Disclosure Undertaking.  Not later than fifteen (15) business days prior to said date, the Agency shall provide the 
Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent and the Trustee (if the Dissemination Agent is other than the Trustee). The 
Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-
reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Undertaking; provided that the audited financial 
statements of the Agency may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report.  If the Agency’s fiscal 
year changes, it shall give notice of such change in the same manner as for Listed Event under Section 5(e). 

(b) If by ten (10) business days prior to the date specified in Section 3(a) for providing the Annual 
Report to the MSRB, the Dissemination Agent has not received a copy of the Annual Report, the Dissemination Agent 
shall contact the Agency to determine if the Agency is in compliance with Section 3(a). 

(c) If the Dissemination Agent is unable to verify that the Annual Report has been provided to the 
MSRB by the dates required in Sections 3(a), the Dissemination Agent shall, in a timely manner, send a notice of 
failure to file the Annual Report to the MSRB in electronic format.   

(d) The Dissemination Agent shall: 

(i) determine each year prior to the dates for providing the Annual Report, the website address 
to which the MSRB directs the annual reports to be submitted; and 

(ii) send a notice to the Agency certifying that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant 
to this Disclosure Undertaking, stating the date it was provided, and listing the website address to which it 
was provided.   

Section 4. Content of Annual Reports.  (a)  The Annual Report of the Agency shall contain or 
incorporate by reference the following: 

(i) A copy of the Agency’s annual financial statements prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and audited by a certified public accountant or a firm of certified public 
accounts.  If the Agency’s audited annual financial statements are not available by the time specified in 
Section 3(a) above, unaudited financial statements will be provided as part of the Annual Report of the 
Agency and audited financial statements will be provided when and if available.   

(ii) An update of the financial and operating information in the Official Statement relating to 
the Agency of the type contained in tables under the headings:   

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS: 
–Revenue and Expense Details;  
–Customer Concentration; 
–Historical and Projected Debt Service Coverage on the Bonds [but only as the same becomes 

historically available; update of projected debt service coverage not required]; 
UIA: 
– Financial Summaries and Budget:   
THE UIA NETWORK: 
– Intersection of UIA Network and UTOPIA Network:  
– Combined UTOPIA/UIA Networks – Customers, Take-Rate and Churn Rate. 

 
(b) Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other documents, 

including official statements of debt issues of the Agency, as appropriate or related public entities, which have been 
submitted to the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange Commission.  If the document included by reference is a final 
official statement, it must be available from the MSRB.  The Agency, as appropriate, shall clearly identify each such 
other document so incorporated by the reference.  All of the items contained in the Annual Report shall be submitted 
in a pdf word-searchable format.   
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Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events. 

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5(a), the Agency shall give or cause to be given, notice of 
the occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds in a timely manner but not 
more than ten (10) Business Days after the event: 

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(ii) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(iii) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(iv) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(v) Adverse tax opinions or the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final 
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or 
determinations with respect to the tax status of the Series 2023 Bonds or other material events affecting the 
tax status of the Series 2023 Bonds; 

(vi) Defeasances; 

(vii) Tender offers; 

(viii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar proceedings;  

(ix) Rating changes; or 

(x) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar 
events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Agency, any of which reflect financial difficulties.   

(b) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5(b), the Agency shall give or cause to be given, notice of 
the occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds in a timely manner not 
more than ten (10) Business Days after the Listed Event, if material: 

(i) Mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the 
Agency or their termination; 

(ii) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of the name of a trustee; 

(iii) Non-payment related defaults; 

(iv) Modifications to the rights of the owners of the Series 2023 Bonds; 

(v) Series 2023 Bond calls;  

(vi) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Series 2023 Bonds;  

(vii) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Agency or agreement to covenants, events of 
default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the Agency, any of which 
affect Series 2023 Bond holders.   

Whenever the Agency obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event under Section 5(b), whether 
because of a notice from the Trustee or otherwise, the Agency shall as soon as possible determine if such event would 
be material under applicable federal securities laws. 
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(d) If the Agency has determined that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event under Section 5(b) 
would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the Agency shall promptly notify the Dissemination Agent 
in writing.  Such notice shall instruct the Dissemination Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (f). 

(e) If the Agency determines that the Listed Event under Section 5(b) would not be material under 
applicable federal securities laws, the Agency shall so notify the Dissemination Agent in writing and instruct the 
Dissemination Agent not to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (f). 

(f) If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the Agency to report the occurrence of a Listed 
Event, the Dissemination Agent shall file a notice of such occurrence with the MSRB in an electronic format in a 
timely manner not more than ten (10) Business Days after the Listed Event.   

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The Agency’s obligations under this Disclosure 
Undertaking shall terminate upon the earlier of: (i) the date of legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full 
of all of the Series 2023 Bonds; (ii) the date that the Agency shall no longer constitute an “obligated person” within 
the meaning of the Rule; or (iii) the date on which those portions of the Rule which require this written Disclosure 
Undertaking are held to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction in a non-appealable action, have been repealed 
retroactively or otherwise do not apply to the Series 2023 Bonds. 

Section 7. Dissemination Agent.  The Agency may, from time to time, appoint or engage a 
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Undertaking, and may discharge 
any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.   

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure 
Undertaking, the Agency may amend this Disclosure Undertaking and any provision of this Disclosure Undertaking 
may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied: 

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4, 5(a) or 5(b), it may 
only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, 
change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of an “obligated person” (as defined in the Rule) 
with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds, or the type of business conducted; 

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the 
original issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of 
the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and 

(c) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Bondholders of the Series 2023 
Bonds in the same manner as provided in the Indenture for amendments to the Indenture with the consent of 
Bondholders, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the 
interests of the Bondholders of the Series 2023 Bonds. 

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Undertaking, the Agency shall 
describe such amendment in the next Annual Report of the Agency, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative 
explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a change of 
accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by the Agency, 
as applicable.  In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial 
statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(a), and 
(ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made should present a comparison (in narrative form and 
also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting 
principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles.   

Section 9. Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Undertaking shall be deemed to 
prevent the Agency from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this 
Disclosure Undertaking or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any Annual 
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Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Undertaking.  
If the Agency chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in 
addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Undertaking, the Agency shall have no obligation 
under this Disclosure Undertaking to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of 
occurrence of a Listed Event. 

Section 10. Default.  In the event of a failure of the Agency or the Dissemination Agent to comply with 
any provision of this Disclosure Undertaking, any Bondholder of the Series 2023 Bonds may take such actions as may 
be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the Agency 
or Dissemination Agent, as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Undertaking.  A 
default under this Disclosure Undertaking shall not be deemed an “event of default” under the Indenture, and the sole 
remedy under this Disclosure Undertaking in the event of any failure of the Agency or the Dissemination Agent to 
comply with this Disclosure Undertaking shall be an action to compel performance. 

Section 11. Duties Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent.  The Dissemination Agent shall 
have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Undertaking, and the Agency agrees to indemnify 
and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless against any loss, expense 
and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, 
including the costs and expenses (including attorneys’ fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding 
liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent’s gross negligence or willful misconduct.   

The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty with respect to the content of any disclosures or notice made 
pursuant to the terms hereof. The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty or obligation to review or verify any 
information, disclosures or notices provided to it by the Agency and shall not be deemed to be acting in any fiduciary 
capacity for the Agency, the Registered Owners of the Series 2023 Bonds or any other party. The Dissemination Agent 
shall have no responsibility for the Agency’s failure to report to the Dissemination Agent a Listed Event or a duty to 
determine the materiality thereof. The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty to determine or liability for failing to 
determine whether the Agency has complied with this Disclosure Undertaking. The Dissemination Agent may 
conclusively rely upon certifications of the Agency at all times. The obligations of the Agency under this Section shall 
survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Series 2023 Bonds.   

Section 12. Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Undertaking shall inure solely to the benefit of the Agency, 
the Dissemination Agent, the Underwriter and the Bondholders from time to time of the Series 2023 Bonds, and shall 
create no rights in any other person or entity.   

Section 13. Counterparts.  This Disclosure Undertaking may be executed in several counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

Date:  __________, 2023.   

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
 
 
 
By:   

Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:  

Secretary-Treasurer 
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APPENDIX F  
PROVISIONS REGARDING BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the Series 
2023 Bonds.  The Series 2023 Bonds are to be issued as fully-registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
(DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One 
fully-registered Bond certificate is to be issued for each series of the Series 2023 Bonds, each in the aggregate principal 
amount of such series, and will be deposited with DTC. 

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New 
York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the 
Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, 
and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  
DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and 
municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct 
Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales 
and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and 
pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities 
certificates.  Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, 
clearing corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & 
Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation 
and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users 
of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. 
securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a 
custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has S&P 
Global Ratings’ rating of AA+.  The DTC Rules applicable to its Direct Participants are on file with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission.  Neither UIA nor the Underwriter makes any representation about such information.  More 
information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 

Purchases of Series 2023 Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, 
which are to receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each 
Series 2023 Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.  
Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, 
expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their 
holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  
Transfers of ownership interests in the Series 2023 Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of 
Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates 
representing their ownership interests in the Series 2023 Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system 
for the Series 2023 Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Series 2023 Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Series 2023 Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of 
Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge 
of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Series 2023 Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct 
Participants to whose accounts such Series 2023 Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  
The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their 
customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to 
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  
Beneficial Owners of Series 2023 Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices 
of significant events with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed 
amendments to the bond documents.  For example, Beneficial Owners of Series 2023 Bonds may wish to ascertain 
that the nominee holding the Series 2023 Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial 
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Owners.  In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and 
request that copies of notices be provided directly to them. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Series 2023 Bonds within an issue are being 
redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to 
be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Series 2023 
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures.  Under its usual procedures, 
DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to UIA as soon as possible after the record date.  The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & 
Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Series 2023 Bonds are credited on the 
record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Series 2023 Bonds are to be made to Cede 
& Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to credit 
Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from UIA or the 
Paying Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records.  Payments by 
Direct or Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners are to be governed by standing instructions and customary 
practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” 
and will be the responsibility of such Direct or Indirect Participant and not of DTC nor its nominee, the Paying Agent, 
or UIA, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment of 
redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested 
by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of UIA or the Paying Agent, disbursement of such 
payments to Direct Participants is the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial 
Owners is the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds at any time 
by giving reasonable notice to UIA.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, 
Series 2023 Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

UIA may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor 
securities depository).  In that event, Series 2023 Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from 
sources that UIA believes to be reliable, but UIA takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.    
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